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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMISSION

SEC FORM 17-A

ANNUAL REPORT
Pursuant to Section 17 of the Securities Regulation Code
and Section 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines

Faor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021

SEC identification Number  A199806865 3. BIR Tax dentification No, 005-301-677

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter APQLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC,

Metra Manila, Philippinas 6. l:::] [SEC Use Only)
Pravince; Country or othar jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code:

incorporation or organization

Unit 504 Galleria Corporate Center, Edsa cor. Ortigas Avenue, Bray. Ugong Norte, Quezon City 1100
Address of principal cffice Postal code
+63 (02] 532-8654

lzsuer's telephone number, including area code

hifA

Former hame, former address, and former fiscal year if changed since last report
Securities registerad pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Section 4 and 8 of the RSA

Title of Each Class Mumber af Shares af Commen Stock Qutstanding
Common Stock, #0.01 par value 292 ,686,349,297

Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes [¢] Mol ]

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securitias listed thersin:

Philippine Stock Exchange Common Stock

Check whether the issuer:

{a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Saction 17 of the 5RC and SRC Rule 17.1 thereunder or
Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11{z)-1 thereunder, and Sections 25 and 141 of the Corporation
Code of the Philippinas during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter pericd that the
registrant was required 1o file such reports)?

Yes [+ No[ ]

(b} has been subject to such filing requirements far the past ninety (30} days?

Yesg [+] No[ ]
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13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliztes of the registrant. The aggregate

15

market value shzll be computed by referance to the price at which the stock was sold, or average bid and
asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days prior to the date of filing. If a
datermination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate cannot be made without involving
unreasonable effort or expense, the aggragate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates
may be calculated on the basis of assumptions reasorable under the circumstances, provided the
assumptions are set forth in this Form. (See definition of “affiliate” in “Annex B")

Aggregate market value of voting commen stock held by non-affiliates as of December 31, 2021 is
£3,622,982,830.08 based on closing price of #0.08 per share.

APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN
INSOLVENCY/SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS PROCEEDING
DURING THE PRECEEDING FIVE YEARS:

. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reports raquired to be filed by Section 17 of the

Coce subsequent to the distribution of secunties under a plan confirmed by a court ar the Commission.

N/A

Yes| 1 No[ ]

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

If any of the following documents are incorporated by reference, briefly describe them and identify the
part of SEC Form 17-A into which the document is incarparated:

(a) Anyannual repart to security holders;
(5] Anyinformation statement filed pursuant to SRC Rule 20;
{z) Any prospectus filed pursuant to 5RC Rule B.1.
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PART | — BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Businass

Company Overview
Apollo Global Capital, Ine. (APL), formerly Yehey! Corporation (YEHEY), was incorporated onJune 10, 19598

to engage in the business of intrnet online related products.

On August 9, 2012, the SEC approved the YEHEY's application ta list 27.8-billion common shares by way of
intraduction in the second board of the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) at an initlal price of #1 per sharz.
On Detober 18, 2012, the Parent Campany was listed in the PSE.

On October 15, 2015, YEHEY ceasad to be a majority-owned subsidiary of Vantage Equities, Inc. (V] when
v sold its 66.95% stake in APL to a group of individual shareholders.

On October 12, 2016, the SEC approved the Company's change in name to Apollo Global Capital, Inc. as
well as the winding down of its digital marketing operations and the corresponding change in primary
purpose to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, ease,
mortaage, puarantae, exchange, develop or otherwise dispose of real or personal property of every kind
and description, including shares of stocks, bonds, debentures, noles, evidences of indebtednéss, and
ather s=clrities or obligations of any corporaticn or corporations, associations, domestic or foreign, and
1o possess and exercise in respect therecf all the rights, powers and privileges of ownership, including all
veting pawers of any stock so owned; provided it shall not engage as a stock broker or dealer of s=curities.

Additional Listing of Shares

On August 11, 2021, the PSE approved for listing of shares covered in the following transactions:

e 247,396,071,520 shares (refarred to as the Swap Shares) issued out of the increase in APL's
authorized capital stock for the Share-far-Share Swap Transaction between certain stockholders
of IDVC Resources Corporation [IDVC) and APL, for the later to acquire JOVC shares; and,

» 5,140.277,777 shares {referred to as the Canversion 5Shares) issued from a Convertible Loan
Agreament, wherein APL's loan amaunting to P50 0 million principal plus £1,402,777.77 interest
were convertad inconsideration for shares,

The Company has caomplied with the applicable requirements of the PSE for the listing of the Swap
Shares and Conversion Shares including, ameng others, the submission of the swom Corporate
Secretary’s Certification attesting that the Swap and Conversion Shares shall be duly lodged with the
Philippitie Depository & Trust Corp. (FOTC) and shall be made avallable in the PDTC system on the
stheduled listing date. Said shares will be veluntarily locked-ug in escrow for a period of 180 days
from listing of the said shares and shall be eligible for trading starting February B, 2022,

Upon listing of the Swap and Conversion Shares, all issued and outstanding shares of APL or a total of
280,336,349,257 shares as of August 11, 2021 have been listed. Prior to-approval of listing, only 27.8
billian shares out of the 280,336,349,297 shares that were issued and outstanding were listed with
the PSE.

Follaw-Or Offering

On August €, 2021, the Company received the pra-effective letter from the SEC favorably consicering
the Registration Statement in relation to the proposed follow-on offering of 12.35 billion shares (Offer
Shares) at an offer price of #0.08 per shara, APL expects to raise P988.0 million from the fallow-on
offering, primarily to be used to acquire a 45% stake in Poet Blue Ocean Offshore Services Pte. Ltd.
(PED) and additional egquipment for its offshore mining cperations.

The Oiffer Shares were listed on August 31, 2021, On listing date, APL's outstanding and listed shares
increased from 280,336,240,297 to 292,686,249,297

Apolie Glcbel Capia!, Inc, & Subsidiaries
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Business

Since its change in primary purpose, APL operatesas a holding company which retains investments in JDVC,
PT. I8l and PBO — companies essentizl in its mining operations, APL expects to earn dividends from these
investments, which are derived from profits gensrated from these companies” operations.

JOVEC Resources Carporation

JDVC is an entity registered with the Philippine SEC for the business purpose of offshare large scale
magnetite mining and other rnineral resources in the province of Cagayan. The company gained
ownership of the MPSA on Novernber 25, 2011, denominated as MPSA-338-2010-11-DMR Amended-
A, covering 1,897.0 hectares for the Company to conduct research and mining operations 15
kilometers offshore from the municipality of Gonzags, province of Cagayan, Philippines.

IDVC has conducted mining exploration, gealogical and feasibllity studies, and contracted experts in
the field of mining to successfully quantify and value probable magnetite ore resources in the
propased area. The deposit rescurces of JDVC have reached a highly satisfactary tachnical level from
infarred to Indicated resources. Recently, after revalidation af the mineral resgurces by the DENE and
the Mines and Geosciences Bureau (MGB), the mineral resources have reached a status of high degree
of geological confidence from indicated resources to measured resources.

On February 17, 2017, the Company and JOVC's shareholders entared into a Deed of Exchange of
Shares where in the latter had issued 247,396,071,520 shares (par value of #0.01 per share) in
exchange for 4,133,740 shares {par value of P100 ger share) at an exchange price of F598.48 of the
latter, The deed covering the transaction was approved by SEC on October 9, 2017. As a result of this
transaction, the Company acquired 82.675% of 1DVC.

In December 2019, the Company purchased an additional 383,530 shares of JOVC from s existing
stockholders for #267.6 million resulting in an Increase in ownarship:of JOVC to 90.47%.

PT, JOVC Resources indonesia (PT. JRI)

PT. JRI was incorporated to expand APL's business operation and to explore possibilities of
complementary mining operations in Indonesia, a country also known for its substantial mineral
degosits of iron ore.

PT. JRI was incorporated with the Indonesian Ministry of Law [similar to the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission) and secured its Deed of Establishment [similar to the Articles of Incorpaoration
in the Philippines) on September 17, 2021. It also obtained a Business License from the Ministry of
Investments of Indanesia, which enables it to engage (n the three (3) lines of businesses, as fallows:
{1} Great Trade of Metal Ores, {2} Big Trade of Non-metal Matenals, and (3) Whelesale Trade of Solid,
Liquid and Gas Fuel and Related Products.

On Segtember 27, 2021, PT. JR| entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with Pelletized Iron &
Titanium Vanadium (PHILS.) Cerporatian (PITV) and twa (2) Indonesian firms, FT. Yakin Cltre Mandid
(PT. YCM] and BT. Sumber Rezeld Solusindo (PT. SRS,

Th= Memorandum of Understanding sets out the agreemant of the parties for the establishment of
an upgrading plant by PITV that will process raw iron ore from Indonesian mings and process it to
export quality iron ore with 63% and above magretic fraction, to be sald locally or exported to other
countries. Eventually, 2 pelletizing plant will bz estanlished for forward integration in the supply chain,
ultimately selling iron pellets to the steel smelter plants in Indonesia or in other countries,

Underthe MOL, the obligations of the parties include:

a. PITV to fund the upgrading plant project and operate and malintain the upgrading plant and the
pelletizing plant;

b. PT.JR! tosecure permits and licensas for iron ore mining and trading and for the operation of the
upgrading plant; conduct mining, transport and trading for iron ore operations; and provide
adequate site with utilities for the operation of the upgrading plant and the pelletizing plant;

Apofie Slobal Cepitel, Inc. & Subsidiaries
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£, PT, YCM, which owns iran ore mine tenements in Kalimantan, Indenesia, to provide permitted
mining area and ensure lang term ivon ore supply for the plants; and
d. PT, SRS to provide consultancy services and corporate social responsibility services.

The gther terms of agreement, including the detalls of the commercial agreement amang the parties,
shall be covered in-a supplemental agreement to be entered into by them.

PT IRl will apply fer a Specizl Praduction Operation Mining Business License for Trading (IUP OPK) with
the Ministry of Energy and Mineral Resources (similar to the Department of Energy and Department
of Environment and Natural Resaurces in the Philippines), which is a requirement to undertake minerz
trading in Indonesia, Coupled with a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with an Indonesian mine
owner, this IUP OPK will allow FT. JRI the right to mine in the mine area subject of the MOU,

Poet Blue Ocean Gffshore Services Pte. [td.

PEO is a Singaporean company engaged in engineering design and consullancy services supporting
miniog, oil and gas extraction and offshare exploration activities. it alse owns MB Siphen |, a marine
barge outfitted with siphon pumps and magnetic separators to draw magnetite iron ore from the sea
fAoor, which will be used for the offshore mining activities of JOVC

On 20 September 2021, the Board of Directors of APL has approved the execution of an Instrument of
transfer of shares covering the acuisition by APL of 48% cwnership of PRO, The transaction |s
consistent with the use of proceeds in the recently completed follow-an offering, where the &PL
committed to use the net proceeds from the offer primarily to buy a 49% stake in PBO.

Principal Products or Services

1DYC, through Agbiag Mining and Development Corporation (Agbiag) as the Mine Contractar/Operatar and
its Equinment Procurement Cantractors (EPCs), will institute environmentally safe and effactive offshore
mining methads for the extraction of magnetite iron sand at the offshore area of Gonzaga, Cagayan. Highly
technical professionals have contributed their knowledge and experience in coming up with state-of-the-
art methodology to be able ta implement the project in terms of high-technology production systems.
Management systems and responses will also be done in accordance to 150 standards.

The product, magnetite iron sand, is a primtary raw material, like iron ore, for steel and cast-iron
manufacturers when they are davelapad in the form of iron lumps, balls, fines, and pellsts. When formed
as such, they are technically czlled Direct Reduced Iron (DRI) which are used to feed electric blast furnaces
in the iron and stesl making process.

In case there is a need for expansion in the event of an international markat success, there are two other
areas of expansion. One consists of 2,149 hectares forone tenement Just beside the JDVC tenement gwned
by Cagayan Cre Metal Mining Corp, The other consists of 3,182 hectares owned by Catagayan Iron Sand
Mining Rescurces Corp., right beside the tenement owned by Cagayan Ore Metal Mining Corp. 1DVC holds
the commitreent of both companies should APL decide to acquire both tenements in the future,

The Company competes with magnetite iron ore suppliers in world iron ore markets. The most notable
damestic competitors are Penigl Resources Mining Corp., 5an Lorenzo Mines, Inc, T & T Resources and
Mining Corp., arnd | & M Resources Mining & Exploration Corp. The Company competes with other
magnatite iron are supgliers primarily based on ore quality, price, transportation cost and reliability of
supply. However, competition is also affected by the enforcement by the Philippine government of the
anvironmental laws, rules and regulations.

The competition will be in the Interniational marketplace like China who is the major buyer of magrietite
iron ore, lapan, Talwan, Korea, Thailand & Vigtnam. Nonetheless, the magnetite iron ore export from
Czgayan, Philippinas is seen to be very competitive as it is the geographical nearest to the major markelts
of magnetite iran ore and the Group believes that it can sffectively compete with its competitors due to
efficient systems put in place in the operations of the Cagayan mine.

polln Siobal Capdtal, Inc, & Subsidiades
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Az of Decamber 31, 2021, DENR MGB has issued four (4) Offshore Approved MPSA Contracts at the Offshore
waters of Cagayan, However, nc one has been permitted yet except JOVC, Only JOVC has completed all the
Mining Requirements for Commercial Extraction Operations which includes an Approved DMPT and £CC.
The other three {3) MPSA Mining companies do not have complete parmits.

There are still eight (8} other mining applications offshore of Cagayan that do not have an MPSA approval,
All over the Philippines, there are alse applications for offshore MP5A permits, butall of them are still under
process and no ather 2pplication has reached the level of completion of JOVC,

Principal Suppliers
The Group relies to a significant degrea on third-party contractors. The failure of any of its contractors to
comply with their respective cbligations, or the loss of any such contractor's services will disrupt the

Group’s operations which could result in delays and increase JDVC's costs,
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Ocean Resaurces Carp. Holdings Corp. Resources Corp. Corp.

The Group's success depends on its ability to attract and retain qualified persannel, and contractors to
maintaln satisfactary labor relations. IDVC highly depends on key personnzl, and the loss of their services

could have a material adverse effect on the Group.

Custonters
The mine tenement is near countries that have a high demand for magnetite iron sand which include China,

Japan, Korea and Taiwan. There has been a surge in demand for magnetite iron sand in the global steel
manulacturing sector and in the international market. Recent data shows a firming up of iren prices in
recent months, which is expected to remain that way in succeeding years. China will rely heavily on
infrastructure to ramp up their econamy after the economic shutdowns, which will call for sustainzble steel
production, and In turn drive demand for large volumes of raw materials such as magnetite iron sand in
the foreseeable future,

The Group has competitive advantage over other international players in terms of geographic location and
logistics being a nearer alternative supgply to high demand countries.

Management currently assesses no significant concentrations on single or group of customers and wlll re-
assess any significant concentrations upon commencement of commercial operations.

intellectual Property
The Group does not own any registered patent, trademark, copyright, franchise, concession, and royalty

agreement and has no pending applicatians for registration with the Intellectual Property Office of the
Philippines.

Apeilo Global Capital, s, & Su beldisies
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Government Requlations and Licenses

Existing government regulations affect the Group's operations, particularly on the costs of complianca
reflacted eithar 25 expense or as capital asset under generally acceptad accounting principles. In the case
of new government regulations, the effect or impact of such on the Group’s operations could only be
determined upon their passape and implementation,

The exploration, development and utilization of the country’s natural resources is poverned principally by
the 1987 Constitution, which provides that the State may directly explore, develop, and utilize the cou ntry's
ratural resources, ar it may enter into co-production, joint venture or production-sharing agresments with
Filipin citizens or corporations or associations, at least 60% of whose capital is ownad by Filipings. The
Canstitution also authorizes the President of the Republic of the Philippines to enter Into technical or
firancial assistance agreements with foreign-owned corporations for large-scale expleration,
devalopment, and utilization of minerals, petroleum, and other mineral oils in accordance with the general
terms and conditions of applicable faws, based on real contributions to the economic growth and general
welfare of the country, Several laws have since been enacted Lo implement thess Constitutional principles
and directivas.

Repubiic Act No. 7942 Mining Act of 1995

RA 7942 or the Mining Act of 1935 sets out the provisions governing mining and mining-refated
activities in the country, The Mining Act declares the areas open for mining operations and at the
same time, enumerates those closed for mining applications. Maore importantly, said law sets farth
the mining cycle and the corresponding permits needed for each phase: from exploration to the
declaration of mining project feasibility, to the positive determination of commercial viability of 3
project, to the execution of mineral agreements with the government price o actual operations, until
the required rehabilitation after operating a ming.

Republic Act No. 8371: Indigenous Pecples’ Rights Act of 1997

RA 8371 or the Indigencus Peoples’ Rights Act of 1937 (IPRA Law) introduced the requirement of "Free
and Prior Informed Consent” {FPIC) which means the consensus of members of the concerned
Indigencus Peaples (IP) or Indigenous Cultural Community (ICC). Under this, all departments and
governmental agencies are strictly enjained from issuing, ranewing, or granting any concassion,
license or lease of entering Into a production sharing agreement, without prior certification from the
National Commission on Indigenous Peoples (NCIP), which certification can only be issued after the
FPIC with the IPs or ICCs concerned is secured and the process concluded.

Presidentiol Decree No. 1586: Enviranmental Imaact Assessment [EIA] System

PO No. 1586 intreduced the EIA System which mandates thal “no person, partnership, ar corparation
shall undertake or operate any such declared emvironmentally critical project or area without first
securing an Environmental Compliance Certificate issued by the President or his duly authorized
representative”. Hence, pursuant to PO No, 1586, the Mining Act of 1995 requires mining companies
ta secure an Environmental Compliance Certificate (ECC) in all phases of mining activities, except
during the exploration stage.

Renublic Act No. 6969: Taxic Substunces and Hozardous and Nucleor Wastes Control Act of 1590

RA 6969 of the Toxic Substances and Hazardous and Nuglear Wastes Control Act of 1990 regulatas the
impertation, manufacture, processing, distribution, use and disposal of chemical substances and
mixtures.

Republic Act N, 8749 Philippine Clean Air Act of 1559
R4 8749 or the Philippine Clean Air Act of 1999 outlines the measures to reduce air pollution.

Fenubiic Act No. 8003 Frologica! Solid Waste Monogement Act of 2000

R 9003 or the Ecological Solid Waste Management Act of 2000 provides a systematic ecological solid
waste management program,

Apollo Gickal Capital, ne. & Subsidiaries
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Executive Qrder No.

ED 79 was issued by President Benigne Aguina lIl creating the Mining Industry Coerdinating Council
{MICC) and instituting changes to ensure the practice of responsible mining in the county. EQ 79 alsa
providss that no naw mineral agreements shall be entered into until a legislation rationalizing existing
revenue sharing schemes and mechanisms shall have taken effect. The DENR may nevertheless,
continue to grant and issue Exploration Permits under existing law, rules, and guidelines.

DENR Department Administrative Qrder No. 2015-07

0AC Mo. 2015-07 institutionalizes an environmental management system that ensures the adherznce
ot local mining ogerations to international standards, particularly the 1SO 14001 Certification, as a
measure of responsible mining in the country, It will ensure that appropriate measures are put in
place to achieve minimal negative impacts of mining on the environment. As mandated under EQ 73,
it will also guarantee the compliance of mining contractars with applicable mining and environmental
laws, regulations, and reguirements in mining operatians while gearing towards growth.

DENR Departiment Administrative Orger No. 201707

DAO No. 2017-07 mandates mining contractors to participate in the Philippine Extractive Industries
Transparency Initiative (PH-EITI), Accerding to DAD No. 201707, all mining contractors shall comply
with the disclesure requirements of PH-EITI as set by the Philippine Multi-stakeholders Group where
the gavernment, the industry and cwil society are represented. Failure of the mining contractor to
comply with the disclosure requirements shall cause the suspension of the pertinent ECC and nan-
issuance of Ore-Transport and/for Mineral Export Permit until such time that the said contractor has
complied.

DENR Deporiment Administrative Order No. 2017-10

DAQ No. 2017-10 prohibits the use of open pit mining method in the extraction of copger, gald, silver
and/ar complex ores. According to DAD No. 2017-10, open pits allegedly bring adverse environmental
impact due to the generation of acidic and/or heavy metal-laden water, erosion of mine waste dumps
and/er vulnerability of tailings dams 1o geological hazards.

Employess
s of December 31, 2021, APL has no emplovees and is being managed by its officers free of charge:, while

IDVC has 14 regular employees involved in its mining aperations. The Group expects to employ more
personnel in 2022 in anticipation of commencement of mining operations.

Properties

MPSA No. 338-2010-11-0MR Amended-A

The MPSA grants the owner the right lo explore and develop magrietite resources within a specified area
in Cagayan province. The Contract Area covered by the MPSA has an initial area of 14,240 hectares within
the municipalities of Sanchez, Mira, Abulug, Pamplona, Ballesteros, Aparri, Buguey, and Gonzaga In the
province of Cagayan. The Contract Area was then redenominated to cover 11,840 hectares on May 20,
2016, The mining area was further parcellized to as 1,857.0242 hectares in Ganzaga, Cagayan.

The mining cencession is valid for 25 years from the effective date of June 2010, and is renewable for
another 25 years. An environmental compliance certificate has already been secured by the Campany from
the Departmant ef Environment arid Natural Resources. Nevertheless, the MPSA is not subjected to any
mortgags, lien, ar encumbrance.

The Government's share is equivalent to the excise tax on mineral products at the time of removal, and at
the rate pravided for in Republic Act Na. 7729. The government will be entitled to royalties of not less than
5% of the gross output.

Apulle Slobsl Capital, Inc, & Subsidiares
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Figure 1. Tenement Map Showing Palitical Boundaries
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Flgure 2 Tencmient Map Showing Claim Bouridaries

Mineral 5 an ryes

The Compary presents estimatad mineral resources in accordance with the PMRC, which is described
below, We review and update the |DVC's estimates as required, but at least annually, to reflect actual
produciion, new exploration data or developments and changes in other assumptions or parameters. The
Company has commissioned a PMRC Competent Person to independently verify certain of the mineral
resaurce estimates. Ore reserve estimates will change from time to time to reflect mining activities,
analyses of new engineering and geological data, changes in ore reserve and minere| resource holdings,
modifications of mining plans or metheds, changes in nickel prices or production costs and other factors.

Azolio Glebal Capltal, Inc. & Subsidiaies.
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Mineral Resource Estimates

Results of estimation show a combined indicated rescurce of 606,457,972.52 DMT with an average grade
of 25.47% MF, which at 100% recovery, is equivalent to 154,466,259.02 DMT of magnetite concenirate;
and an inferred resource of 63,179,310.69 DMT with an sverage grade of 47.71% MF, which at 100%
recovery s equivalent to 30,140,510.80 DM of magnetite concentrate. The summary of the resources is

tabulated in detail by resource category in Table 1.

Level Hole-ID |  Volume (m?) TF[:‘:;E}E f A’;"; DMT Conc.
INDICATED
GN18 14.130,498.64]  23,887,302.69|  2658| 634924508
GN30 6,260,618.75|  10,580,445.68 323 341,748.40
Ty GN33 11,077,837.40|  20,242,545.20|  22.56|  4,566,718.20
o GN48 13,056,734,48| 22,082,781.26| 24.87|  5491,987.70
GN5E 11,252,573.11| 19,016,84856| 2494  4,742,802.03
GN6B 10,862,507.44|  18,357,637.57| 2698  4,952,890.62
Sub Total 67.554.769.80| 114,167,560.95| 23.16|  26,445,391.89
GN18 21167,829.31| 35773,631.53|  43.87| 15,693,892.15
GN30 11600,678.95| 19,605,147.43|  21.02|  4,119,041.47
= GN33 16,404,741.02| 27,724012.32| 4189| 11,613,588.75
- GN48 15,073,202.66| 25473,712.50|  46.55| 11,858,013.17
GNS8 14,792,031.51| 24,998533.24| 47.29| 11,821,80637
GNE8 14,539,173.62| 24,571,203.41|  43.15| 10,602,474.27
Sub Total 93,577,657.05| 158,146,240.41|  41.55| 65,708,816.19
GN18 22732,822.30| 37,573469.69| 24.89|  9,352,03661
LA GN30 7183.350.15| 12,139,861.75| 2071  2,514,16537
~ GN33 18,130,300.05| 30,641,221.08| 23.63|  7,240,52054
= GN48 15,950,498.10  26,956,341.79| 25.41|  6,849,606.45
— GN58 14,510,689.13|  24,523,064.63| 27.89|  6,839,482.73
GNG8 19,498536.83| 32,952,527.24|  23.89|  7,872,358.76
Sub Total 97.506,796.56| 164,786,486.19|  24.68|  40,668,170.45
GN18 13339,693.38| 22,544,081.81| 12.58|  2,836,045.49
ﬁ GN33 19,433,900.05 32,843,291.08| 1165|  3,826,243.41
| GN48 17,519,49810|  29,607,951.79|  12.66|  3,748,366.70
i GNS8 18,284,78130| 30,901,280.40|  10.24|  3,164,291.11
GNBR 22,483,26439| 37,996,716.82|  13.56|  5,152,354.80
Sub Total 91,061,137.22| 153,893,321.80| 12.17| 18,727,30151
GN6B 9,150,510.68| 15,464,363.07| 18.86|  2,916578.87
Sub Total 9,150,510.69| 15,464,363.07| 18.86|  2,916,578.87
Grand Total 358,850,871.32| 606,457,972.52|  25.47| 154,466,259.02
Level Hole-ID | Volume (m?) TE’E’.’;’TE’E ;:i:; DMT Conc.
INFERRED
GNO1 5.452,567.28]  9,214,838.69] 59.20| 545518451
o GND2 9,049,5637.80| 15,293,887.88| 4520  6,912,837.32
o GNO3 9,851,788.01| 16,649,521.73| 46.70|  7,775326.55
GNO4 13,030,214.43|  22,021,062.39|  4540|  9,997,562.32
37,384,207.51|  63,179,310.69|  47.71|  30,140,910.80

Table 1: Sumerary of Mineral Resaurees by Resource Catepory and Grade Group
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IIL.

Legal Proceedings
Neithar the Company nor any of its subsidiary and affiliates or any of their properties are involved in or the

subject of any legal proceadings which would have a material adverse effect on the business or financial
position of the Company or any of its subsidiary and affiliates, or any of its or their properties.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Except for matters taken up during the last annual ctockholders' meeting covered by the Company's SEC

Form 205 report, no matter was subrmitted to s vate of security holcers through sclicitation of proxies or
otharwisz guring the calendar year coverad by this report.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Market for Issuer’s Commaon Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Markst Information
The registrant's common shares s traded in the Prilippine Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol "AGL".
The Company’s public float as of December 31, 2021 i5 15.47%,

On August 9, 2012, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s application to list 27 B-million commion shares
by way of introduction In the second board of the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) atan initial price of 1
per share. On October 18, 2012, the Parent Company was listed in the P3E.

On August 11, 2021, the PSE approved for listing of shares covered in the following transactions:

s 247,396,071,520 shares (referred to as the Swap Shares) issued out of the [ncrease in APL's authorized
capital stock for the Share-for-Share Swap Transaction between certain stackholders of JOVC
Fesources Corporation (IDVC) and APL, for the later to acquire IDVC shares; and,

v 5140,277,777 shares (referred to as the Conversion Shares) issued from 8 Convertible Loan
Agreament, wherein APL's loan amounting to P50.0 millien principal plus #1,402,777.77 interest were
converted in consideraticn far shares,

On August 6, 2021, the Company received the pre-effective letter from the SEC fevorably cansidering the
Ragistration Statement in relation to the proposed follow-on offering of 12.35 billion shares (Offer Shares)
at zn offer price of PO.OZ per share. The Offer Shares were approved for listing on August 31, 2021.

The average quarterly stock prices for the Company’s common shares for the last three fiscal years are as
follows:

Teow | S ipl e SN o e W Rrice pershare{inFh®) = = =
i S on s NN TR D07 e 0| SR 070 N |
Al | fow | Hgh | Low | High | Low | Hgh | low
1st Quarter 0.082 0.039 0.475 0.133 0.080 0.032 0.03%
2nd Quarter - - 0.247 0.160 0.060 0.036 0.038
3rd Quarter - - 0.182 0.090 0.060 0.046 0.044
Ath Quarter - - 0115 (.0G8 0.144 0.050 0.037

Markat price of the Company's shares as at close of the year 2021 was P0.0B0 per share,

Apoila Global Capital, Ine. B SubEdianes
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Halders
As of December 31, 2021, there were 805 sharcholders of the 292,686,349,297 common shares issued and
sutstanding. The tog 20 shareholders of the Company as of December 31, 2021 are as follows:

e . Nameof Sharebolder | NoofsharesHeld | SEHL K
1 PCO Mominee Carporaticn (Filiping) 181,815,582,540 62.12%
2. | PCD Mominee Carporaticn {Mon-Filiping) 110,417,923,314 37.73%
3. | Jluan G Chua 94,040,000 0.03%
4. | East Pacific Investors Corparation 43 (185,000 0.02%
5, | Cygnet Development Corporation 43,125,000 0.02%
g, | Alistair E.A, lsrazl 27,720,000 0.01%
7. | David O, Quitoriano 24,200,000 0.01%
B, | Century Securities Corp. 6,025,000 0.00%
2. | Ricardal. Ng 5,847,700 0.00%
10. | Campos, Lanuza & Co., Inc. 5,807,500 0.00%
11. | Suzanne Lim 5,175,000 0.00%
12. | lerry Tiu 4,916,200 0.00%
13. | Susana Ang Chua 4,191,700 0.00%
14, | R, Coviute Securities, Inc 2,350,000 0.00%
15. | Avesco Marketing Carporation 2,875,000 0.00%
16, | David Go Securities Carp. 2,750,000 0.00%
17. | Fortune Securities Inc. 2,750,000 0.00%
12, | Elaine H.S. Ty 2,587,500 0.00%

| 19, | Mary Tan De Jesus 2,542,500 0.00%

L 20. | Imperial, De Guzrnan, Abalos & Co., Inc. 2,350,000 0.00%

Diedends and Dividend Palicy

The Board of Directors is autharized to declare cash or stock dividends or a combination thereof. A cash
dividend declaration reguires the approval of the Board of Directors and ne shareholder approval s
necessary, A stock dividend declaration requires the approval of the Board of Directors and shareholders
representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the Company's putstanding voting capital stock. Holders of
outstanding shares on a dividend record date for such shares will be entitled to the full dividend declared
without regard to any subsequent transfer of shares.

Tre Board of Directors has the power to fix and determine the amount to be reserved or provided for
declaration and payment of dividends from the Company's unrestricted retained or surplus earnings, The
amaunt of such dividends (either in cash, stocks or property) will depend on the Company’s profits, cash
flows, capital expenditure, financial condition and other factors and will follow the SEC puidelnes on
dztermination of retained earnings available for dividend declaration,

The existance of surplus profit is a condition precedent befare a dividend can be declared. The surplus
profits or income must be a bona fice income founded upon actual earnings. Actual earnings or profits
shall be the net incame for the year based on the sudited financial statements, adjusted for unrealized
iterns, which are considered not available for dividand declaration, Taking into account the Company's
cash flows, capital expenditure, investment objectives and financial condition, at least ten percent [10%)
of the actual earnings or profits may be declared by the Board.

Each holder of the shares, regardless of class, is entitled to such dividends as may be declared in accordance
with the Campany's dividend policy,

The Company has not declared any dividends during the past three (3] fiscal years due to retained earnings
deficit position,

Apoiio Global Caprtal, inc, & Subsidianes
annual Repart {SEC Form 17:4) | Page 12



Vi

Recent Sale of Unrepistered Securities
On February 20, 2019, the BOD autharized the Parent Company to enter inta a convertible loan agreement

with a third party amounting to P50.0 million. The loan bears an interest of 5% per annum and will maturs
on February 20, 2021. The principal and interest are canvertible to shares at 0,01 per share any time until
the 10th day befors the marturity date at the aption of the third party.

On September 11, 2019, the third party exercised the right to convert the loan at #0.01 per share. On the
same date, the BOD approved the conversion of the principal amount, including the interest accrued up to
date of the conversion amounting to #1,402,778. The Parent Company issued additional 5,140,277,777
shares as a result of the conversion. Consequently, such valustion was duly appreved by the SEC on
Decamber 7, 2020,

Other than the forzgoing, there has been no issuance of exempt securities.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation

Plan of Dperation

The Company’s revenues and cash flow shall be generated from the business operation of its subsidiary,
1DVE, On the other hand, JOVE shall generate revenue & income from royalty payment from its contractor-
owned vessels, and after the Company's Follow-0n Offering (FOQ), fram a vessel that the Company plans
Lo partally own as well

The forecast share of the Company in the protits from Its subsidiary’s partially-owned vessels rapges from
nine to len percent (9% to 10%) of gross sales, and the share in royalty fees ta be derived from contractor-
awred vessels is at ningty-two percent (82%), approximately.

The Company will start with a forelgn-owned vessel (MB Siphan [} which is currently whaolly-owned by Poet
Blue Dcean Offshore Services Pte. Lid. [PEO), and two (2) contractors in 2021, After the FOOQ, where
majority of the proceeds of the offering will be used to acquire a forty-nine percent {43%) stake in PEC,
the Company will effectively have twa (2] saurces of revenues — one from the 30.47% royalties from [DVC,
andsecond fromthe 49% ownership of PEO that owns MB Siphon |, The two sources of the future revenuies
of the Company and IDVE will be sufficient in satisfying the cash requirements of the Group and no further
fund-raising is expected in the coming year.

The Group expects ta hire additional employees in anticipation of the start of commercial mining
gperations, Most of the anticipated new employees are expected to be deployad within the mining
tenement in Cagayan.

Key Performance Indicators
Below is 2 schedule showing fingncial soundness indicators for the past three (3) fiscal years:

Ratio Farmuls 2021 2020 2019
Current Ratia CUmERT ASsels L4 111,335,182 ¥ 4,851 067 # 4,518,547
Diwide by Currant Liabilitles F 121705907 B 110677578 » 95388120
Current Ratio 1.74:1 (<K 051
Assacsto-Liability Aatia  Totnl assers A43E,31E9T9 P 3347430601 » 3,338,686,155
Diwide by Tozel Liabilities | 437,085,081 # 582200161 P 357,170,665
Jsselbo-Lisbifly Ratio 10:15:1 E7611 9:35=:1
Aszst-to-Equity Ratio Total Assers L 4 3436318372 P 3347430841 P 3,336,58%,195
Divida by: Tokal Eouity P 5805225546 @ 2,565 728510 # 2881 515530
Assel-to-Eouity Fatio 111:1 11341 112:1
Debeto-Equity Redo  Total Liabil ties [ 437,085031 P 392700361 EETA 1R
Divide by Tatal Faquity P 3,995,425.948 P 2,965, 228.510 # 2,8581,515530
Deby-ro-Equity Baths 011:1 £13:1 g:12:1
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Ratip Formula 2021 020 2049
Book Value parShare  Total Equity attributable Lo APL 3,75],238,096 P LTI 622363 P 2,734 771,805
Diw e by: Total No. of Ghares Outsianding. 253,686,349 197 280,336,345, 197 480,336, 345,207
Hrok Yeiue per Share 001282 # QLET0 * Q00376
Bosiz Carnings [Lossh Frofit [Loss) for the year alinbutabis APL 56231314 P (15,148,443 # (16,004,786}
parshare Doy by weighted Aus Mo, of Shares
Durstanding 2B4,453,015.264 IB0336, 345,287 LTE,759,774, 281
Basic Earnings (Loss) per Share Doooz1 ™ [ v [L000aE!
Results of Operations {December 31, 2021 vs. December 31, 2020
Fer the years endad December 31, Haorizontal Analyss Vertical Anzlyss
2021 FLir.i] I {D=) Hape 2021 204
Revenues L4 4 = A nfa nfa
0l rect ensts - nfa nfa nfa
Gross profit # 3 - n'a nia n/n
Ganeral & administragive costs 145,134,545} {15,734,516) (30,380.423]  193.08% nfa afs
Cperating loss [ 46,114, 245) P |15, 734,516) (30,580,928  193.08% nfa afa
Firmrige incomes 36,247 4,737 31,450 £35.62% nfa nfa
Firsncm costs [4,147,283) 1,276,450 (ZAT0745)  244.90% i Al
Share |0 hekearnings of associate 97,772 094 - a7 773,084 nfa
Other income/loszes —net (868,325} [3,860) (864.366) 71 HI7A% n'a nifa
Frofit {Loss) before tax banefit B 46,577,885 P [17,010,179) B3, EE3 018 -37441% n'a Afa
Inoome L@k banefs 140,003,038 728,129 9273525 1.283.34% if'd 2
Profit {Loss) for the periad L S5 ABGG1 P [18,287.020) 72867930 4B O1% n'a afa

GZeperal & Administrative Costs

The Groug's general & administrative costs increased by 193.08% % which was primarily due to the listing
fees pertaining to the follow-on offering and the listing of additional shares.

Finance Income

Total interest income increased by 655.62% arising from higher cash balance from the prozeeds in the

follow-on offering.

Fingnce costs

The 244.90% ircrease in intsrest is correlated to the additional interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

Share i Net Earnings of Associate

The arnount pertains to the 49% share in net earnings of PEOQ. Cetails of PBC's earnings comprise or an

impairment reversal of its shipping vessel.

Profit Before Tox

The Group reported a profit for the year which was attributable to the share in net earnings of PBQ. The
sarnings are related from the reversal of impairment from its shipping vessel and not from current

operations.

Incame Tox Benefit

Inceme tax banefit increased due the recognized deferred tax benefits from the Group’s net operating
losses carried over and from ECL impairment on its receivables from related parties.
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Einancial Condition December 31, 2021 vs. Decernbar 31, 2020)

s at Dacember 11 Horizon tal Analysis wertical Analysis
2021 paarie] I { Deec] Hage 071 20F0
ASSETS
Currert assets;
Cash #* 202450661 ¥ S09.057 WLl 604 23170400 83565 003%
Recelvables 3,334 563 - 3834563 e D.O9se n.00%
€ thor current Bszats 5,045,358 3,942.010 1107 348 2B10% T84 0.12%
Tntal purrent gesets L 11935182 4 851,067 106484115 4 25EATH 4765 0.1ot
HNor-clrrent assets:
Inwi stment s ossecate 4 BOG, 752974 P = B9, 75,574 nfa 1B:35% 0.00%
Bline properties 3315448,352 3,786,748 555 Xg, 700,027 0.51% Ta 73 20 .25%
Advances bo contraciors 41,453,333 fa EER.531 {3.438,.758] -7.55% DLE3Y 1345
Propeity & souipment — net a7 1ML5961 14172158 39,743,593 1,697 38% 0.95% =R ]
intang kle puger —net - 60, 77T 360,777 -100.00% oo 201%
Deferred tay amel 1,157,337 5,154,303 10.003.034 162, 54% D.36% 0.18%
Total riok-current assets L 4214383797 P 3,342,579 604 BEZ 404 193 26.40% a5 2495 OB
TOTAL ASSETS L3 4436313979 P 3.3—"-?‘,&30,5’!1 1,004,888, 308 Jr 53k Bl wilile 100005
LIABILITIES & ul
current Habilkties;
Avcounts-and other peveblies 1.4 Ja3s07 P &1,576,57% 134,%40,855) <B3 D% 0.16% 129%
inte regt-beanng lnans & bormowi ngs 23,500,000 13,550,000 5,650,000 B 1% 105% Bt
riivances Iram contracgtarns 51 070,200 55,151.000 35.81%, 200 £513% 0 53% 1. 65%
Tatal current Eabililies v 121705507 # 110,877,576 11,008 351 9 36% 2Ta4% 331
Mor-cy rrant lisbilities:
Interest-biearing lmans & borewings P 67,390.501 P 23,500,000 43,799,931 185.59% 182% 0.71%
fdvancas fram relused party 247,963,223 247924,585 LB,638 0.02% 580% Lane
Tatal nan-curment labdities i 315,363,124 F 171,514,585 43,858,539 16.15% T11% B11%
Total labliities #* 437083031 P 382,202,161 54,886,870 14,56 % SHER 11.81%
Enuuty:
Share capitad » LaipAR34Y P 2803, 363,493 123,200,000 4410 ES Q8% B3.75%
Shara pramium B6E,071,930 17,986,201 B50,485,01% 4,835 85% 19.57% 033%
| Accumidlated losses [42,485,777] {101, 325091) 58 B31314 <506 S0SHH =309 K
Tetal gguty sitriputakle to
Farent Conmpmn s
sharehoiders e 3, 752430696 P 2, 719532363 1,032 81¢333 ITSER B4, 50% EL3%%
Moa-taptrling intarost 236,791 352 14%505,147 1,185,108 48% 555K T.a34%
Total equity hud 3995379648 @ 2 8E5 228,510 1024001928 2.ETH S0.155% 8338%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EGLITY : 4 4436318575 W 347 A0 ETL 1088 888308 3258% 10000 100, 20%
Total Assets

Total assets of the Group increased by #1.1 billion (32.53%) arising from the fallow-on effering. The
proceeds were used to acguire 49% of PBO, additional machinery and equipment, while #200 miliion
remains unusad.

Other Current Assets
Other current assets increased by B1,107 848 (2B.10%). The increase in other current assets is primarlly

czused by the increase in input taxes from the purchase of additional machinery.

Mine Properties
IMine properties Include mineral assets, patent and mining costs. The increase in mine properties is
primarily caused by additional mining costs,

Froperty & Equipment — net

Proparty & equipment includes office furniture, fixturas and equipment and transportation vehicle. The
increase in property and equipment is primarily due to additions in machinery and equipment to be used
in the mining eperations.
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Defarred ok Assets
Ihe increase in the deferred tax assets account pertains to the recognized deferred taxes on the futura tax
deductibility of net operating losses carried over and ECL impairment.

Totol Liabilities
Taotal liabilities have Increased by P55 million (14.35%), which was primarly caused by increase in interest-
bearing loans and borrowings.

Interest-Bearing Loans & Borrawings

Loans & borrowings pertaing to loans from Cagayan Blue Ocean Qffshore Aguamarine Sarvices Corporation
(CBD). In 2021, the Group availed of additional loan from CBO amaunting to #53.4 milion for werking
capital purposes.

Total Equity

The increase in total equity of 1.0 billion in this account primarily pertains to the transactions on the
follow-en offering.

Results of Cperations (December 31, 2020 vs. December 21, 2018)

Fae thie years ended Docprober 31, Harirantal Analysis Verical Acatysis
010 019 Ine[Dez| Fadpe 2035 019
Ravenles P - B - n'a nE A
Direct costs - - n'a nio s
Gross profit L - p - n/a ] n'a
General & adminisirative costs [15,734.51E] |18,982.963] 3 2484947 17.11% nd nfa
Operating loss ¥ {15,734,31€} |18 582 G63) 3,242,447 AT nfa nia
Financa income 4,797 22970M (13IB727T) BATEK ] néa
Finance costs {L.278.450) [2,277.028) a00,578 41373 = i1
iOther ineomeTosses - net [3,960) (969} [2991)  J0BETH nia néa
103 before tax benefit r (17,010,129 #= (15 862 285) 1,858,757 ~2B5H nn nfa
|eeme tax bepefit 723,108 1,191.491 |&58.382)  -38.80% 'a 1z |
Lo for-the period P (16,287,020) {17,687 .355] 1400378 A% a8 s

Generol & Administrative Costs

The Group's gereral & administrative costs decreased by 17.11% % which was primarily due to the
decrease In mobilization costs, taxes and licenses, representation and transportation and travel (31.99% of
the total general and administrative cost).

Fingrnce Income
Total interest income decreasad by 99.79% since the Group |ost interest from loans recelvable which was
collected in 2019.

Prafit Before Tax
The decrease In loss before tax was primarily due to decrease in general and administrative cost incurred
during the period.

Income Tax Benefir
Incorme tax benefit decreased by 38.8% due the expiry of tax benefits from NOLCO and unrecognized
daferred tax benefits fram zurrent year [osses.
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Financial Condition December 31, 2020 vs. Dacembar 31, 2019)

Az at December 31, Horizental Anzhss Vartical Anaksis
2030 m3 ine |Gec) #age 1320 3018
ASSETS
Curmant assets:
Caah " 808057 P 1,284,390 {375,333) 29.30% 2.03% D.oa%h
CIither surrent assets 3,942,010 3,634,557 307453 BA6% 333% 0E1H:
Toal currart assets L 4851087 P 4,915,947 {67,880 -1 38% 3.15% D15%
Norn-current assets:
Kine properiies P 3285748565 P 3,284,054, 565 4,604,000 014% OE.IS% g8, 36%
Advan: esto contrael o 44 BES, 691 47 690,538 2,198,153 5.15% 1.34% L3a%
Propary & sgUipment = et 2,427,268 123017 1,197 a8 9731% 0% 2.04%
Intargible asset —net 360,777 360,777 - 000 0oik 8.01%
Tapliarrend Las auset B, 154 303 5431184 723,109 13:31% 0.18% D1E%
Total nor-current assels L 334zn/5608 P 3,333,767 248 8,B12,356 0.26% 55.35% 99 85%,
TOTAL ASSETS P 3347430671 # 3332 086,185 g, 744,476 03765% 10000%  103.00%
| B E ¥
Current liz billties:
Arcounts and otherpayakles L] 41576576 P 40,337 120 1,339,458 3.33% 134% ot
Inkerers-hearing inans & Borfowings 13,950,000 - 13,950,000 nfa Q4% Cook
Advznces frem cantractors 55,157, 000 55,153.00D - 0,007 1655 165K
— N
| Totzl current liabdibes i 11577576 P 95,388 120 15,280,456 16 D3%3 3T 3 BEM
Meire-current fig bilitses:
mterest-pearing loans & borowangs ¥ 00000 P 13,950,000 2,650,000 E9,18% 0.71% Ol
Deposits for future sEack
subseription. == 216, 140 562 {248,148 Sed) =100.CE 0.0 TATH
Aebvances fram refatod party 247,924 585 1,662 4H3 245,281,600 14631265 7.A0% {L.05%
Tatal nan-cuntent llahilities » 271524585 * 261,783 545 o 742.040 3% BALY 7R
Total lzbilities 4 382,202,161 # A6 4, ET0GES 15031496 TAL% 11.417% 10.050%
Equisyi
Share eapitzl P LB03,363493 ® LH03363,473 = e ] B3.75%, ER L
Share premm iam 17,586,991 17,585,968 - 0.00% 0.53% 0530
Accumulated lostis [101,328,081) |BE 178668 {15,149 443 17.58% =3 4)3% 2505
Toial equlty atinbuiatle 1o
Parent Company's )
charchaldars F 1718522363 P 2,754, 771806 [15,142,443| £ 559 21.25% 5142
Nig=coibrolling interest 245 BCE, 147 a6, /43,724 [1,137.577] <0 45k TEI% J39%
Total equlty L 2555223510 P 1,961,515,530 [15,287.020] £.55% g8 50 £521%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQLATY | 3 3347430671 P 3,338,65E,135 B 784 476 0:26%  100.00% 100004
Total Assets

Total assets of the Group increased by #8.7-million (0.26%), which was primarily caused by the increaze In
mine properties and advances ta contractors,

Other Current Assets
Othar current assets increased by P307,453 (8.46%). The increase in other current assets is primarily
caused by the increase in input taxes and construction bond,

Mine Properties
Mine properties include mineral assets, patent and mining costs, The increase in mine properties is
primarily caused by additional mining costs.

Property & Equipment —net
Property & equipment includes office furniture, fixtures and equipment and transportation vehicle. The
Inerease in property and equipment is primarily due to additions in office furniture and equipmeant.
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Total Liabilitles

Total liabilitics have Increased by P25-million (7.01%], which was primarily caused by increase in accounts
& other payables armounting to #1.34-million and interast bearing loans & borrowings amounting to P23.6-
millian,

Interest-Bearing Loons & Borrowings
Loans & borrowings pertains to loans from Cagayan Elue Ocean Offshore Aquamarine Services Corporation
(CBD). In 2020, the Group availed of additional lozn from CBO amounting to #23.6-million,

Accounts and Other Payabies
The increase in the balance of this account by P1.3d-million was due to the increase in accounts and
statutory payables and accrued expenses,

Total Equity
The decrease in total equity of #16.29-million [0 this account pertains to the net loss that the Group
incurred in its operations,

VI,  Financial Statements

The finencial staterents of the Company are incorparated herein by reference and attachied as an integral
part of this 5EC Form 17-A.

Vil Information on Independent Public Accountant and Other Related Matters

Independent Public Accountant

The Company appointed Valdes, Abad & Company, CPAs as external auditors, covering the audit of the
finanziz| statements for the year ended Dacember 31, 2021 and 2020, Their responsibility is to express an
opinian an the financial statements hased on their audits conducted in accordance with Philippine
standards on Auditing. Reyes Tacandong & Co. was the appointed external auditars for the year 2019
while Roxas, Cruz, Tagle & Co. was sppointed for the years 2016 to 2018.

None of the appainted external auditars have neither shareholding in the Company narany right, whether
legally entorceable or not, to nominate persons or to subscribe to the securities of the Company. The
indepzndent public accountants will not receive any direct or indirect interest in the Company and inany
securities thereof (including options, warrants, or rights theratn). The foregoing is in accardance with the
Code of Fthics far Professional Accountants in the Philippines set by the Board of Accountancy and
approved by the Professional Regulation Commission,

Audit and Audit-Relatad Fees
Fees approved in cannection with the assurance rerderad by the external auditers pursuant to the

regulatory and statutory requirements for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2013 amounts
to the following:

Sl 2071 [T e 2020 I 2018 At
Audit Fees 200,000 400,000 | 400.000

Tax fees
The independent external auditors did not render services for tax accounting, planning, compliance, advice,
or any other professional services for which it billed the Company the corresponding professional fees.

Chanees in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Trere were no disagreements with the independent external auditors for the years 2027 and 2020 on any
matter relating to accounting principles or practices, disclosure of financial statements, auditing sccpe and
procedures.
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PART Ill — CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Directors and Executive Officers of the lssuer

The overall management and supervisicn of the Company is undertaken by the Cornpany’s Beard of
Diractors. The Cormpany’s executive officers cooperate with the Company’s Board by preparing appropriate
information and documents concerning the Campany's business operations, financial condition and results

of operations for its review.

Board of Directars

Pursuant te the Company's latest amended articles of incorporation, approved by the SEC on Decemier
22, 2014, the Board shall consist of 11 members, of which two (2] are independent directors. The table
<uts forth each member of the Company’s Board of Directors as of December 31, 2021,

Name " Citizenship || Age | Position | |\ PenodServed!
Salvador &, Santos-Ceampg Filipine | 51 Chairman of the Board Ock, 2015 —prasent
Dayid M. De La Cruz Filiping 55 Director Feb. 2017 — present
| Mormian De Leon Filipino ad Director Dec. 2018 — present
Chnstopher €. Go Filipinn 53 Diractor Mar, 2018 — prasant
Bemadette Herrera-Dy Filipino 45 Diractor Mar, 2019 = pragent
Edwin T, Lim Filiping 45 Diractor Qct. 2015 — present
Vittoria Paulo P Lim Filipino 36 Director e 2015 = present
Jobn Dliver L Pascual Filipino 52 Director lan, 2020 — present
Liuyd Rezgan € Taboso Filipiro 40 Director Dec. 2018 — presant
Echwin Wiliam S, Tan Filipinis 53 Independent Director Mar. 2021 — present
Cegrge 0. Chua Cham Filiping 71 Independent Directar Mar. 2021 —present

Executive Dfficers

The table sets forth the Company's executive officers as of December 31, 2021,

[ T Name I"Citizenship | Age | Pesmion = |10 Period Setved
Salvador Aranetd Santos-Ccampo | Filizing 51 Chairman of the Board Oct. 2015 - present

| Wittorio Faulo P Lim Filizing 36 Prazident Dac. 2015 - prasent
Eclwin T. Lim Filizing 46 Treasurel Oct. 2015 — prasent
Ricardo L Saludo® Filiging E& Chief Dparating Officer Aug. 2011 —present
Christopher C. Go Filiging 53 Chief Financial Officer Mar, 2019 =presant
Lucky Dickinson T. Uy Filiping a9 Compliange Officer May 2017 —prasent
Kristing Joyee € Carp-Gangan Filiping 33 | Corporate Secretary Oct, 2015 - present

*Mr. Ricardo L. Saludo resigned from his position as Chief Operating Officer effective April 5, 2022 due to
othar commitments. The Board has elected Ms. Nympha R, Pajarillaga as Chief Operating Officer effective

Agril 5, 2022,

Business Experience and Other Directorshios

The business experience of ¢ach of the directors and executive officers of the Parent Company is as follows:

Mr, Salvador A. Santos-Ocampo

Chairman cof the Board
Education:

and Economics)

Professional Positions:

Beverage Specialist Corparation (2013-present)
Treaturer, Salvador Araneta Memorial Institute (2001-present)

Business Manzgement and Economics {International Academy of Management

President, Victoneta Rentals Corporation (2014-present), and SAMI Food and
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kr. Vittorio Paule P. Lim

Director/President

Education: Interdisciplinary Studies [Atenec de Manila University)

Prafessional Positions:  President, Y25 Praperty Developer Co., Inc,
Corporate Secretary, B and P Realty, Inc., Champaca Development Corporation,
2X2 Enterprises Co., Inc., VNP Properties Development Inc., Zelle Development
Corperation, Tarlac Centerpoint, Panlilic Centerpoint
Treasurer, Vini Agro Froducts, Inc,

Mr., Edwin T. Lim

Oirector/Treasurer

Education: Bachelar of Seience in Civil Engineering (Mapua Institute of Technalogy 1997)
Prafessional Positions; General Manager, BLIM's Textile Manufacturing Industries, Inc. {(2000-present)

Mr. Ricardo L. Saluda

Chief Operating Officer

Education: Rachelor of Arts in Literature [Atenec de Manila University 1977)
Master's in Media Management (Asian Institute of Journalism and
Communication 1584)
Masler of Science in Public Policy and Management (University of London 2009)
Postgraduate Diploma in Strategy and Innavation (University of Oxford 2011}
Enralled in Doctor of Theology and Ministry Program (Durham University)

Professiunal Positions; Lecturar, Enterprise Risk Maragement Academy [2018-present), Atenco de
Manila University [2011-2015), University of the Philippines (2011-2015)
Prasidential Spokesperson {2010), Chairman, Civil Service Cemmissian (2007-
2009), Cabinet Secratary (2002-2008)

M. Christopher C. Go

Directer/Chief Finance Cfficer

Education: Bachelor of Science in Accountancy (De La Salle University 1588)

Licensure: Certified Public Accountant

Professional Positions:  President/CEC, Maderno Citihomes Development Corporation, Perfectspot
Development Incorporated, Nation Builders Global Legistics Corp., and Sky
Builders Develogpment Corporation

Mr. David M. De La Cruz

Director

Education: Bachelar of Arts in Econamics and Bachelor of Sciznce in Commerce major in
Accounting (De La Salle University 1986)
Master's Degree (De La Salle University 2001)

Professional Positions:  EVP/CFO, Sta, Lucia Land, Inc. (2012-present)

Mr. Norman de Leon

Director

Education: Bachelor of Science i Information and Communications Technalogy (San Beda
College Manile 2012)

Prafessional Positions:  President and Authorized Managing Dfficer, MW Construction and Trading
Corparation [2015-present]

#o0llo Ghobal Capieal, inc. B Subsdlaries
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Ms. Bernadette Herrera-Dy

Director

Edutation: Bacheler of Sclence in Business Economics (University of the Philippines)
Waster of Science In Finance (University of the Philippines)

Professional Positiens: Congresswoman, 18" Congress of the House of Representatives (Bagong
Henerasyon Partylist)
Chairperson, Committee on Women and Gender Equality (17 Congress)
Vice-chalrpersan, Committes on Welfare of Children (17™ Congress)

Mr. John Oliver L. Pascual

Director

Education: Bachelar of Arts In Fconomics (De La Salle University)

Prafessional Positions:  Dirsctor, Level Up Gastronamy Inc,, WLCL Manpower Solutions Iric.
Treasurer and Managing Directar, Philippines International Life Insurance Co.,
Inc.
Managar and Director, Filipina Loan and Credit Corperation

Mr. Lloyd Reagan C. Taboso
Director
Ecucation: Bachelor of Arts in Multimadia Arts {De La Salle-College of Saint Benilds]
Professional Pasitions: VP and Co-Founder, Cignus Philippines Inc,
VP, Cagayan Blue Ocean Aquamarine Services Corp.

Mr. Lucky Dickinson T. Uy

Camplignce Officer

Fducation: Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering (De La Salle Univarsity 2005}
professional Pasitions:  Stockbroker, SB Equities (2017-present) and Venture Secunties (2013-2017)

Atty. Kristina Joyee C. Caro-Gangan

Corporate Secrelary

Education: Bachelar of Arts, Major in Political Scienice, cum laude (University of the
Philippines 2002)
Bachelor of Laws {University of the Philippines 2006)

Licensure: Philippine Bar - Lawyer

Professional Positions:  Partner, Picazo Buyeo Tan Fider & Santas Law Dffices

Mr. Edwin William S. Tan

Independent Director

Education: Bachelor of Science in Management of Financial Institutions {De La Salle
University)

Professional Pasitlans:  President/CEQ, Brent Group of Companies (2014-present), Liguigaz Corporation
{2019-present), and Federal Brent Retail Corporation (2002-present]
Chairman, Brenton International Yenture Manufacturing Corporation (1997-
present), Eco Savers Group Vertures Incorparated (2018-present), and Inland
Quality Gaz Ventures Incorporated (2020-present)
Director, BMF Gas Corporation (1995-present), EWT Corporation (2005-present),
Albert Smith Signs Corporation {1997 -present), and Maysun Realty Development
Corperation (2002-present)
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Mr. George Q. Chua Cham
Indepandeant Director
Education: Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering (University of the Philippines-Diliman)
Professional Positions: Board Member, Federation of Filipino Chinese Chambers of Commerce and
Industry (1929-present)
Chairman, Belt and Road Initiate Commitiee, Federation of Filipino Chinese
Chambers of Commerce and Industry [2013-present)
President, Urique Lumber Inc., Dagupan City and Aztec Construction and
Equipment Inc.
Farmer Chairman, Education Committee and External Affairs Office of FFCCCI,
Pangasinan Universal Institute Board of Trustees, PEDPFI Pangasinan, Pangasinan
skill Compatition Foundation {TESDA), Dagupan Chinese Baptist Church, and
Morth Philippines Business Cauncil
Farmer Presidant, Pangasinan Fllipino Chinese Chamber of Commerce, UP
Filipino-Chinese Student Association
Former District Commodere, 77 Coast Guard District, PCGA
Membezr, YMCA Gideans Red Cross

Executive Compensation

All of the Company's directors and officers have not received any form of compensation lrom inception up
to present other than a per diem for each meeting ettended and annual per diem during stockholder's
mesting. There is no employment contract between the Company and the current execulive officers. (n
addition there are nio compensatary plans or arrangements with respect the named executive officers that
resufted in or will result fram the resignation, retirement or termination of such executive directar or from
a change-in-cantrol in the Company.

The Company has no price or stock warrants.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Security Qwnership of Certain Record and Bengficial Owners

The persons or groups identified in the table below ars known to the Company as directly orindirectly the
record or beneficial owners of mare than five percent (5%) of the Company's voling securities as of
December 31, 2021:

et | R O G B Rl O e A p s
Ciase. ||:208 Aelationshipith | | and Relationship with - LCitzsnship | aRareent
ARESEET ok : = Hecord Owner DTS TR e e i
| Comman | FCD Kominee Filiging 181,815,582, 540| 62.12%
Corperation {Filiging)
Comman | PCC Nomines Nan-Flliping 110,417,823 314 I7.73%
Corperation (Foreign)

PCD Nomines Corporation (PCO) is a nominee of the Philippine Depository & Trust Corporation (POTC) and
the registered owner of the shares recorded in the books of the Company's stock and transfer agent. FCD
is a private entity organized by major institutions actively participating in the Philippine capital markets to
implementan automated book-entry system of handling securities transactions.
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Security Dwnership of Management
The following table shows the shares beneficially owned by the directors and officers of the Company as

of December 31, 2021:

b | Rema ot Record Ownet /| Nama of Baclicisl Dwner || S S e
Cis’ | and Relationship with | . and Relaticnship vith enshipyitlocnfzhares Heig | i acgent.
{ |esuar 00 Repord Cwrier L e N T, d Bl
Common | Lioyd Reagan C.Tabhoso | Lloyd Reagan C Taboso Filiping 46,471,972,000(D}| 15.88%
Comman | John Oliver L, Pascual lohn Olwer L. Fascual Filiping 1,080,000 (D) 0.00%
Common | Edwin T. Lim Edwin T. Lim Filiping 258,700 (D) 0.00%
Cammen | David M. De La Cruz Mavid M. Be La Cruz Filipina 100,000 (3) 0.00%
Common | ChristogherC. Go Christopher C. Go Filigina 100,000 (5} 0.00%
Commen | Edward Willlam 5, Tan Edward William 5. Tan Filipino 160,00 (D) 0.00%
Common | Lucky Dickinson 7. Uy Lugky Dickinson T, Uy Fillpino 10,C00 () 008
Common | Vittoro Paula P. Lim Vittorio Paule P. Lim Filipino 9.100i0) 0.00%
Commeon | George 0. Chua Cham George 0. ChuaCham Filiping 1,00040) 0.00%
Common | Salvador 4. Santos- Salvador A, Santos- Filipino 10340} 0,008
Ocampa Ocampo.
Commeon | Ricardo L. Saludo Ricardo L, Saluda Filipira 102 (D) 0.00%
Common | Bernadette Herrera-Dy Bernadette Harrera-Dy Filiping 1[0} 0.00% |
Common | Morman De Laan Morman Da Leon Filipimo [s}{}) 0.0c%
Comman | kristina loyee C. Caro- Knistina Joyee C. Carg- Flipino oim q.ocx
Gangan Gangan

Voting Trust Holders
There is no party known to the Compsny as holding any vating trust or any similar arrangernent far five
percent [5%) or more of the Company’'s voting sacurities.

Xll. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Thare are no significant employees and no family relationships among the current directors and officers,
as well as the nominated directors and officers.

Transactions with Related Parties

The Company enters into transactions with affiliates and other related parties on an arm’s length basis.
Algned with thie thrust, the Company, in dealing with affiliates and other related parties, ensures above-
board transactions and fairness and eguity among all parties.

The Company exerts efforts to obtain the most beneficizl terms and conditions far the Company, taking.
into cansideration various factors including pricing and quality.

For this purpose, the Company determines the prevailing and applicable price inthe market. Inthe pracess,
it also gathers quates andfar proposals from other parties engaged in similar or the same undertaking.
Based on these, a comparable summary is presented to ascertain a fair price for the applicable related
party transacltion,

Moving forward, the related party transaction committee shall review all related party transactions of the
Camgany.

Related party transactions are discussed in Mote 21, Related Party Transactions, 1o the 2021 audited
financial statements.
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PART IV — CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

¥, Corporaie Governance

The Manual on Corporate Governance (MOCG) of the Group details the standards by which it conducts
cound corporate governance that are coherent and consistent with relevant laws and regulatory rules, and
constantly strives to create value for [ts shareholders.

Evaluation Systam
Evaluation is delegated to the Compliance Cfficer whao is part of the Company’s manzgement and s tasked

with the manitoring compliznce with the MOCG and ralated impositions of regulatory agencies.

Ultimate responsibility for the Group’s adherance to its MOCG rests with its Board of Directors, who
maintains four [4) committees, each charged with oversight inte specific areas of the Group's businass
activities:

e Ths Cxeculive Committes (EC) assists the Board cf Directors in oversignt responsibilities over the
Graup and execution of strategies and practices including regulatory and ethical compliance
monitoring.  The EC ensures that the Group conducts its business following sound corporate
governance principles and in accordance with relevant laws and regulatory rules. They are alsa tasked
with overall risk management of the Group.

s The Audit Committee [AC) is responsible far recammending the external auditor and ensuring that
non-audit work does not compromise their independence. The AC reviews financial and accounting
matters.

«  Tha Naminatians Committee (NC) s charged with ensuring that membership to the Board of Directors
is filled by gualified members. The NC also ensures fair representation of independent members on
the Board of Directors by formulating screening pelicies to effectively review the qualification of
nominees for independent directors.

» The Compensation and Remuneration Committee (CRC) is tasked to ensure falr compensatian
practices are adhered ta throughout the arganization.

heasures Taken to Comply with Adopted Leading Practices on Good Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors of the Group hoids regular meetings, each with a valid guorum. The Hoard
committzes regularly meet to ensure fair corporate governance standards were being apalied throughout
the crganization.

Deviations from the MOCG
The Group it committed to fostering good corporate governance practices including a clear understanding

by directors of the Group's strateglc objectives, structures 10 ensure that the ohjectives are being met,
systems to ensure the effective management of risks, and the mechanisms te ensure that the Group's
abligations are identified and discharged in all aspects of its business.

Plans to Improve Corporale Governance
The Group continues to evaluate and review its MOCG to ensure that the leading practices en good
corporate governance are being adopted.
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PART V — EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES

¥V, Exhibits and Reports on 5EC Form 17-C

List of Corporate Disclosuras under SEC Farm 17-C (Current Reports)

APL reported the following items on SEC Form 17-C for the year 2021:

Document | Flling | ltem e L R g
Date .Déte—s N;:r. i3 Mgtter : e :

| Jan. 31 Feb. 1 S | Clarification of News Report — Apallo Global announces subsidiary’s start of

| magnetite mining opzrations in Cagayan

| Feb.l Feb. 1 9 | Press Release — Apollo Global Capital, Inc (APL) is pleased to announice that

its subsidiary, IDVC Resaurces Corp. Is ready to commence production of

magnetite iron ore this February 2021

Feb. 1 Feb, 1 & |[Amend] Press Release — Apallo Glubal Capital, Inc (APL) is pleasad to

announce that its subsidiary, JOVC Resources Corp. fs ready to commence

production of magnetite iron ore this February 2021

Feb. 8 Fab. 8 | & |Clarification of News Report — Apello Global prepares for Follow-On

Offering

Feb. 8 Fzb. 9 o | {Amend] Clanfication of News Report — Apollo Global prepares tor Follow-

On Offering

Febh. 9 Fab, B o | Follow-Orn Offering of Apolla Global Capital, Inc.

Feb 15 | Feh.16 | 9 |[Heply to Exchange’s Query — Purchase of a 453 stake in Poet Blue Ocean

Pte, Ltd. by Apollo Global Capital, Inc.

Mar. 1 Mar,2 | 4 |ChangeinIndependant Director —Resignation of Klarence Dy and

Appointment of Edward Willlam 5. Tan

Mar. 5 Mar,8 | 4 |[ChangeinIndependent Director — Resignation of Den G. Contreras . and

Appointment of George 0. Chua Cham

Mar. 5 har, 8 4 |[Amend] Change in Independent Cirector — Resignation of Den G.

Contreras Ir. 2nd Appaintment of Gaorge O Chua Cham

Anr. 14 | Apr.15 | 9 |Press Release - Deployment of first deep sea siphon mining vessel by AFL's

subsidiary, JODVC Resources Corporation

May 7 May7 | 8 |Supplemental Report to Results of Exploration and Mineral Resource

Estimates

Jun. 15 | Jum, 16 | 9 |Clarificatians relating to JDVE Resources Corparation
Jun, 26 | Jun 30 | 4 |Death of Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Gary B, Olivar
lul. 7 Jul. 7 9 |Elzcticn of Replacement Chzirman for 1DVC Resources Corporation
Aug. B Aug. 9 9 |Foliow-On Cffering Pra-Effective Letter
Aug. 13 | Aug. 13 | 9 |Follow-Dn Offer Final Dffer Price
Aug. 20 | Aug. 20 | 9 |Foreign Ownership Limit
Aug. 20 | Aug. 23 | 9 |[Amend] Fereign Ownership Limit
Aug. 27 | Aug 31 | 4 |Election of New Chief Operating Officer
| Aug.27 | Aug.31 | 9 |Results of Follow-0On Offering
Aug. 31 Sep, 1 9 |Follow-Dn Qffering [FOQ) Met Proceeds and Use of Proceeds
Sep. 20 | Sep.21 | 2 |Acguisition of Pozt Blue Ocean Offshore Services Pte. Ltd, (PBC)
Sep.22 | Sep.22 | 2 |PSE Disclosure - Substantial Acquisition Relating to Acquisition of Poet Blue
Ocean Cffshore Services Pte. Lid.
Sep. 22 | Sep.23 | 2 |PSE Disclosure — Acquisition of Poet Blue Ocean Offshore Services Pte, [td.
(PBO)
Sep, 27 | Sep. 28 | 9 | New Mines Consortium Agreement of IDVC Resources Corporation
Sep. 27 | Sep.28 | 9 |Memerandum of Understanding for Indonesia Mining Projact
Cct, 15 | Oct. 15 | 9 | Annual Stockholders’ Meeting for the ‘Year 2021
Dec. 10 | Dec. 13 | 9 | Results of the 2021 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
Dec. 10 | Dec. 13 | 9 |Results of Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directars ]

See attached exhibits.
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SEC Regisiration Number
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Company Name
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Principal Office (No/Street/Barangay/City/Tawn/Province)
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COMPANY INFORMATION
Compuny's E-mail Address Company's Telephone Numberfs Mobile Nomber
N/A (632) 8532-8654 N/A
No. ol Stockholders Annual Meeting (Month/Tiay) Fiseal Year (Month/Dav)
805 Last Friday of Junc December 31

CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION

The designsied contact person MUST be an Officer of the Corporation

Name of Contaet Person F-mail Address Telephone Number/s Muobile Number

Kristina Joyce Caro-Gangan main{@picazolaw.com (632) 8532-8654 N/A

Contnet Person's Address

Unit 504 Galleria Corporate Center, Edsa Corner Ortigas Avenue, Brgy. Ugong Norte, Quezon City

Note 1 I case of deatk, resignation or eessation of affice of the OTieer designuted us conbisst person, such incidint shall be reported to the Commission within thirgy (30)
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Apolio Global Capital

Statement of Management’s Responsibility
for Consolidated Financial Statements

The Meanzzemeri: of Apclio Global Capital, Inc. & Subsidiaries (the Group) is respensible for the preparation
and fairprezentation of the consollidated finenda! stataments including the schadules srtached theren, a5 at
December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the three years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 end 2029, fn
aceordsnce with Phllippire financial Reporting Standsrds, and for such internal control s Managemant
detriminesis necessary toeneble the preparstion of the consolidared finaneial statements that are free from
misterizl misstatement, whether dus to fraud or erron

In preparing the consolictated financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Groun's
ability to cortinue as 3 gomg cancern, disclosing, as aoplicable, matters related to going concam, and using
the gomg cohoern basia of accounting urless Mansgement either frtends Lo fguldate the Grouporiecease
operations, or has no reslistic alternative to da so.

The Board of Directors ks respansibie for overseaing the Group's fimancial raparting process,

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated finandial srarements including the schedules
attached therein, andsubmitsthe same to the sharshslders,

Valdes Abad & Company, CPAs, the independent audiars appointad by the shareholders has audited 1he
consofidated financist scamements of the Group in aconrdance with Phifippine Standards on Aud iting, @nd in
'ts report tathe shareholders, has expressed its opinfon on thafairnass of presentation upon completion of
such audit,

cr, # P
4
sohdior A Santos Ocampa Vittoria Fuulo P, Him E'!'\ui%‘ﬂmrt.ﬂq
Chief Fhadcs

Chairmar of the Dosrd President cial Offigar

Signed this 16 day of May, 2022,
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|_ 3 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Stockholders and Board of Directors

APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC, AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly Yehey! Carparation and Its Subsidiary)

Unit 504, Galleria Corperate Center, EDSA comer Ottigas Ave.,
Brgy. Ugong Norte, Quezon City

Cpinion

We have audited the consolidated finaucial statements of APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC, ANDITS
SUBSINIARY (Formerly Yehey! Corporation and Its Subsidiary) which comprse the statements af
finanzial position es of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the relaicd consolidated statements of income,
consolidated statements of changes in equity, and consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, and notes to the fnaocial statements, mcludmg a summary of sizaificant
aecounting policies.

Inr our epinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all niaterial respects, the
finanzial position of APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY (Formerly Yehey!
Cosporation and Its Subsidiary) as of December 31, 2021 snd 2020 and of its financial performances and it
cash flows for the years ended Devermber 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 in secordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PTRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in pecordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our responsibilites
uiider those sianidards are further described i the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated
Financial Statements seetion of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtamed is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

ey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most signilficance in our audit
uf the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2021, These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion cn these matters.

We have fulfillsd the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audir aof the
Consclidated Financial Statements section of sur repert, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit inchuded the performance of procedurcs designed to respond lo our assessment of the risks of
rnatarial misstatement of the consclidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audil ppinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter identified in our audit and how we addressed the matter is summarized as follows:
(@) Impairment Assessment of Ming Properties

The carrying amount of mine properties amounted io P3.4 billion as of December 31, 2021 This represents
2% of the Group’s total assets and the management assesses the impairment of its mine properiies whengver
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events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amouni of the asset may 1ot be recoverable,
"This matter requires the use of significant judgments and estimales and hence, 15 significant to our auclit.

Audit resnonse

We reviewed managenient’s detenmination of impaiment mdicators and management's asscssment on the
recoverability of mine propesties. We evaluated the assumptions used by the Group which inclade the
estimnled reserves, foreign exchange rate and discount rate and compared them against available markel and
industry information, laking into account a market participant’s ability to geperate esonomic benefits by using
{lie assel in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the assel in
its highest and best use. We also reviewed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures in Note 4, Significint
Judgment, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions, and Note 13, Mine Properties of the consolidated
financial statements,

Respounsibilities of Management and Those Churged with Governance for the Financial Stalements

Management is responsible for the preperation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statemens
in accordunce with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary (o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the consolidated financial stalements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a poing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 10 going concern and nsing
the poing concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or tn cease
pperations, or has ne realiste alternutive but to-do so.

Those charged witl governance are responsible for oversceing Lhe Group's finanvial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Respoasibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtsin reasonable assurauce about whetler the consolidated Tnanciz] slatements as a
whele are frée from material misstatemant, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o issue an guditor”s report that
includes our opinion, Reasonable assurancz is & high level of assurance but is not a guaraniee that an sudit
condueted i accordance with PSAs will always detect p material misstatement when 1 exists, Misstatemenis
cun arse from frawd or error and are considered material if, individually or in the agaregate, they could
reazonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users laken on the basis of these consolidared
[innneinl statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

{1) Identify and assess the risks of meterial misstatement of the consolidated {inancial statements,
whether due to Faud or error: 1o desien and perform audit procedures responsive 10 those risks:
aud 1o obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for the auditor’s
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fiaud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may mvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(if) Obtain an understanding of intemal centrol relevant to the audit in order w design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circomstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. ln circumstances when the auditor
also has a responsibility to express an opinion on the effectivencss eof internal coatrol in
conjunction with the audit of the financial statements, the auditor shall omit the phrase that the
auditor”s consideration of intemal control is not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

iii) Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates end related disclosures made by management,

(iv) Conelude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisiz releted o evenis
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If the anditor concludes that a materia] uncertainty exists, the auditor is required to
deaw attention in the auditer’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated finsncial
statements or, if such disclosures are madequate, to modify the opinion. The anditor’s
conclusions are bascd on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report,
However, future events or conditions may cause & Group to cease to conlinue as 8 going concem.

v Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated fnuncial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
trangactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

(vi) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the fnancial information of (he entities
or business activities within the Group (o express an opinion on the counsolidated financizl
statements. We are responsibls for the direction, supervision and performance of the andit, We
remain salely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit und significunt audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in interual contral
that we identifv during our audit.

We alzn provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to conmunicate with them all relationships and other matiers that
way be reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we defermine those matters that were
ol most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current perind and are therefore the key
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aadit matters, We describe thesa matters in our auditor’s report unfess law or regulzlion precludes public
disclosure about the matier or when, in extemely rare circumstancey, we determine that a maiter should not
he communicated in our report beeause the adverse consequences of domg so would rea sonably bé expectetd
lu cutsveial the public interest benefits of such communication.

Oiher Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-18 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Reporn for
the year ended December 31, 2021 butdaes not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The SEC Form 20-18 (Definitive Tformation Sttement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
for the vear ended December 31, 2021 are expected to be made available 1 vs after the date of this auditors’

report.

Our opinion on tie conselidated {inancial stalements does not cover the other information and we will not
eapress any form of assurance conclusion therson.

In. conneetion with our andit of the consolidaied financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identificd above when il becomes available and, in domg so, consider whether the other
information is materinlly inconsistant with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledgze obtained
inn Uie audit or otherwise appesrs 1o be materially misstated.

VALDES ABAD & COMPANY, CPAy
BOAPRC Rep, No. 0314

Tssued on July 20, 2021, Valid unti] Tuly 14, 2024
BIR Accreditation No, 08-002126-000-2021

Issued on March 19, 2021, Valid until March 18, 2024
SEC Accreditason No.0314-8EC, Group A

lssucd on February 23, 2022
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APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly Yehey! Corporation and its Subsidiary)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
{In Plhiflippine Pesa)
December 31,
ASSETS Notes 2021 2020
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 11 202,450,661 909,057
Receivables 12 3.834,663 .
Other current asscts 13 5,049,858 3.942010
Totul Current Assets 211,335,182 4,851,067
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Mdvances 1o camtractons 14 41,453,933 44 858,601
Investrnent in an associate 15 809,752,974 =
Mine properties 16 3,315,448,592 3,288 748 565
Prapery and equipment, net 17 42,170,961 2,427,263
Website cost 18 - 360,777
Deferred tax nsset 28 16,157,337 6,154,305
Totul Non Current Assets 4,224,983.797 3.342,579,604
TOTAL ASSETS L 4,43:1313,979 3.347 430,671
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts and ofher payables 19 T435,707 41,576,570
Advaneces from contraciors 21 91,070,200 55,151,000
Intercst-bearing loans & borrowings. cutrent portion 20 23,600,000 13,950,000
Tatal Current Liabilities 121,705,507 110,677,576
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans & borrowings, net of current portion 20 67,399,901 23,600.000
Advances from related parties 24 247,983,223 247,924,585
Total Non-Current Liabilities 315,383,124 271,524,545
EQUITY
Share capital 22 2,926,863.493 2,803,303,493
Share premium 23 868,071,280 17,586,961
Deficit (42,496,777) (101,328,091}
Total squity attributable to Parent Company s sharcholders 3,752,438,696 2,719,622,363
Equity ottributable to non-controlling interest 246,791,252 245 606,147
Tetal Equity 3,999,229 048 2,965228.510
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 4,436,318.979 3,347 430,671

Se gecomprnying Notes s the Consolidmted Fineaeial Statements
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APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUESIDIARIES

(Formerly Yehey! Corporation and its Subsidiary)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(T Philippine Pesol

For the Years Ended December 31, Notes 2021 2020 2019
SHARE IN NET EARNINGS OF AFFILIATES 15 97,772,094 - -
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 25 (46,114.945) (15,734,516] (1%,982,963)
FINANCE INCOME 27 36,247 4,797 2,292,074
FINANCE COSTS 27 (4,147,185) (1.276,450) (2,177,028)
OTHER CHARGES, NET 27 (868.326) {3.960) {969)
INCOME(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 46,677,885 (17,010,129} (18,8068,886)
INCOME TAX BENEFIT 28 10,003,034 723,109 1,181,491
NET INCOME(LOSS) 56,680,919 {16,287,020) {17,687,393)
NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Equity holders of the Parent Company 58,831,314 (15,149,443 (16,001,780)

Non~controlling interest (2,150,395) (L,137,577) (1,685,609

56,680,919 (16,287,020} (17,687,393)

BASIC EARNINGS(LOSS) PER SHARE 29 0.000207 (0.000054) (0.000057)

See avownnpanyiing Notes ta the Conselidated Financiol Statene s
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APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC, AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly Yehey! Carporation and its Subsidiary)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(T Fliilippine Pesol

For the Yenrs Ended December 31, Motes 2021 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income(Lass) before tax 46,677,885 (17,010,129) (18,868,886)
Adjustment for:
Share in net earnings of affiliates 15 {97,772.094) -
Provision for credit losses 12, 14 4,375,583 -
Amortization 18 360,777 - -
Depreeistion 17,25 360,558 580,054 418,573
Interest income 11,27 {36,247) (4,796) {2,292,074)
Interest expense 20,27 4,147,185 1,276,450 21710248
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 11,27 868,326 3,960 9G4
Operating income before changes in worlking capital (40,518,030) (15,154,461) {18,564,390)
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables {4,265,860)
Advances to contractors (509,628) (2,198,153) (2.112.575)
Oither current assets (1,107.848) (262,007) (830,021)
Increase {decrease) in:
Accounts and other payables (38,688,054) 63,005 (1,059.701)
Advances fram contractors 35,919,200 - 3,631,000
Cash used in opermtions (49.170,220) (17,551,616) [18.965.687)
Interest incame received 11, 27 36,247 4,794 19,753
[ncome taxes paid 28 - (45,446) {45.446)
Net Casli frem Operating Activities (49,133,973) (17,592,266) (18,991,380)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additional acquisition of ownership in subsidiary 2 - - (267,607,110)
Investment in an associate 15 (711,980,880) -
Collection oft
Loans recetvable - - 254,500,000
Interest receivable - - 12,834,071
Advances to related parties 24 - - 2,595,022
Additicos to:
Mine properties 6 (26,700,027) (4.694.000) (26.900,514)
Property and equipment 17 (40,604,248) (1.777,148) (1,573,129)
Net Cash from Investing Activities (779,285,155) (6.471,148) {26,186,337)
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APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND IT8 SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly Yehey! Corperation and its Subsidiary)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - Continuation
(Far Philippine Pesa)
For the Years Ended December 31, Notes 2021 2020 el VIS
CASH FLOWS FRROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Loans & borrowings 20 53,449,901 23.600,000 63,950,000
Advanees from related party 24 58,638 92,041 -
Issuance of shares 2223 973,985,019 -
Mon-controlling interest on issued shares by subsidiary 3,335,500 -
Repayment of:
Loans & borrowings 20 - - {10,000,000)
Advances from related party 24 * (179,981
Return of deposits for future stock subscriptions - - (8,077,745)
Interest paid - - {774,250)
Met Cash Flow from Financing Activities 1,030,829.058 23,692,041 44 918 024
EFFECTS OF
EXCHANGE RATE CIIANGES ON CASH 11,27 (B68,326) (3,960) {969)
NET INCHREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 201,541,604 (375,333) (260,662}
CASI, BECINNING 11 909,057 1,284 390 1,545,052
CASH, ENDING 11 202,450,661 909,057 1,284,390

See uceampiriying Notes w the Consolidnied Finnuciol Statenents
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APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(Formerly Yehey! Corporation and its Subsidiary)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019

’_NUTI‘I 1-GENERAL INFORMATION

APOLLD GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC, (the "Parent Company or APL™), formerly known as YEHEY!
CORPORATION, was incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the Securities and Exchange
Cammission (SEC) per SEC Registration No. A 199806865 on June 10, 1998, Prior to the apptoval of the change
in the corporate name and its business on October 7, 2016, the Parent Company's primary purpose is to engage in
the business of internal online-related products relating to database search engine, such as, but net limited 1o,
conceptualizing, designing, illustrating, processing and editing websites; to engage in other pre-production and
postpraduction wark on websites in the intemet; and to sell and market said products in the form of advertising
of finished products in the domestic or export market,

On August 9, 2012, the SEC approved the Parent Company's application to list P278 million commen shates by
way of introduction in the second board of the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) at an initial price of P1 per share.
On October 18, 2012, the Parent Company was listed in the PSE,

Az of December 31, 2014, the Parent Company is 66.95% owned by Vantage Equities. Inc. (Vantage), a company
aleo incorpordted in the Philippines and listed in the PSE. On July 7, 2015, Vantage entered into & Sale and
Purchase Agreement (SPA), with third party buyers for the sale of the entire shares owned by Vantage. Under the
SPA, the closing of the transfer of the Sale Shares is subject to and conditioned upon the conduct and completion
of a mandatory tender offer as well as the payment of the purchase price, which conditions have been complicd
with on October 15, 2015, Accordingly, en October 15, 2015, the Parent Company ceased as a majority owned
subsidiary of Vantage when Vantage sold its shares at #290 million to a group of individual shareholders.

Pursuani to the SPA, the Board of Directors (BOD) of the Parent Company approved on Oclober 30, 2013 the
ussignment of the noncash assets and liabilities of the Parent Company to Vantage. Total amount assigned 15 a net
liability of P2,693,438. Such amount was recognized as miscellaneous income in the Parent Company's 2013
separate statement of comprehensive income.

On December 7, 2013, the BOD approved the change of the Parent Company’s name from YEHEY!
CORPORATION to APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. The amendment was {iled with the SEC and was
approved on Ogtober 7, 2016, Along with the change in the corporate name, the Parent Company's primary
purpose was likewise amended to that of a holding company which is to invest in, purchase, or ctherwise acquire
and owi, hald, use, sell, assign, transfer, lcase, mortgage, guarantee, exchange, develop, or otherwise dispose of
teal or personal property of every kind and description, including shares of stock, bonds, debentures, notes,
evidences, of indebtedness, and other securities, or obligations of any corporation or corporations, associations,
domeslic or foreign, and to possess and exercise in respect thereof all the rights, powers and privileges of
ownership.

The current registered office address of the Parent Campany is located at Unit 304, Galleria Corporate Center,
EDSA corer Ortigas Ave., Broy. Ugong Note, Quezan City,

JDVC Resources Corporation (refarred (o as “JDVC” or the “Subsidiary™) was incorporated and registered with
the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on November 24, 2011 under SEC Reg. No.
CS201120574, The Subsidizry iz primarily established to carry on business of exploring. prospecting and
operating mines and quarries of all kind of ores and minerals, metallic and non-metallic, such as nickel, iron, gold,
copper, silver, lead, manganese, chromite, molybdenite pyrite, sulfur, silica, kaolin clay, zeolite, perlite,
dintamaceous earth, diorite, basalt, gabbro, coal, hydrocarbans, oil, natural gas, ete.; filing, negotiating or upplying
for mineral agresments, operating asreements, mining leases, timber and water rights and surface rights, and of
milling concentrating, processing, refining and smelting such minerals, and manufacturing, utilizing, trading,
marketing or selling such mineral products, likewise acquiring and operating all kinds of equipment, vehicles,
instruments, machineries, chemicals supplies and other logistic structures that may be vital and necessary for the
furtherance of the foregoing purposes, with lizancial and technical assistance agreement witl the povernment.
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The Subsidiary's principal and administrative office address is a1 2nd Floor L&L Bldg., Panay Ave. Cor. EDSA,
Quezon City.

The Parent Company and its subsidiary are collectively known herein as the “Group”. On February 17, 20 17, the
Parent Company and JDVC’s sharehiolders entered into a Deed of Exchange of Shares where in the latier had
issued 247,396,071,520 shares (par value of 20.01 per share) in exchange for 4,133,740 shares (par value of P100
per share) at an exchange price of P598.48 of the latter. The deed covering the transaction was approved by SEC
on Ootober 9, 2017, As a result of this transaction, the Parent Company now owns §2.67% of IDVC,

In December 2019, the Parent Company purchased additional 389,530 shares of JDVC from its existing
stockholders for P267.6 million resulting to an increase in ownership of JIDVC to 90.47%,

Approvad of financial statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Group as at December 31, 2021 {incliding
comparalive amounts as at December 31, 2020 and for the vears ended December 31. 2020 and 2019) were
approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on May 16, 2022.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Stutement of complizgnee

The accompanying consalidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Stendards (PFRS). PFRS are based on International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Litzmutional Accounting Standards Board (PASB). PFRS consist of PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards
(PAS) and Philippine Interpretations issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC).

2.2 Busiy of preparation
The consclidated financial slatements of the Group have been prepared using the measurement bases specified by

Philippine Financial Reperting Standards (PFRS) for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

2.3 Going Concern Assumption

The preparation of the accompanying condensed consolidated financial siatements of the Group is based on the
premise that the Group operates on a going concern basis, which contemplate the realization of assets and
setliement of liabilities in the normal course of business, The management does not intend to liquidate,

2.4 Functivial and presentalion carreney

The consalidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (#), which is the funetional currency of the
Group.

flems included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using its functional currency.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.

All valuss are presented in absolure amounts and are rounded off to the nearest peso except when otherwise
indicated.

2§ Rasis of consalfidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
its subsidiary, aller the elimination of intercompany transactions.

The financial statements of the subsidiary are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent Company.
Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform sccounting policies for similar transactions and
other events in similar circumstanees. Intercompany balances and transactions, including intercompany profits
and losses, are eliminated in full. Unrealized profits and losses from intereompany transactions that are recognized
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in assets are also eliminated in full. Intercompany losses that indicate impairment are recognized in the
consolidated financial stntements.

Investment in subsidi

Contral is achieved when the Parent Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable relurns from its involvement
with the investes and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights
that zive it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Parent Company has less than majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Parent Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including;

+  the contractual arrangement with the other vate holders of the investee;

+  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

+  the Parent Company's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Parent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more elements of contral. Consolidution of a subsidiary begins when contrel is obluined
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Parent Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, linbilities, income
and expenses of a subsidiary aequired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated finencial
statements from the date the Parent Company gains control until the date the Parent Company ceases to conirol
the subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests
Noa-conttolling interests represent the portion of net results and net assets not held by the Parent Company, These

are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within equity, apart from equity attributable 10
equity helders of the Parent Company and are separately disclosed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of originul business
combination and the non-contolling interests® share on changes in equity since the date of the busiess
combination.

2.6 Business comtbinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the agaregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling intcrest in the acquires at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and financial liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquirce.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
dute fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss,

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope
of PAS 39, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized either in profil or loss or as a change
to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of PAS 39, it is measured
in aceordance with the appropriate PERS. Contingenl consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
amount recopnized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the gain is
recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulateéd impairment losses. For the purpose of
impuirment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition dare, allocated to each
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of the Group's cash-generating units (CGU) that are expected o benefit from the combination, irréspective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned 1o those units.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group’s transactions with non-contralling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of the Group in their capacity as owners. The
difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of the net assets of the subsidiary is recognized in equity. Disposals of equity investments to non-controlling
interests results in gains and losses for the Group that are also recognized in equity.

Loss of control and disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fuir value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in profit or loss. The
fiir value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
tssoeitte, joint venture or financial asset. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss af
control, is aceounted for as an equity transaction. If the Parent Company loses control over the subsidiary, it:

»  derecognizes the assets, including goodwill, and liabilities of the subsidiary

+  derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-cofitrolling interest

+  derecognizes the cumulative transaction differences recorded in equity

+  recognizes the fair value of the consideration received

+  pecopnizes the fair value of the any investment retained

+ recopgnizes any surplus er deficit in profit or loss

«  reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss retained
earnings, as appropriate,

2.7 Use of judgment and estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management o make judgments, estimates and
gssumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Growp’s financial statements and accompanying notes.

Judgments are made by management in the development, selection and disclosure of the Group significant
accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. These are based on management’s evaluation
of relevant facts and circumstances as of the reporting date. Actual results could differ from such estimutes,

Revision fo accounting estimales are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
wffeets anly that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both cucrent and
tture perinds.

The areas where significant judgments and estimales have been made in preparing the consclidated financial
statements and their effects are disclosed in Note 4.

2.8 Adeption of new and revised accounting standards

The Group's accounting policies are consistent with these of the previous financial year, except for the adoption
ol the following new accounting pronouncemants:

New and Amended Accounting Standards Effective in 2021

The neeounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the adoption
of the following new and amended PFRS which the Group adepted

Eifective besinnine on or after June 1, 2020

o dmendments to PERS 16, COVID-19-rzlated Rent Concessions —the amendment provides lessees with
an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. When
there is a change in lease payments, the accounting consequences will depend on whether that change
mects the definition of a lease modification, which PFRS 16 Leases defines as “a change in the scape of
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a lease, or the consideration for a lease, that was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, adding or terminating the right to nse one or more underlying assets, or extending or

shorening the contractual lease term)™.
Effective beeinning on or aller Ja 1,20

o PFRSY PFRS 7. PFRS 4 and PFRS 16 (amendments), Interest Rate Benchmark Reform— Phase 2 The
amendments provide in the following temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects
when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR):

»  Practical expedient for changes in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows as o result
of [ROR reform;

»  Relief from discontinuing hedging relationships;

= Relief from tha separately idemifiable requircment when an RFR instrument is designated as o
hedge of a risk component,

The Company shall also disclose information about:

The nature and extent of risks to which the entity is exposed arising from financial instruments
subject to IBOR reform, and how the entity manapes those risks; and,

+  Their pregress in completing the transition to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is
managing that transition.

The amendments are effzctive for annual reporting perinds beginning on or after January 1, 2021 and
must be applicd retrospectively.

New and Amended Standards Effective Subsequent to 2021 but not Early Adopted
Pronouncements issued but not yet effective as at December 31, 2021 are listed below, The Group intends o
adopt the following pronouncements when they bacome effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Group does

nat expeet the adoption of these new pronouncements to have a significant impact on the financial statements.

ive besinning on or efter January 1, 2032

Amendmenty to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds befare Intended Use - the purpose of the
amendments is to prohibit dedueting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling ftems produced while bringing that assct 16 the |location and condition necessary for it 1o be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such
items, and the cost of producing those itams, in profit or loss.

Amendinenis to PAS 37, Onerous Contructs - Cost af Fuifilling a Contract — the amendment is regarding cosls a
company should include as the cost of fulfilling a contract when assessing whether a contract is onerous. The
amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract”,
Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would
be direet labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example
would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract).

Amendiments to PFRS 3, Reference to the Conceprual Framework with amendmenis (o PFRS 3 'Business
Combirietions — the amendments update an outdated reference in PFRS 3 without significantly changing its
requiremants. The chanpes are: update PFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the
1989 Framework; add to PFRS 3 a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope of PAS 37
or IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies PAS 37 or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Conceptual Framework) to identify the
liakilities it hes assumed in a business combination; and add to PFRS 3 an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognize contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The Group is still assessing the impact of the preceding amendments to the financial statements,
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Effeetive beginning on or after January 1, 2023

Amenannents 1o PAS 1, Classification of Liabiliiies as Current or Non-current —the amendments provide a more
general approach to the classification of lisbilities under PAS | based on the contractual arrangements in place at
the reporting date, The amendments affect only the presentation of liabilities in the statement of financial position
not the amount or timing of recognition of any asset, liability income or expenses, or the information that entitics
disclose about those items. To: .
- clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period and align the wording in il affected paragraphs to refer to
the "right" 1o defer settlement by at least twelve months and make explicit that only rights in place "nt
the end of the reporting peried sheuld affect the classification of a liability;
- clarify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether an entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of a liability; and
- make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other
assels or services.

Amendments to PAS 1, 'Preseniation of financial siaterments'. PFRS Practice statement 2 and PAS &, ' dcconnting
policies, changes in acconnting estimates and errors’ - The amendment require: companies to disclose their
miterial socounting policy information rather than their significant accounting policies. The amendment also
clarifies that accounting pelicy information is expected to be material if, without it, the users of the financial
sigtements would be unable ta understand other material information in the financial statements. On the other
hand, the amendment w PAS 8, “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, clarifies
how companies should distinguish changes in aceounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The
distinetion is important, beeause changes in socounting estimales are applied prospectively to future transactions
and other future events, but changes in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively to past
transactions and other past events as well as the current period. The amendments should help companies:

= (o lmprove accounting policy disclosures, either by making the disclosures more specific to the entity or
by reducing gencric disclosures that are commeonly understoed applications of PFRS; and
= (o distinguish changes in accounting estimates from changes in accounting policies.

These wmendments are not expected to have a significant impact on the preparation of financial statements,

Awmendments {o PFRS 17, lwwrance Controcts — the amendments’ purpose is to address concerns and
imglementation challenges that were identified after PERS 17 'Insurance Contracts' was published in 2017 The
main ehanges are: deferral of the date of initial application of PFRS 17 by two years to annual periods beginning
an or alter January 1, 2023; additional scope exclusion for credit card contracts and similar contracts that provide
insurance coverape as well as optional seope exelusion for loan contracts that transfer significant insurance risk;
recognilion of insurance acquisition cash flows relating to expected contract renewals, including transition
provisions and guidance for insurance acquisition cash tlows recoznized in a busingss acquired in a business
combination; extension of the risk mitigation option to include reinsurance contracts held and non-financial
derivatives; amendments to require an entity that at initial recognition recognizes losses on ongrous insurance
eonlracts issued to also recognize a gain on reinsurance contracts held:; simplified presentation of insurance
contracts in the stalement of financial positicn so that enlities would present insurance contract assets and
liabilites in the statement of financial pesition determined using portfolios of insurance contracts rather than
#roups of insurance contracts; and several small emendments regarding minor application issues.

The Group is still assessing the impact of the preceding amendments to the financial statements,
Deferred

PERS 10 {anendments), Consolidated Financial Stafements, and PAS 28 (amendments), Tnvestuents in
Avsaciaies and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contrilution of Assels between an ITnvesior and ils dssociate or Joind
Venture.

I'he amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a
subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments clarify that a full gain or
liss is reeognized when a transter to.an associale or joint veniure involves a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any
gain or loss resulting from the sale or conlribution of assets that does not constituie & business, however, is
réeognized only to the extent of unrelated investors® interests in the associate or joint venture



On January 13, 2016, the FRSC deferred the original effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments
until the TASB completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may resull in the
simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for asseciates and joint
ventures,

Annual Improvements to PFRS

The annual improvements to PFRSs contain non-urgent but necessary amendments to PFRSs.

2018-2020 Cyele
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2018-2020 Cycle) are effective for annual perinds beginning on or after
January 1, 2022, with retrospective application. The amendments to the following standards:

e PFRS 1, Subsidiary as a first-time adopter - The amendment permits a subsidiary to measure cumulative
translation differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition
to PFRSs. As a result of the amendment, a subsidiary that uses the exemption in PFRE 1: D16 (a) can
now also elect to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations &t the carrying
amount that would ke included in the parent’s consolidated financial statements, based on the parent’s
date of transition to PRFS Standards, if no adjustments were made for consolidation procedures and for
the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similur election is
available to an assaciate or joint venture that uses the exemption in PFRS 1: D16 (a).

e DPFRS 9, Fees in the “10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities - The amendment clarifics
which fees an entity includes when it applies the * 10 per cent” test in assessing whether to derecognize a
financial liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behall.

The Company will apply the amendments to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting peried in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendments are nol expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

e PFRS 16, Lease Incentives - The amendment removes from the example the illustmtion of the
reimbursement of lzaseheld improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potentiol confusion
reparding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how leasa incentives are illustrated
in that example,

s PAS 41, Taxation in fair value measurements - The amendment removes the raquirement for entities to
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using & present value

technique. This will ensurce consistency with the requirements in PERS 13.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

NOTE 3 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The sienificant accounting policize used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarized below. The policies have been consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Firancial aysets and fnancial labilities

Date of Recognitizn. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of financial
position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. In the case of a regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using setilement
date accounting,

Tniital Recognition and Measurement. Financial instruments are recognized initially a1 fair value, which is the
fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). The inital
measaremant of financial instruments, except for those designated at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL),
meludes transaction cost.
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On January 13, 2016, the FRSC deferred the original effective date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments
until the TASB completes its broader review of the research project an equity accounting that may result in the
simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for associates and joint
ventures.

Annual Improvements to PFRS
The annual improvements to PFRSs contain non-urgent but necessary amendments to PFRSs.

20§8-2020 Cyele
The Annual Tmprovements to PFRSs (2018-2020 Cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022, with retrospective application. The amendments to the following standards:

¢ PFRS |, Subsidiary as a first-time adopter - The amendment permits a subsidiary to measure cumulative
translation differences using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transiticn
to PFRSs. As a result of the amendment, & subsidiary that uses the exemption in PFRS 1: D16 (&) ¢an
now also ¢lect to measure cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations at the carrying
amount that would be included in the parent’s consnlidated financial stalements, based on the parsnt’s
date of transition to PRFS Standards, if no adjustments were made for consolidation procedires and for
the effects of the business combination in which the parent acquired the subsidiary. A similar election is
available to an associate or joint venture that uses the exemption in PFRS [: D16 (a).

o PFRS 9, Fees in the * 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities - The amendment clarifies
which fees an entity includes when it applies the * 10 per cent’ test in assessing whether to derecognize a
financial liability. An cntity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the horrower) and
the lender, including fiees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s behall,

The Company will apply the amendments to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment. The
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

» PFRS 14, Lease Incentives - The amendment removes from the example the illustration of the
reimbursement of leaschold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusicn
reparding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated
in that example.

s PAS 41, Taxation in fair value measurements - The amendment removes the requirement for entities to
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value

technique. This will ensure consistency with the requirements in PFES 13.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements.

I NOTE 3 =SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarized below. The policies have been consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated,

3.4 Financial assets ond finoncial labilities

Date of Recognition. The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of financial
position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. In the case of a regular
way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable; is done using settlement
date accounting:

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financiel instruments are recognized initially at fair value, which is the
[uir value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or reccived (in case of a liability). The initial
measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at fair value through profit and loss (FVPL),
includes transaction cost.
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“Day 17 Difference. Where the transaction price in a non-uctive market is different from the fair value of other
ohservable current market transactions in the same instrument or hased on a valuation technique whose variables
include cnly data from observable market, the Group recognizes the differsnce between the transaction price and
fair value (a “Day 1" difference) in profit or loss. In cases where there is no cbservable data on inception, the
Group deems the transaction price as the best estinate of fair value and recognizes “Day 17 difference in profit or
loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Group
detzrmines the appropriate method of recognizing the "Day 1" difference.

Classificatien. The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following categories: (a)
financial assets at FVPL, (b) financial assets at amartized cost and (c) financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Financial ligbilities, on the other hand, are classified as either financial
liabilitics &t FVPL or financial liabilities at amortized cost. The classification of a financial instrument largely
depends on the Graup’s business model and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group does not have financial assets and liabilities measured at FVPL,

Finaneial Assets at Amoriized Cost Financial assets shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:
» the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and
s the contraclual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amoriized cost are subssquently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impeirment, if any. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees thal are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the financial assets are derecognized and through
amortization process. Financial assets at amortized cost are included under current assets if realizability or
collectability is within 12 months after the reporting peried, Otherwise, these are classified as nancurrent assets.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group’s cash, receivables, sccurity and bond deposits, and advances 1o
contractors are included under this category.

Financial Assets at FVPL, Pinancial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for wading, financial assels
designated upon initial recognition at FVPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fuir value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchesing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separaied embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are desipnated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are
classified and measured at FVPL, irrespective of business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instrments to be classified at amortized cost or at FVOCL, as described above. debt instruments may be designated
at FVPL on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the consolidated statements of financial position at fair valug with net
changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. As at December 31,
2021 and 2020, the Group has no financial assets at FVPL.

Financial Assets at FVOC! For debt instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristic and are not
designated at FVPL under the fair value option, the financial assets shall be measured at FVOCL if both of the
following conditions are met:
e the finzneial asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

For equity insiruments, the Group may irrevocably designate the financial asset to be measured at FVOCT in case
the ahove condilions are oot met.

Financial assets a1 FVOCI are initally measured at fair value plus transaction costs. After initial recognition,
interest income (caleulated using the effective interest rate method), foreign currency gains or losses and
impairment losses of debt instruments measured st FVOCT are recognized directly in profit or loss. When the
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financiul assel is dereeognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCT are reclassificd from
equily to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Dividends from equity instruments held at FVOCT are recognized in profit or loss when the right to receive
paviment is established, unless the dividend clenrly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Foreign currency gains or losses and unrealized gains or losses from equity instruments are recognized in OCI
and presented in the equity section of the statements of financial position. These fuir value changes are recognized
in equity and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group has no financial assets at FYOCIL

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Financia) liabilities are categorized as financial liabilities at amortized
cost when the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver
cash oranother financial asset to the holder, or 1o selile the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.

These financial liabilitics are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. After
initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method . Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the liubilities are derecognized ar through the amortization process.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group's accounts and other payables, loans and borrowings, and advances
from contractors and related parties are ineluded under this category.

2.2 Reclassification

The Group reclassifies its financial assets when, and only when, it changes its business model for manzging those
financial assets, The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first day of the first reporting period
following the change in the business model (reclassification date).

For a financial usset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial assets at FYPL,
any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of the financial asset and fair

vatlue i3 recognized in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial assets at FVOCI,
any gain or loss arising from u difference between the previous amertized cost of the financial asset and fair value
is recognized in OCL

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial agsets at FVPL catepory to financial assets at amortized cost,
its Fair value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount,

Fuor a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at FVOCI category to financial assets at amontized cost,
any gain or loss previously recognized in OCI, and any difference between the new amortized cost and maturity
amount, are amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the effective interest
method. [T the financial asset is subsequently impaired, any gain or loss that has been recognized 1 OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

In1 the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be recagnized in profit or
lass when the financial assel is sold or disposed. 1Tihe financial assel is subsequently impaired, any previous gain
or loss that has been recognized in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss,

For & financial assel reclassified out of the financial assets at FVPL category to financial assets at FVOCI, its fair
value at the reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying amount. Meanwhile, for a financial asset
reclassified out of the financial assets at FYOCT calegory to financial assets at FYPL, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
recinssi{ieation adjustment at the reclassification date,
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3.3 Impairment of financial assets ut wmortized cost and FYOCT

The Group records an allowance for “expected eredit loss” (ECL). ECL is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The difference is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate.

For loan receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach and has caleulated ECLs based on the lifetime
expected credit losses. The Group has esteblished a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For debt instruments measured at amortized cost and FVOCI, the ECL is based on the 12-month ECL, which
pertains to the portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 manths after the reporting date. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. When determining whether the credit risk of
a financial asset has increased significantly sinee initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
oceurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument us at the date of initial recopnition and consider rcasonable and supportable information, that is
available without undue epst or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets al amortized cost are credit impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have eccurred.

3.4 Perecagnition af financial assets and liabilities

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or where applicahle, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized when,
¢ the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;
e the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset, but has assumed an obligation
to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through™ arrangement; or
s the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset nor transferred control of the financial asset, the financial asset is recognized to the extent of
the Group's continuing involvement in the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred financial asset is measurad at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
financial asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the cbligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or has expired, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modifiad, such an exchange
ar modification is weated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statements of income.

A medification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including net
fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is different by at least 10% from the

discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original liability.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows, discounted using
the intsrest rate at which the Group could raise debt with similar terms and conditions in the market. The
difference hetween the carrying value of the original liability and fair value of the new liability is récognized in
the stalements of comprehensive income.

O the other hand, il the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not extinguished but
merely modified. In such case, the carrving amount is adjusted by the costs or fees paid or received in the
restructuring,
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3.3 Offseiting financial instrement

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
if, and oaly if, there is currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultanzously. This is not generally the case
with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statement of
financial position.

3.6 Classificarion of financial instrument between liability and gquite

A financial instrument is classified as liability if it provides for o contractual obligation to:
+ deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity;
+  oxchange financial assets or financial liabilities with ancther entity under conditions that are potentially

unlavorable to the Group; or
v satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset

for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Group does not have an unconditional right to aveid delivering cash or another financial asset to settle its
contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liahility.

1.7 Current versus fton-current glassi ipn

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the swatement of financial position based on current/noncurrent
classification,

An asset is current when:
e Itisexpected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating eycle
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
« Itis expected 1o be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
Cash on hand and in banks unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.

A liability is current when:
e Itisexpected to be gettled in normal operating cycle
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e [t is due 1o be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
s There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months afier the
reporting period

The Group classifies all other ligbilities as noncurrent.
3.8 Foreign currency trapsacti transiation

Transactions in foreien currencics are initially recorded by the Group at the respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the {unctiomnal
currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.

All difforences are taken to the statements of comprehensive income with the exception of all monetary items that
provide an effective hedge for a net investment in a foreign operation. These are recognized in OCI until the
disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognized in profil or loss. Tax charges and credits
applicable to exchange differences on these monetary items arc also recorded in the OCL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in & foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monelary items measured al fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the par value is determined.
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3.0 Falr valie measuremernids

The Group measures a number of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities at fair value at zach reporting
date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Liability in an orderly transuction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: (a) in the principal market for the
asset or liability; or (b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or most advantageous market must be accessible to the Group.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
prizing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sullicient data are
available 1o measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobserveble inputs.

All assets and Labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as o whole:

e Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

e Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, cither directly or indirectly; and

= Level 3:  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whelher transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing the categorization at the end of
epch reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis af
the nature, charecteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy.

310 Operuting Segmenis

Operating segments wre reported in @ manner consistent with the internzl reporting provided to the Group's
Exccutive Committee (ExeCom), its chief operating decision-maker. The ExeCom is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s main service lines as disclosed
in Note 7, which represent the main services provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these service lines require different resources
us well as marketing approaches. All intersegment transfers are carried out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PFRS 8, Operating Segments, are the same
as those used [n its consolidated financial statements,

There have been no significant changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reporied
segment profit or loss.

3.11 Cush

Cush consists of cash on hand and in banks, Cash in banks earns interest at respective bank deposit rates. For the
purpose of reparting cash flows, cash in banks is unrestricted and available for use in current operations.

F.12 Othrer cierrent assefs

Other current assets are tecognized when the Group expects (o receive future economic benefit from them, and
the amount can be measured reliably, Other assets are classified in the statements of financial position as current
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assets when the cost of goods or services related to the ausets are expected to be incurred within one year or the
Group's normal operating cycle, whichever is longer.

Other current assets consist of input value-added tax (VAT), creditable withholding taxes (CWTs) and securily
and bond deposits,

Input VAT represents tax imposed on the Group by its suppliers and contractors for the purchase of goods and
sarvices, as required under Philippine taxation laws and regulations. The portion of input VAT that will be used
to offset the Group's current VAT liabilities is presented as a current asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

CWTs represent the amount withheld by the Group’s customers in relation to its revenue. These are recognized
upon collection of the related revenue and are utilized as tax credits against income tax due as allowed by the
Philippine taxation laws and regulations, CWTs ave stated at their estimated net realizable value.

Security and bond deposits are refundable, noninterest-bearing and unsecured amounts upon the termination of
contracts with lessors and utilities companies or the performance of commitments covered by certain provisions
of contracts.

313 Inmventories

Inventaries are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business, in the process of production for such sale
or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in the rendering of services,

Inventarics are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cast is calculated using the weighted
average method. NRV represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less cstimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When the NRY of the inventories is lower than the cost, the Group provides for an allowance for the decline in
the value of the inventory and recognizes the write-down as an expense in profit or loss, The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realizable value, is recognized as a
veduction in the amount of inventories recogmized as an expense in the period in which the reversal ocours.

When inventaries are used and sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an ¢xpense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognized.

3. 14 Mine properties

Mine properties consist of mineral assets, mining costs and patent,
Mineral Assets

Minzral assets include costs incurred in connection with acquisition of rights over mineral reserves. Rights over
mineral reserves, which are measured, indicated or inferred, are capitalized as part of mineral assets on explored
resources i the reserves are commercially producible and that geological data demonstrate with a specified degree
of cerainty that recovery in future years is probable.

Mineral assets are subject to amortization or depletion upon the commencement of production on & unit-of-
production method, based on proven and probable reserves, Costs used in the unit of production calculation
comprise the net book value of capitalized costs plus the estimated [uture development costs. Changes in the
estimates of mineral reserves or future development costs are accounted for prospectively,

Mining Costs

Explaration and Evaluation Assets. Exploration and evaluation assets include costs imcurred in connection with
exploration activities. Exploration and evaluation asset is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Exploration and evaluation sctivities involve the search for mineral resources, the determination of technical
feasibility and the assessment of commercial viability of the mineral resource.
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Exploration and evaluation activities include:
«  Gathering exploration data through geological studies;
»  Exploratory drilling and sampling; and
+  Evaluating the technical feasibility and commercial viability of extracting the mineral resource.

Mine Under Deveigpment. Once the technical feasibility and com mercial variability of extracting the reserves are
demonstrable, exploration and evaluation assets are tested for impairment and reclassified 1o mine under
development, a subcategory of mine properties.

After transfer of the exploration and evaluation assets, all subsequent expenditures on the construction, mstallation
or completion of infrastructure facilities is capitalized in mines under development. Development expenditure iz
net of proceeds from the sale of mineral extracted during the development phase to the extent that it is considered
integral to the development of the mine. Any costs incurred in testing the assets to determine if these are
functioning as intended, are capitalized, net of any proceeds received from selling any product produced while
testing, Where these proceeds exceed the cost of testing, any excess is recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Producing Mines. Upon start of commercial operations, ming under development are reclassified as part of
producing mines, & subcategory of mine propertics, These costs are subject to depletion, which 1s computed using
the units-of-production method based on proven and probable reserves, which is reviewed periodically 1o ensure
that the estimated depletion is consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from the mine propertics,

The carrying vahze of mine properties approximates its fair value as of December 31, 2021 based on the valuation
report conducted by Cuervo Appraisers, Inc. dated February 16, 2022. Hence the account is not impaired.

Fatent

Patent includes directly attributable costs incurred to acquire or obtain the rights to the use of the siphon vessel
{or its offshore mining and/or incidental costs related to the registration and protection of a patent.

Intangible nsset with indefinite useful lives are not amo rtized but are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the cash generating unit level. The useful life of an intangible asset is assessed as indelinite if it
is expected 10 contribute net cash inflows indefinitely and is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite
life azsessment continues to be supportable. I nat, the change in the uzeful life assessment from indefinite o finite
ic made on a prospective basis.

1,15 Property and eguipment, net

Property and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulaled
impuirment in value, Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gaias or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currznecy purchases of property and equipment.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset 1o its working condition and location for its intended use, Expenditures incurred afier the
property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally charged to
income (n the period in which the costs are incurred.

In situations whire it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increas¢ in the future
sconomic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond its originally
assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of property and equipment.

Depreciation on other assets is charged (o allocate the cost of assets |238 their fair value over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives range as follows:

OFffige furniture & equipmant 3-5 years
Muotar vehicle 3-5 years
Leasehold improvements 5 yeurs
Computer sofhware 5 years

Meachineries & equipment 7 years
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Depreciation of property and equipment begins when it becomes available for use (i.e. when it is in the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Depreciation
and depletion ceases at the carlier of the date that the item is classified as held for sale in accordance with PFRS
S, Noncurrent Assets Hald for Sale and Discontinued Operations, and the date the item is derecognized.

The carrving values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

The estimated recoverable reserves, useful lives, and depreciation and depletion methods are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the estimated recoverable reserves, residual values, periods and methods of depreciation
and depletion are consistent with the expected pattern of econamic benefits from items of property and equipment.
The residual values, if any, are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each end of reporting period. If there is
an indication that there has been a significant change in depreciation and depletion rate, useful life or residual
value of an asset, the depreciation of that usset is revised prospectively to reflect the new expectations,

When properties are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation and depletion
and any allowance for impairment loss are eliminated from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited
or charged to statements of comprehensive income.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expectad to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the assct
(ealculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the items) is included
in the statements of comprehensive income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Fully depreciated assets are retained as property and equipment until these are no longer in use.

2.16 Investment in assaciates

Associates are entities over where the Group is in a position fo exercise significant influence in the financial and
operating policy decisions but not control or joint conirol.

Investment in associates is recognized using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method the
investment is initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereatter for the post-acquisition change in the investor's
share of net assets of the investee. On acquisition of the investment any difference between the cost of the
investment and the investor’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
continzent liabilities is accounted for in sccordunce with PFRS 3 Business Combinations.

The income statement of the investor includes the investor's share of the income statement of the investee.

Losses of associates in excess of the company’s interest in the relevant entity are not recognized except to the
extent that the Group has en obligation. Profits on company transactions with associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interest in the relevant associate.

The Group owns 49% ownership of its associate, Poet Blue Ocean (PBO). PBO is incorporated in the Philippines.
J.17 IWebsite Cost

The Group's website is determined to have an indefinite useful life because considering all of the relevant factors,
there is no foreseeable limit 1o the period over which the asset is expected to generate cash inflows for the Group.

‘I'he wseful life of an intangible asset is assessed as indefinite if it is expected to contribute net cash inflows
indefinitely and is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite lifi assessment gontinues to be
supportable, If not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,
Wehsite cost is not amartized but is tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating
unit level.
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IR Frapairments of non-financi Tels

General

An assessment is made a1 each balance sheet date of whether there is any indication of impairment of an asset, or
whether there is any indication thal an impairment loss previously recognized for an asset in prior years may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is caleulated as
the higher of the assets value in use or net selling price,

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, An
impairment loss is charged to operations in the period which it arises.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if thers has been a change in the estimates usad (@
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, but only to the extent of the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation) had no impainment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Reversal
af an impairment loss is credit to current operations.

Froperiy aad equipment

The Group assesses at each financial reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever evenls or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying amounts exceed
the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets or cash generating units (CGU) are written down to their estimated
recoverable amounts. The estimated recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of the fair value less cost to gl
and valuz in usc, The fair value less cost to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s-
length transaction lzss the cost of disposal, while the value in use is the present value of estimated future cash
flows expectad to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In
sssessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount
rute that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Foran
asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the estimated recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU to which the asset is belongs. Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statements
of comprehensive income in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired assct.

An assessment is made at each financial reporting date whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. Lf such indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by a credil to current operations {unless the
asset is carried 4t a revalued amount in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is credited to the revaluation
increment of the same asset) to the extent that it does not restate the asset to a carrying amount in excess of what
would have been determined (net of any accumulated depreciation and depletion) had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in statements of comprehensive income unless
the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increass. After such
reversal, the amortization charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less
any residual value, on systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

3.19 Advances to/from related parties

Advanees to/from related parties are non-interest-bearing borrowings. These are measured initially at their
nominal values and subsequently recognized at amortized costs less settlement payments.

1.20 Aecounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from supplicrs which are unpaid. Accruals are liabilities t pay for goods or services that huve
been received or supplied but have not been paid, invoiced or formally agreed upon by the supplier, including
amounts due to employees, Accounts payable and accruals are classified as current labilities if payment is due
within onc year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business of longer and recognized at fair value). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Accounts payables and accruals are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.
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3. 21 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, Borrowings are subsequently
micasured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effcctive interest method, Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction cosls of the loan to the extent that it is
prabable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
ocours. To the extent there is no evidence that is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial Tiability that has been extinguished
or transterred to another party and the consideration paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, i3 recognized in profit or loss as other income or finance costs.

Where the terms of & financial liability are rencgotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability {debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrving amount of the financial liebility and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

3.22 Burrowing casts

General and speeific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or praduction
of a qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily talkke a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale,

Investment income eariied on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Oiher bucrowinz costs are expensed in the peried in which they are incurred.

3.23 Revenne recognition
Revenue {rom contracts with customers

The Group is principally engaged in the business of produsing beneficiated nickel ore. It also generates revenue
from sale of fuel to its contractors. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the
eoods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Group follows a five-step process:
1. identifying the contract with a customer:

identifying the performance obligation;

determining the transaction price,

allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations; and,

recognizing revenue when/as petformance obligations are satisfied.

L e D

Far Step 1 to be achieved, the following gating criteria must be present:

«  the partics to the contract have approved the contract either in writing, orally or in sccordance with other
customary busingss practices;

= each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be identified:

«  the payment terms for the goods or services ta be transferred or performed can be identified,

«  the contract has commercial substance (.., the risk, timing or amount of the future cash flows is expected
to change #s a result of the contract; and.

+  ¢ollection of the consideration in exchange of the goods and services is probable.
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Revenue is recognized only when {or as) the Group salisfics a performance obligation by transferring control of
the promised goods or services to a customer, The transfer of confrol can occur over time ar at-a point in lime,

A performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the following criteria, in which case
it is sat{sfied over time:
«  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's performance
as the Group performs,
«  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created
ar enhanced: and,
«  the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

The transaction price allocated (o the performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is recognized as revenue
when control of goods or services transfers to the customer. As a matter of accounting policy when applicable, if
the performance obligation is satisfied over time, the wansaction price allocated to that performance oblization is
recognized as revenue as the performance obligation is satisfied.

he disclosures of significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts
with custamers are provided in Note 4.

Sale af Mineral Producis,

Revenue from sale of mineral products is measured based on shipment value price, which is based on quoted
metal prices in the London Metals Exchange (LME) and London Bullion Metal Association (LBMA) and weight
and assay centent, as adjusted for smelting charges to reflect the NRV of mineral products inventory at the end of
the finanzial reporting period. Contract terms for the Group's sale of metals in concentrates and bullion allow for
a price adjustment based on final assay results of the metal content by the customer. Income is recognized upon
actual shipment of mineral products.

Other income
Other income is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income as they are eamed.

Finance incane

Interest income is recorded using the EIR which is the rate that exactly discounts the cstimated future cnsh
payments or receipts over the expecied life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Interest income is included in “other income”
in the statements of comprehensive income,

Contract balances

Roceivable from Customers
A receivable represents the Group’s right tv an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Centracl assets

A contract asset is the right to considération in exchange for goods or services transferred to the eustomer. If the
Group performs by transferring goods or services 10 a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the carned consideration that is conditional,

Contrerct labitities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before
the Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made
or the payment is due, whichever is earlier, Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs
under the conlract,
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324 (Cust i expenses recognition

Cost and expenses are decreases in econamic benefits during the accounting period in the form of outflows or
decrease of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than those relaling to
distributions to equity participants.

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss in the statements of comprehensive income:

«» on the basis of a direct association between the costs incurred and the sarning of specific items of income;

+ on the basis of systematic and rational allocation procedures when economic benefits are expeeted (o
arise over several accounting perieds and the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly
determined; or,

«  immediately when expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that,
future econoriic bengfits do not qualify, cease to qualify, for recognition in the statements of financial
position as an asset.

Production Costs and Exeise Taves

Production costs, which include all direct materials, power and labor costs, handling, hauling and storage, and
other costs related to the mining and milling operations, and all direct expenses incurred for logistics and
storeroom costs for mine and mining inventories, are expensed 4s incurred. Excise taxes pertain to the taxes paid
ot accrued by the Company for its legal obligation arising from the production of mineral products and are likewise
expense when insurred.

Selling Administrative, and Other Operating Expenses

Selling expenses are costs incurred lo sell or disteibute inventories. Administrative cxpenses normally include
costs of administering the business as incurred by administrative departments. Other cperating expenses are costs
incurred other than for selling or administrative purposes.

3.25 Related party transactions ond refationship

Parties are considered related if one party has control, joint control, or significant influence over the other party
in making financial and operating decisions, The key management personnel of the Group and close members of
the family of nay individuals owning directly or indirectly a significant voling power of the Group that gives them
significant influence in the financial and operating policy decisions of the Group are also considered to he related
partias,

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

e The enlity and the Group are members of the same Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others)

s  Ome entity is an asscciate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a Group of which the other entity 15 a member)

# Both entilies are joint ventures of the same third party

»  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity

=  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group of an entity
relmed to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group

s The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified above

* A person identified above has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management
persannel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members, who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group and include that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner, and dependents of that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties, regardless of
whether a price is charged. An entity is related to the Group when it directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with the Group. Transactions between
related parties are based on terms similar to those offercd to non-related entities in an economically comparable
marlet, except for non-interest-bearing advances with no definite repayment terms.
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3,26 Depaosit for futire share subscription

Deposit for future share subseription represents pavments made on subscription of shares which cannot be directly
credited to *Share Capital® pending application for the approval of the proposed increase presented for filing /filed
with the SEC and registration of the amendment to the Articles of Incorporation increasing capital stock. The
paid-up subscription can be classified under equity if the nature of the transaction give rise to a contractual
abligation of the Group to deliver its own shares to the subscriber in exchange of the subscription amount.

In addition, deposit for future share subsctiption shall be classified under equity if all of the following clements
are present as at reporting date:

2. The unissued authorized capital of the entity is insufficient to cover the amount of shares indicated in the
contract;

b. There is Board of Directors’ approval on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock (for which a

deposit was recefved by the corporation);

There is stockholders® approval of said proposed increase; and

d. The epplication for the approval of the praposed increase has been presented for filing or has been filed
with the Commission.

o

If any orall of the foregoing elements are not present, the deposit for future share subscription shall be recognized
ag a noncurrent lighility in the consolidated statements of financial position,

3.27 Equie

Share capital is measured at par value for all shares issued. When the shares are sold out at a premium, the
difference between the procesds and the par value is credited to the “Share Premium™ account. When shares are
issued for o consideration other than cash, the proceeds are measured hy the fair value of the consideration
received. In case the shares are issued to extinguish or setlle the liability of the Group, the shares shall be measured
¢ither at the fair value of the shares issued or fair value of the liability settled, whichever is more reliably
determinable.

Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction
from proceeds, net of tax.

Retaingd eamings represent the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss, dividend distribution, prior
period adjustments, effect of changes in accounting pelicy and other eapital adjustments. When retained earnings
avcount has a debit balance, it is called “deficit™, and presented as a deduction from equity.

Dividends are recognized when they hecome legally payable, Dividend distribution to equity sharchulders is
recopnized as lizbility in the Group's financial stalements in the period in which the dividends are declared and
approved by the Group’s Board of Directors.

3.28 Income Taxes

Currend income fax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period is measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid o the taxation authoritizs. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enucted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income lax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statements
of comprehensive income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect 1o
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
eppropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
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e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an esget or Hability ina
transaction which is mot a business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither
accounling profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

s Inrespect of taxable temporary differences assoviated with investments in subsidiaries, associal=s and
interest in joint ventures, when timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be conirolled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable fulure.

Deferred tax assets are recognized forall deductible temporary differences, the carry-forward of unused tax credits
from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and net operating loss carry over (NOLCQ), and any unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits from MCIT and NOLCO and unused tax losses

can be utilized, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recogniticn of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination; and at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable prafit (or loss).

« Inrespectof deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidizries, associates end
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available sgains
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrving smount of deferred tax assete is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no [onger probable that suiTicient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed ot each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
assel is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacied at the reporting
date

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items are recognized in correlation (o the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax linbilities are offset if a lepally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to either settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

.20 Falue Added Faxes (FAT)

meuu expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except:
where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets ar services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the assetor as part of the expense
item as applicable; and
+  receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

For acquisition of capital poods over P1,000,000, the VAT is deferred and amoertized over the useful life of the
related capital goods or 60 months, whichever is shorter, commencing on the date of the acquisition.

Cutput tax perlains o the 12% VAT received or receivable on the local sale of goods or services by the Group.
Input tex pertains to the 12% VAT paid or payable by the Group in the course of its trade or busingss on purchase
of poods or services. Al the end of each taxable period, if output tax exceeds input tax, the outstanding balance
is paid Lo the taxation authority. If input tax excesds output tax, the excess shall be carried over to the succeeding
months.



Approved by:
Date:

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable (o, the taxation authority is included as part of *prepayments
and other current asseis’ or ‘accounts and other payables’ in the statements of financial position.

3.30 Emiplayes benefiils

Employee benefits are all forms of considerations given by the Group in exchange for service rendered by the
employees. It includes short-term employee benefits and post-employment benefits.

Short-tzrm benefits

Liahilitics for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
reluted service are recognized in respect of employees® services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected 1o he paid when the liabilities are settled, The liabilities are presented as current
emplayes benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Termination Henefily

Termination benefils are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an employee’s
employment as a result of either the Group's decision (o lerminate an employee’s employment before the normal
retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of

employment.

A liability and expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the entity recognizes related restructuring costs. Initial recognition
and subsequent changes lo termination benefits are measured in accordance with the nature of the employee
benefit, as either post-employment benefit, shert-term employee benefits, or other long-tenn employee benefits.

Retirement bengfits

The Group does not have a defined contribution plan or any formal retirement plan that covers the retirement
benefits of its employees. However, under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act No. 7641, otherwise
lnown as the Philippine Retirement Pay Law, requires a provision for relirement pay to qualified private sector
employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided however that the employee’s retirement
benefits under any collective bargaining agreement and other agreements shall not be less than those provided
under law. The law does not require minimum funding of the plan.

Republic Act Mo. 7641 relates to a defined benefit plan. A defined benefit plan is 4 post-employment plan that
defines an amount of post-employment benefil that an emplayee will reczive on retirement, usually dependent on
one or more factors such as age, vears of service, and salary. The legal obligation for any benefits from this Kind
of post-employment plan remains with the Group, The Group’s defined benefit post-employment plan covers all
regular full-time employees.

3.3 Leases

At inception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether the confract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a l=ase if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which are whether:

a) the contract contains an identified avset, which Is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly
specified by being identificd al the time the asset is made available to the Group,

b) the Group has the right (o oblain substantiolly all of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asser throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the conuract,

¢} the Group has the right o direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

The Group shall reassess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease only if the terms and cenditions of the eoniraet
are changed.
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As o fesvee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease linbilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets

riepresenting the right to use the underlying assets.

fa) Richt-of-use asset

Atthe initial application date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset on the statements of financial position.
The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
any initial direct costs ncurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset al
the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any
incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line besis from the lease commencement date to
the earlier of the end of the usetul life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the leass term. The Group also
asseases the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

(i) Lease liability

At the initial application date, the Group measures the leace liability at the prasent value of the leass payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implieit in the lease if that rate is readily available or
the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease puyments included in the measurement of the lense liability are made up of fixed pavments (including
in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liahility will he reduced for payments made and increased for interest.
It is remeasured Lo reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed
payments. When the leass lahility is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of
use assel, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognize right-ol~use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases. The Group recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a
straipht-line basis over the lease term.

J2 Provisions and contingencies

General

The Group recognizes a provision of a present obligation has arisen as a result of a past event, payment is probable
and the amount can be measured reliably. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the expenditure requirad
lo seltle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, that 15, the amount the Group would rationally pay to
seitle the obligation to a third party.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements, These are disclosed unless possibility of an
autflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are notrecognized in the financial
statements but are disclosed when an inflow of economic bencfits is probable,

Provisivn for mine rehabilitation and decommissioning

b Group records the present value of estimated cost of lzgal and constructive obligations required to restore
operating locations in the period in which the ebligation is incurred. The nature of these reslormticn aclivilies
includes dismantling and removing structures, rehahilitating mines and tailing dams, dismantling operating
lacilities, closure of wasle sites, and restoration, reclamation and re-vegetation of affected areas. The obligation
generally arises when the asset is installed, or the ground/environment is disturbed at the production location.
When the liability is initially recognized, the present value of the estimated cost is capitalized by increasing the
cartving ameunt of the related mining assets. Over time, the disvounted liability is increased for the change in
present value based on the discount rates that reflect current market assessments and the risks specific to the
liability, The periodic unwinding of the discount is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income under
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“inance cast —net”, Additional disturbances or chenges in reliabilitation costs will be recognized s additions or
charges to the corresponding assets and provisien for mine rehabilitation and decommissioning when they occur.

When rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather that at the time of closure,
provision is made for the estimated outstanding continuous rehabilitation of work at each end of the reporting
period and the cost is charge to statements of comprehensive income. For closed sites. changes to estimated costs
are recognized immediately in the statements of comprehensive income,

The ultimate cost of mine rehzbilitation and decommissioning is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response
to many factors including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques
ar experience. The expected timing of expenditure can lso change, for example in response to changes in ore
reserves or production rates. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision for mine
rehiabilitation and decommissioning, which would affect future financial results.

As of yeurs ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, no provision for mine rehabilitation and decommissioning was
recognized for no restorations on the operating locations has yet to be performed.

3.33 Earnin,

liasic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Group and held as treasury shares, Diluted EPS
is culeulated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding and assume conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

If the number of ardinary or patential shares cutstanding increases as a result of a capitalization, bonus issue or
share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic and diluted EPS for all periods
presented shall be adjusted retrospectively. If these changes cccur after the reporting period but before the
financlal statements are authorized for issue, the per share calculations for those and any prior period [linancial
statements presented shall be based on the new number of shares.

The Group has ne dilutive potentinl common shares outstanding.

3.34 Events after the end of the reporiing period

Post year-end that provides additional information about the Group’s position at the balance sheet date (adjusting
events), are reflecied in the financial statements. Post year-end evenls that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes when material.

| NOTE 4 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the Group’s management to make
¢stimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and

accompanying notes,

The estimates and associated essumptions are based on historical experiences and other various factors that arc
helieved to be reasonable under the circumstances including expectations of related future events, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgments about the currying vulues of assets and liabilities that arc not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The cstimates, assumptions and judgments are reviewed and evalualed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods,

4.0 Judpments

(Fodng concern

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group’s management has made an assessment on the Group's ability
continue as 4 golng concem in the current evolving environment especially on the impact of COVID-19 pandemic
and is satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue their business for the foresecable future. Furtiernmore,



Approved by:
Date:

manazement is not awars of any material uncertainties that inay cast significant doubt upon the Group's ubility o
continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concem
basis,

Determination of funciional currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in the Philippine Peso, which is also the Group's functional
currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Fuir velue measurements
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Clroup uses markel observable data when measuring the fair value of an asset or lability. Fair values are
categorized into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technigques.

If the inputs used 1o measure the fair value of an asset or 4 liability can be categorized in different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hicrarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Classification of financial instruments

The Company manages its financial assets based on business models that maintain adequate liquidity level and
preserve capital requirements, while maintaining a strategic portfolio of financial assets for accrual and trading
nelivities consistent with its risk appetite,

In determining the classification of a financial instrumant under PFRS 9, the Company evaluates in which business
model a financial instrument or a portfolia of financial instruments belong to taking into consideration the
ohjectives of each business model established by the Company.

In addition, PFRS 9 emphasizes that if more than an infrequent and mare than an insignificant sale is made out of
a portfolic of financial asscts carried at amortized cost, an entity should assess whether and how such sales are

consistent with the objective of collecting contractual cash flows. In making this judgment, the Company
considers certain circumstances documented in its business model manual to assess that an increase in the

frequency or value of sales of financial instruments in a particular period is not necessarily inconsistent with &
held-to-collect business model if the Company can explain the reasons for those sales and why those sales do not
reflest a change in the Company’s objective for the business model.

Asseysing significant infTuence and control over investee,
The Group determines that it has control over its subsidiaries by considering, among others, its power over the
investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and the ability o use ils
power over the investee to affect its returns. The following are also considered:

» The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee,

#  Rights arising from other contractual agrecments.

e The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Manngement has assessed the level of influence the Parent Company has on JDVC and JDVC Indonesia and
determines that it has control by virtue of the Company holding 90.47% voting power both aver JDVC and JDVC
Indonesia.

Determination whether an agreement contains a lzase

The determination of whether a contract is, or contains & lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is nssessed for if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identifizd asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group has entered 2 lease arrangement g5 a lessee (Note 30).
Aveounting for lease commitinenis — group as lessee

The Group has a lease agreement for its office space with a term of 12 months and is renewable upon mutual
sgreement of hath parties. The Group availed of exemption for short-term leases with term of 12 months or less.



Accordingly, lease payments on the short-term lease are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Rent expense arising from operating lease agreements amounted to $i1.7 million, P08 million, and 0.7 million
in 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 25).

Deiernining the capitalizability of costs wnder mine properties

The ¢apitalization of mine properties requires judgment in determining whether there are future economic benefits
from future exploization or sale of reserves. The capilalization requires management to make certain estimates and
assumptions sbout future events or circumstances, in particular, whether an econamically viable extraction
operation can be established. Estimates and assumptions made may change if new information becomes available.
IT, after expenditure is capitalized, recovery of such expenditure becomes unlikely, the amount capitalized is
wriltén off in profit or loss in the period when the ngw information becomes available. The camrying amount of
mine properties amounted to P3,315,448,592 and P3,288,748,565 as of years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively (see Note 16).

Assessing production stari date £

The Group assesses the stage of each mine development project to determine when a mine maoves into the
production stage. The criteria to assess the start date of a mine are determined based on the unique nature of each
mine development project. The Group considers various relevant criteria to assess when the mine is substantially
complete, ready for its intended use and moves into the production phase.

Some of the criteria include, but are not limited to the following:
«  The level of capital expenditure compared to construetion cost estimates;
+  Completion of a reasonable period of testing of the property and equipment;
= Ability to produce ore in saleable form; and,
«  Ability to sustain ongoing production of are.

When o mine development project moves into the production stage, the capitalization of certain mine construction
costs ceases and costs are either regarded as inventory or expensed, except for capitalizable costs related 10 mine
property additions or improvements, mine development or mineahle reserve development. It is also at this point
ihar depreciation or depletion commences.

Dgtermining capitalizability of geothermal exploration and evaluaiion of assels

Careful judgment by management is applied when deciding whether the recognition requirements for geothermal
exploration and evaluation of assets relating to the Group’s geothermal project have been met. Capitalization of
thise costs is based, to a certain extent, on management's judgments of the degree to which the expenditure may
be nssociated with finding specific peothermal reserve. This is necessary as the cconomic success of the
explaration is uncertain and may be subject 1o future technical problems at the time of recognition. Judgments
yre based on the information available at the end of each financial reporting period.

Repairs and mainienance

Custs of repairs and maintenance that do not result in an increase in the future economic benefit of an item of
property and eguipment is charged 1o operations in the period it is incurred. Otherwise, it is capitalized as part of
the asset.

4.2 Extimares and assumpiions

The key nssumptions concerning the fiture and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial
reporiing date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment 1o the carrving amounts of assets and

linbililies within the nexi reporting year are discussed below.

Fair valves of financial instriments

PI'RS requires that fingncial assets and financial liabilities be carried or disclosed at fair value, which requires the
use of accounting estimates and judgment. While significant components of fair value measurement were
determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates, interest rates, and volatilily rates), the
amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group utilized dilfzrent valuation methodologies. Any change
i the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities directly affects profit or loss, equity, and the required
disclosures,



Approved by:
Date:

Where the fair values of financial assets and [inancial liabilities recorded in the statements of Nnancial position
cannet be derived from active markets, their fair values are determined using valuation techniques that are
pencrally-accepted market valuations including the discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are
tuken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimates are used in establishing
fair values.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitias by catepory and their fair value hierarchy are set out in
Note 1 to the financial statements.

Assessing ECL on financial assets

The Group applies the general approach in mensuring the ECL, For cash in banks the Group assessed that cash is
deposited with reputable banks that possess good credit ratings. For security and bond deposits, the Group
considers the financial capacity of the counterparty. ECL recognized in 2021 amounted to P4,375,583 and nil ECL
was recognized in 2020. The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets are as tollows:

MNaote 2021 2024
Cash in banks 11 £ 202430661 P BED.057
Roceivakles 12 3,834,663 -
Seeurity deposit 13 71,772 71772
Construction bond 13 50,000 50,000
Aclvances to contractors 14 41,453,933 44,888,691

Estinuaing mineral reserves and résources

Mineral reserves and resources estimate for development projects are, to a large extent, based on the interpretation
of peological data obtained fiom drill holes and other sampling techniques and feasibility studies which derive
estimates of costs based upon anticipated tonnage and grades of ores to be mined and processed, the configuration
ol the ore body, expecled recovery rates from the ore, estimated operating costs, estimated climatic, conditions
and other factors. Proven reserves estimates are attributed to future development projects only where there is a
significant commilment to project funding and extraction and for which applicable governmental and regulatory
approvals have been secured or are reasonably certuin to be secured. All proven reserve estimates are subject to
revision, either upward or downward, based on new information, such as from block grading and preduction
activities or from changes in economic factors including praduct prices, contract terms or development plans.

Estimales of reserves for undeveloped or partially developed area are subjected to greater uncertainty over their
fulure lifs than estimates of reserves for areas that are substantially developed and depleted. As an area goss into
production, the number of proven reserves will be subject to future revision once additional information becomes
available. As those areas are Turther developed, new information may lead to revisions. The estimated recoverable
resetves are used in of life of mine and forecasting the timing of the payment of provision for mine rehabilitation
and decommissioning.

Depletion of mining property is computed based on ore extraction over the estimated volume of proved and
probable ore reserves as estimated by the geologists. The Group recognized no depletion cost for years 2020, 2019
and 2018 since no production yet has been made,

The carrving amounts of mine properties amounted to £3,315,448.592 and P3,288,748.565 as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 16).

Assessing wnitv-af-produciion depletion

Estimated recoverable reserves are used in determining the depletion of mine assets. This results in a depletion
charae proportional to the depletion of the anticipated remaining mine life. Each item’s life, which is assessed
annually, has regard lo both physical life limitations and to present assessments of economically recoverable
reserves of the mine property at which the assel is located. The caleulations require the use of estimates of future
capital expenditure. The Group uses the tons of ore produced as the basis for depletion. Any changs in estimates
is accounted for prospectively.

Estimating provision for mine rehabiiitation and decommissioning

The Group assesses its provision for mine rehabilitation and decommissioning annually. Significant estimates and
assumptions are made in determining the provision for mine rchabilitation and decommissicning as there arc
numerous factors that will affect the provision. These factors include estimates of the extent and costs of
rehiabilitation activities, lechnological changes, regulatory changes, cost increases, and changes in discount rates.
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Those uncenaintics may result in future acmal expenditure differing from the amounts currently provided. The
provision at the end of the reporting peried represents management's best estimate of the present value of the
[ulure rehiabilitation costs required. Changes to estimated future cost are recognized in the statements of financial
position by adjusting the rehabilitation asset and ligbility. For closed sites, changes to estimated costs are
recognized immediately in the statements of loss. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, no provision for mine
rehabilitation and decommissionng was recognized.

Exifnating impairment fosses on of mine propeities
The Group assesses impairment on mine propertics when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount
of mine propedies may exceed its recoverable amount. The factors that the Group considers important which
could trigger an impairment review include the following:
» A significant decline in the market capitalization of the entity or other entities producing the same
commedity;
+ A significant deterioration n expected luture commedity prices;
+ A large cost overrun on a capital project such as an overrun during the development and construction of
A new minge;
« A significant revision of the life of mine plan; and
»  Adverse changes in government regulations and environmental law, including a significant [nciease in
the tax or royalty burden payable by the mine,

It the event that the carrying amount of mine properties exceeded its recoverable amount, an impairment loss will
be recognized in profit or loss. Reductions in price forecasts, amount of recoverable mineral reserves and mineral
resources, and/or adverse current econcmics can result in a write-down of the carrying amounts of the Group’s

properties.

Esitmating residual values and useful lives of property and equeipment

The Group ¢stimates residual values and useful lives of property and equipment based on the period over which
the assets are expected 1o be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are revicwed
periadically and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical
or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of assels. In addition, estimation of the useful
lives of property and equipment is based on colleclive assessment of industry practice, internal technical
evaluation and experience with similar assers. It is possible, however, that the future resulls of operations could
be materially affected by changes in estimates brought by ¢hanges in the factors mentioned above. The amounts
and liming of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these [actors and circumstances.
A reduetion in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase recorded expenses and
dicrease non-current assets,

The carrying amounts of property and equipment amounted to P42,170,961 and P2,427,268 as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively (see Nete 17). Useful lives of property and equipment is disclosed in Note 2,135,

Exttmaling impairment losses on properly and eguipment
The Group assesses impairment on its property and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an assct may not be recoverable. The factors that the Group considers
important which could trigger-an impairment review include the following:
s significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
¢ significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall business; and
e significant negative industry or economic trends. '
In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be generated from continued use of
the assets, the Group is reguired to make estimates that can materially affect the financial statements.

The assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
wmount may not be recoverable, For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are nssessed at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

An impairment loss is recognized and charged to statements of loss if the discounted expected future cash flows
are bess (han the carrying amount, Fair value is estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using a
discount faclor that reflects the market rate for a term consistent with the period of expected cash flows. There
was no provision for impairment loss on property and equipment recognized in 2021, 2020 and 2019.



Approved by:
Date:

Estimating alloweance for impairment losses on non=financial assets (except property and equipment, and mine
propariizs)

The Group provides allowance for impairment losses on non-financial assets when they can no longer be realized.
The wicunts and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if the Group made different judgments
or utilized different estimates. An increase in allowance for impairment losses would increase recorded expenses
and decrease related assels,

There was no indication of impairment noted on the Group’s non-financial assets in 2021, 2020 and 2019,

Assessing reatizability of deferred income tax asseis

The Group reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at cach reporting date and reduces the amount to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available ta allow all or part of the
deferred tax assets 1o be utilized in the future. The amount of deferred tax assets that are recognized is based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies to which the

deferred tax assets can be utilized.

The Group's deferred tax asset amounted to P16,157,337 and P6,154,303 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively (Mote 28).

4.3 Provisfon and contingenciey

Judoment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies. The policy en the
recoenition and disclosure of provisions is discussed in Nole 3.

| NOTE $ - BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 17 February 2017, the Doard of Directors of APL approved the subscription by certain individuals (the
“subscribers™) to a total of 247,396,071,520 APL shares (the “subscription shares™) to be issued out of the
proposed increase of APL’s capital stock in exchange for the assignment of the subscribers’ 4,133,740 IDVC
Resources Corporation (*JDVC™) common shares to APL representing §2.67% of the outstanding capital stock
af JIDVC (the “share swap lransaction™).

‘I'he wansfar value of the JDVC shures at P598 .42 per share or an aggregate transfer value of P2,473,960,715.20
is based on the appraised value of JDVC’s net assets at business combination date.

A deed of exchange and an amended deed of exchange covering the share swap transaction was entered into by
APL und the subscribers on 17 February 2017 and 18 May 2017, respectively. The aforesaid increase in APL’s
capital stock and the ahove subscriptions (share swap transaction) was approved by the SEC on Octaber 2, 2017.

Acqurisition of Non-cantrolling Interests

On December 10, 2019, the BOD approved the additional acquisition of 389,530 shares from existing stockholders
of JDVC for P267.6 million. As a result, the Parent Company has 90.47% ownership of IDVC as at December
31, 2019 and no subsequent mevement for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 2021,



Approved by:
Date:

] MNOTE 6 - SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

In determining whether an NCI is material to the Parent Company, management employs both quantitative and
qualitative factors to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the Parent Company’s interests in these
entities, and the effects of those interests on the Parent Company’s financial position. Factors considered include,
but not limited to, carrying value of the subsidiary”s NCI relative to the NCI recognized in the Parent Company’s
consolidated financial statements, the subsidiary's contribution to the Parent Company's consolidated revenues
and nel income, and other relevant qualitative risks associated with the subsidiary’s nature, purpose and size of
activities.

Based on mansgement’s assessment, the Group has concluded that JDVC is considered a subsidiary with NCT that
iz mzicrial to the Parent Company.

The ability of the subsidiary to pay dividends or make other distributions or payments 1o their sharcholders
(including the Parent Company) is subject to applicable law and other restictions contained in financing
agreements, sharcholder agreements and other agreements that prohibit or limit the payment of dividends or other
transfers of funds,

The summarized financial information of JDVC is presented below, before inter-company eliminations but after
consolidation adjustments for poodwill, other fair value adjustments on acquisition and adjustments required to
apply uniform aceounting policies at group level.

2021 2020
Equity share held by NCI 9.53% 9.55%
Summarized Statements of Financial Position:
Currenl ussets P 13456802 P 2,365 D84
Noen-current assets 870,172,527 841,142,023
Current Labilities 56,289,616 113.%62,037
Won-current liabilities 387,595,082 269,749,562
Tozal Equiry 439,744,631 439.796,113
Equity attribotable to Parent Company shareholders 196,049 384 214,189 966
Equity attributable to NCI 243,695,247 245,606,147
Summarized Statcmcnls of Comprehensive Income:
Revenues ¢ - F -
et loss (20,051.415) (11,936,7249)
lncome(Loss) anributble to Parent Company shareholders (18,140.,515) (10.799,152)
Loss attributable 1o NCI (1,910,900) (1,037,577)
Dividends declared to NCI
Dividends paid to NCI
Summarized Statemenis of Cash Flows:
Operating activities P (34,109,676) P (11,906,88%)
Investing aetivilies (29,665,714) (5,062,142)
Financing activities 94,696,566 16,585,035
Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates 36,374 (2,960)
Net increase {decrease] in cash 10,957,550 {387,951}

NOTE 7=SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has only two business segments, these are primarily involved in mining however, one was incorporated
unly in 2021 and has not yet started its operalion. As of December 31, 2021, the Group operates in one geographic
loeation anly and therefore, no information on geographical segment is presented.
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[ NOTE 8 — FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments ar¢ composed of cash and cash equivalents, receivable and payables,
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finances for the Group’s operations, The risks arising
from the use of financial instruments are managed through a process of on-going identification, measurement, and
monitoring. This process of risk management is critical to the Group's continuing profitability.

The BOD is vlimately responsible for overall risk management approach, monitoring risk exposures, and
approving risk mitigation strategies and policizs,

The main risics arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk,

& 1 Objectives qitd policies

The Group has significant exposure to the following financial risks primarily from its use of financial instrumeants:

o [nlerest rate risk
= Liquidity risk
= Credit risk

This note presents information about the exposure to each of the foregoing risks, the objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing these risks, and for management of capital.

I'he principal non-trade related financial instruments of the Group is cash. This financial instrument is used mainly
for weorking capitel management purposes. Trade-related financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group
such as trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, excluding statutory liabilities, arise directly from
and are used to facilitate its daily operations.

The BOD has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework of
the Group.

The risk manugement policies of the Group are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Group.
ta set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and activities. The Group, through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which ll employees understand their roles and obligations.

8.2 Inteiest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk management policy centers on reducing the overall interest expense and exposure
to changes in interest rates. Changes in markel interest rates relate primarily to the Group's interest-bearing debt
ohligations with floating interest rate as it can cause a change in the amount of interest payments.

The Group follows prudent policies in managing its exposures to interest rate fluctuation, and constantly monitors
its exposure to fluctuation in interest rates to estimate the impact of interest rate movements on its interest expense,

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group does not have any repriceable financial instruments subject 10
vatiable intercst rates. There are no significant interest rate risk exposures since the interest-bearing loans &
horrowings are subject to fixed interest rates of 6% to 10% and all other financial assets and liabilities are non-

interest bearing.

8.3 Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk pertains to the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty to meet payment obligations when they
fall due under normal and stress eircumstances.

The Group's objectives to manage its liquidity risk are as follows: (a) to ensure that adequate funding is available
at all times; (b) to meet commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary coss; (c) to be able to access
funding when needed at the least possible cost; and (d) 10 maintain an adequate time spread of refinancing
walurities.
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The Graup constantly monitors and manages its liquidity position, liquidity gaps and surplus on a daily basis. A
committed stand-by credit facility from several local banks is also available to ensure availability of funds when

necossury.,

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities based on

contractual undiscounted recelpts and payments used for liquidity management.

December 31, 2021

Carrying On Less than Orver
Amount demand 1 Year 1 Year
Finaneial assels at amortized cost
Crash in bunk (Note 11} P 202430661 P 202,430,661 P - P
Recaivables (Note 12) 3,834,663 3,834,663
Segurity deposit (Note 13) 71,772 - 1,771 -
Construction bond {Nole 13) 24,000 - 50,000 -
Advances to contraciors (MNote 14} 41,453,933 - - 41,453,933
Tatal : 1“2:1511433 Fo202430.661 P 3956435 1 41,453,933
Financial labilities at amortized cost
Accounts and other pavables* (Note 19) r 5645854 P 38245143 P 2097698 P -
Loans and borrowings (Nowe 20} 90,999,901 - 23,600,000 67,399,901
Advances from contractoes (Mote 21} 91,070,200 & 55,151,000
Advances from relned porties (Note 24) 247,983,223 # - 247,983,223

Tolal FOo435699,078 P 38245143 F 80848698 P 313,383,124
Senchading governmeind dabililis
December 31, 2020
Currying On Less than Over
Amount demantd 1 Yeur 1 Year
Finuneial assets at umeartized cost
{*nsh in bank (Note 11) g 280057 P Bg0.057 i P
Seeurity deposit (Wote 13) T2 - 71,972
Construction bond (Mote 13] 50,000 - 50,000 .
Advances 1o contractors (Noiw 14) 44,888,691 - - 44,888,601
Tuotal P 45,899,520 280057 P 121,772 P 44,888,691
Financial liabilitics 2t amortized cost
Accounts and other payables* (Note 19) o 40,342,841 P 37500000 P 2842841 P -
Advances from contractors (Note 21) 55,151,000 - 35,151,000 &
Lozns and borrowings (Wote 20) 37,550,000 = 13,950,000 23,600,000
Advances from related parties (Note 24) 247,924,543 - - 247.924.585
Towal * 330968426 P 37500000 T1543 841 P 271.524.585

2exefuding gavernniem labilities

8.4 Credit risk

Credit visk is the risk of financial loss to the Group when a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
{o meet its contractual obligations and arises principally from receivables, The Group manages its eredit risk
mainly through the application of transaction limits and close risk monitoring. It is the Group's policy to enter
inte transactions with a wide diversity of creditworthy counterparties to mitigate any significant concentration of
credit risk.

The Group has regular internal contral reviews to monilor the granting of credit and munagement af credit
CXPOSULES.
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Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of finaneial assets is the varrying amount of the financial assets as
shiowis on the face of the consolidated statements of financial position (or in the detailed analysis provided in the
nates to the consolidated financial statements).

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group has no financial assets for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition and that arg credit-impaired.

Credit quality per elass of financial assets
The following table show a comparison of the credil quality af the Group's financial assets by class as at the

reporting date:

As at December 31, 2021
Meither past due nor impaired Past due bt
High Grade Standard Grade nol impaired Trnpaired Tatal
Financial assets at amortized cost
Cash in bank {(Nofe 11) P 202430061 P - p - P - P 202430.661
Raceivables (Mote 12) 3,834,603 - 431,197 4,265,860
Seeurity deposit (Mote 13) 71,772 - - - 1,772
Crstruction bond (Kote 13) 0,000 - - 50,000
Advances o eontractors {(Note 14) 41,453,933 - 3,944,387 45.398.320
Fotal P 24784102% m 4375584 P - P 252216613
As at December 31, 2020
Meither past due nor impaired Pasl due but
High Gruade Standard Grade not impaired T parel Tamal
Financial assets at amortized cost
Cash in bank (Note 11) P g30,057 P - P - P - T 889,057
Securily deposil [(Note 13) 71772 71772
Construction bond (MNote 13) 50,000 50,000
Atlvances (o comtrctors (Mot 14) 44.RR8.691 44 KE8.691
Tatal P 45800520 P - P - P = P 45899.520

The Group evaluates credit quality on the basis of the credit strength of the security and/or counterparty/issuer.
High grade financial assets are those which collectability is assured based on past expericnce. Standard grade
financial essets are considered moderately realizable and some accounts which would regquire some reminder
follow-ups lo ¢btain settlement from the counterparty. The Group determines if credit risk have increased
significantly when financial assets are more than 30 days past due.

The Group’s management considers none of the financial assets to ke impaired or past due at the end of each
financial reporting period.

Ceasli In branks
The cradit risks for cash in banks are considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high
quality external credit ratings.

Security deposits and Constraction bond Thess pertain to receivables from counterparties which are not expected
to default in setting its obligations, hence there is no perceived credit risk.
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Maximum Credit Risk Expostir
Finanelal information on the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk without considering the effects of
collaterals and other risk mitigation techniques, is presented below,

[Pecember 31,
2021 2020
Financia! assets at amoriized cost
Cash in bank (MNote 11) P 202430661 P £89,057
Receivables (Note 12) 4,265,860 -
Security deposit {(Note 13) 71,772 T1L772
Construction bond (Nota 13) 50,000 50,000
Advances 1o contractors (Note 14) 45,398,520 14,888,691
Totnl P 252216,613 T 45899520

The Group daes not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements attached to its financial assets.

The credit risk for is considered negligible, since the counterparties arc reputable entities with high quality external
credic ratings.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of counterparty. Generally, the maximum credit risk
exposure of receivables is its carryinz amount without considering collaterals or credit enhancements, if any. The
Group has no significant coneentration of credit risk since the Group deals with a large number of homogenous
counterpartics. The Group does not execute any credit guarantee in favor of any counterparty.

NOTE 9—- CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES, & PROCEDURES

The Group’s capital inanagement objectives are:
+  Toensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximize shareholder value.
To invest the capital in investments that mect the expected return with the commensurate level of risk
axposure,

The Group maintains a sound capital base to ensure its ability to continue as a going concern, thereby continue to
provide returns to stockholders and benefits to other stakehalders and to maintain an optimal capital structure 1o

reduce cost of capital.

The Group menages its capital structure and makes adjustments, in the light of changes in cconomic conditions,
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, pay-off
existing debt, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group considers its equity and loans & borrowings as capital.

The Group moniters ils financial leverage using the debt-to-equity which is computed as total liabilities divided
by 1otal equity &5 shown in the table below:

2021 2020
Total liahilities P 437,089,051 P 382,202,161
Total equity 3,999,229,948 2.965.228.510
Debt-to-equity ratio 0.11:1 0.13:1

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. There were no changes in the Group's
approach 1o capital management during the year.
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NOTE 10 = FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

101 Careying anionnts and fair valies by category

The table below presents a comparisen by category of carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 202(
Carrying Fair Canrying Fair
Value value Value value
Firancial assets at amortized cost
Cash in bank (Nate 11) P 202430661 P 20243046061 P E8§9.057 P 589,057
Receivibles (Note 12) 3,834,663 3,834,663 - .
Security deposit (Note 13) 71,7112 71,772 71,772 71,7712
Construction bond (Mote 13) SO0 S0,000 0,000 S0,000
Advances to contractors (Note 14) 41,453,933 41,453.933 44 888,691 44 888 .6Y1
Total P O247841,029 P 247841029 P A5 80520 P 45.899,520
inaneial liabilities ot amortized cost
Accounts and other payables® {Note 19) r 5645854 P 5645854 T 40342841 1 40,342,584 ]
Advanees from contractors (Note 20) 91,070,200 41,070,200 55150000 55,131,000
Lonns and borrowings (Note 21) L9492 901 990,999,901 37,550,000 37,330,000
Achvances from related parties (Mot 24) 247983225 247983223 247,424,583 2474924 5848
Tutal P 435699178 P 435699178 P 380968420 P _380.968.426

*erelugliing sletifdry liabilities

Cush. Receivables, Accounts and Other Payables (excluding statutory payables), Advances te(from) Contractors
antd Loan Payable. The carrving values of these financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the
relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Advances ta (from) Related Parties. The carrying amounts of these related party transactions approximate their
fair values.

10.2 Fair value hierarclny

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial position
aré cateporized in accordance with the fair value hicrarchy. This hierarchy Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities into three levels hased on the significance of inputs used in measuring the fair value of the financial
assets and financial liabilities.

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
- Level 1; quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived fiom prices); and,
Level 3: inputs far asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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The fallowing table summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group's financial assets and liahilitics, which are
measured at fair value or requires disclosure as prescribed by other PFRS, as at December 31, 2020 and 2019

December 31, 2021

Level 1 Livel 2 Level 3 Totul

Financial essets at amortized cost

Casly in baok (Mote 11) 202,430,661 - - 202,430,661

Receivehles {(Note 12) - - 3,834,603 3,834,663

Security deposit (Mote 13} - - 71,772 11,772

Constroction bond (Note 13 - - So,000 56,000

Advances (o contractors (Note 14) - =i - 41,453,933 41,453,933
latatl 202,430,661 - 45,410,368 247,841,029
Financial Habilitics at amortized cost:

Aceounts and other peyables* Mote 19) - - 5,645,854 5,645,854

Advunces from eontmetors (Note 21) 91,070,200 01,090,200

Loans wnd borrowings (Note 20) - - (1,999,501 90,999,901

Advances from related parties (Note 24) - - 147983223 247.983.223
Total - - 435,699,178 435,699,178

December 31, 20240
Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Totul

Financinl ossets al amortized cost

Cush in bank (MNote 11) BRO.057 - - 880,037

Sewurily deposit (Wote 13) - = 71,772 71772

Constraction bond (Note 13) - - 50,000 50,004

Adwanoes to contractors (MNote 14) 44.888.691 44,888,691
Total ERY057 - 450110463 45,899 520
Financial lizbilities at amortized cost:

Adccounts and other payables®* (Note 19) - - 40,342 841 40,342 841
Advanees from contractors (Note 21) 55,151,000 55,151,000

Loans nnd borrowings (Mote 20) " - 37,550,000 37,550,000

Ailvanees from related parties (Mote 24) - - 247,924,585 247 924 585
Tatul - = 30,968 426 380,968 425

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, there are no financial assets or financial liabilities measured at fair value,
There were 1o t-ansfers between Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 fair value measurements in 2021 and 2020.

inangial instry not me at fair value for which fair value i
For financial assets with fair values included in Level 1, management considers that the carrying amaunts of these
financial instruments approximate their fair values due to their shori-term duration.

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities included in Level 3, which are not traded in an active
market, are determined based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset or liability base of the
instrument where the significant inputs required 1o determine fair value of such instruments are not based on
observable market data.
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NOTE 11 - CASH

As of December 31, the account consists of the following:

Particolors 2021 2020
Petty cash fund 20000 P 20,000
Cash in banks 202,430,661 E89057
Towml P 201‘450.651 I 909,057

Cash in bank earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Interest income from bank deposits amounted Lo
P36.247, 4,797, and P19,573 for the years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, res pectively (Wote 27).

Included in cash in banks are amounts in a currency other than the Group's functional currency. As of December
31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 unrealized forcign exchange loss arising from foreign exchange translation at year-end
spot rates amounted to P868,326, P3,960 and P969, respectively, were recognized in the Company’s bank dollar

account,

NOTE 12 -RECEIVABLES

As of December 31, this account consists of the following:

Particulars 2021
Advances 1o CBO P 4,240,000
Advances to employees 23,860
Totul 4,265,860
Allowance for expected eredil losses (431,197)
hat P 3,834,663

Movement of allowance for expected credit losses is as follows:

Partieulars 021
January 1, B =
Provision (Note 25) 431,197
Wit of T -
Roversals -
Degember 31, | 4 431,197

The account is nil as of December 31, 2020,

NOTE 13 —-OTHER CURRENT ASSET

Az of December 31, this account consists of the following:

Tarticulars 2021 2024
[nput taxoes P 3623500 P 2582710
Prins vear's excess eredit 1,237,509 1,237,309
Security deposit 71,772 772
Prepaid rent 67,077 -
Construction bonds 50,000 50,000

Tl F 5049858 P 3942010
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Input tax is the 12% value added tax (VAT) on purchase of goods or services in the course of its trade or business.
At the end of each taxable period, input tax can be applied against output tax.

Prior year’s excess credits represent excess lax payments and credits over tax liabilities of the immediately
preceding taxable period which may be refunded, converted to tax credit certificates, or carried over to the next
taxable year,

Sceurity deposits represent noninterest-bearing deposits made on lease and are usually refundable after the end of
contract ar services less any charges. Construction bonds represent noninterest-bearing bonds that are used to
secure against damages during construction and will be refundable after the end of construction, net of any
charpes

[ NOTE 14— ADVANCES TO CONTRACTORS =

As of December 31, the account consists of:

Contractors 2021 2020
Agbiag Mining Development Corporation (Agbiag) B -~ P 43851181
Offshare Mining Chamber of the Philippines 2,745,000 1,000,000
Cagayan Blue Ocean 208,950 300
Others 42,444,370 37,000
lotal 45,398,320 44,888,691
Allowancs for expected credit losses (3,944,387) -
Met P 41453933 P 44888691

Movement of allowance for expected credit losses is as follows:

Purticulars 2021
Junuary 1, _ e -
Provizion {MNote 25) 3,944,357
Write oft’ =
Reversals -
December 31, F 3,944,387

The account is nil as of December 31, 2020.

This aceount pertains to the unsecured and noninterest-bearing cash advances exlended by the Subsidiary to its
contractors for the payment of the permits, overhead fees, exploration services, depth and sounding survey studies
and other technical expenses incurred by the latter. These advances have no fixed repayment date and are not
expected 1o be collected within one year from the financial reporting date, hence, classified as non-current asset
in the consolidated statements of financial pogition.
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| NOTE 15— INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE i
In 2021, the Company acquired 49% ownership of Poct Blue Ocean.
As of December 31, this account consists of the fallowing:
Particulars 2021

Cost P 711,280,880

Equity in net earnings 97,772,094

Total P 809,752,974
Movement of squity in net eanings is as follows:

Particulars 2021

January 1, P -

Share in net sarnings for the year 97,772,094

December 31, P 97,772,094
There were no dividends deciared as of December 31, 2021,
As af December 31, 2020, the account is nil.

[ NOTE 16— MINE PROPERTIES |
The movement of the mine properties” cost is as follows:
Minerul
Development
Particulars Mineral Asscty Cast Pateat Total

Az at December 31, 2019 r 2.500,098,008 P 694,056,557 P 89,000,000 P 3.284.054.565

Additions 4,694,000 4,694,000
Asg at December 31, 2020 P 2,500,098.008 699,650,557 P §0,000,000 P 328K 74K 565
Additions - 26, 7000127 - 26,700,027
Ay ot December 31,2021 P 2.500,098.008 726,350,584 I 89,000,000 ¥  3,315,448,591

JDVC was granted by the Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) a Mineral Production
Sharing Agreemient (MPSA) -338-2010-11-OMR covering an area of approximately 14,240 hectares (ha) located
within the municipal waters of the Municipalities of Sanchez Mira, Pamplona, Abulug, Ballesteros, Appari,
Buguey, and Genzaga, in the Province of Cagayan for a term of 25 years and renewable for anather 25 years,

Originally, the MPSA was granted to Bo Go Resources Mining Corporation (Be Go) on June 9, 2010. On
November 25, 2011, Bo Go executed a deed of assignment (DOA) to transfer to the Company all its rights and
interest in and title to the MPSA. On January 27, 2012, the DOA was approved by the Mines and Geosciences
Bureau (MGD) and was duly approved a year after, January 25, 2013, by the DENR.

The DOA, as approved, carries with it the respensibility to implement the Exploration Work Program and the
Environmental Work Program which were eventually taken over by the Company, as well as the submission of
the resular Technical/Progress reports. The Environmental Impact Assessment likewise was completed and
presented to the various municipalities and stakebolders in the Province of Cagayan. Afler the approval of the
DENR, pursuant to the agreement, the Compuny proceeded to do the Technical or Progress Report Exploration,
Envitonmental Wark Programs and Expleration Work Programs.
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IOVC through a DOA transferred all rights and interest in the 2,400 ha portion of the MPSA-335-2010-11-OMR
le Sanlorenzo Mines, Inc. The DOA was spproved by the DENR on May 20, 2016. The remaining 11,840 ha was
redenominated as MPSA No. 338-2010-11-OMR-Amended A.

On March 14, 2017, 3,161.84 ha of the remaining 11.840 ha were relinquished by the Company in favor of the
Government.

On August 9, 2017, the Company executed DOAs, which was registered with the DENR on April 2, 2018,
assigning portion of MPSA No. 338-2010-11-OMR-Amended A as follows:

Company Name Area Assigned (ha)
Catagaven Iron Sand Mining Resources Corp. 318278
Uapayan Ore Meral Mining Exploration Corp. 2,149.83
Catngayan Mining Respurces (Phils ) Inc. 1,4458.51

Ihese companies were all incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the SEC on July 1, 2016, primarily
{o engage on the business of exploring, prospecting and operating mines and quarries of all kind of ores and
minerals,

On August 6, 2019, the Declaration of Mining Project Feasibility filed by the Company last May 25, 2016, was
approved by the DENR authorizing the Company 10 proceed with the Development and Operating Periods of
MPSA No. 338-2010-I1-OMR-Amended A covering the 4.999.24 ha, including extraction and comumercial
disposition of magnetite iron sand and other associated minerals at the oftshore areas in the Province of Cagayan.

As of December 31, 2021, the remaining 1,897.02 ha contract area of the MPSA No. 338-2010-1IOMR-Amended
A which has been fully explored since 2017,

Tha carrying value of mine properties approximates its fair value as of December 31, 2021 based on the valuation
report conducted by Cuervo Appraisers, Inc. dated February 16, 2022, Hence the account is not impaired.

Mineral Assels
Mineral assets pertain to the acquisition cost of the rights over mineral reserves represcated by the excess of the

fair value of shaves issued by the Parent Company over the carrying amount of the net assets of 1DVC when the
Purent acquired 82.67% ownership IDVC.

Palent

Patent was acquired by Agbiag Mining Development Corporation (Agbiag) for the siphon vessel used in the
exploration of the mining in Cagayan. Agbiag allows the Company to use its research, study and intellectual
preperty right on a non-exclusive basis, for the duly researched and studied siphon vessel for the offshore
magnctite iron sand commercial extraction through a MOA signed on September 2014 (see Note 30). The
Compuny has an outstanding liability to Agbiag amounting to nil and 37,500,000 for the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (see Note 17).

Mining Costs

Mining costs include the costs incurred in the exploration and evaluation phase of mining, Such costs consist of
expenditures related to the exploration of the mines, drilling activities, and other direct costs related to the
exploration activities. The recovery af these costs depends upon the success of the exploration activities, the future
developiment of the corresponding mining properties and the extraction of mineral products as these properties
shilt into commarcial operations,

I'he exploration activities for the mine area of the Company were completed in 2017, hence, the related exploration
and evaluation asscts were transferred to mine under development. Mine under development are not subject to
depletion until the production has commenced.

Estimated Units of Production of Mine
The computation of ore reserve was done by a competent individual geologist using the Polygon Method, The ore

reserve has a total of 606.458 million tons, With the computed indicated resource, the mine life for the current ore
resource is 87.7 years for the siphoning and utilizing magnetic separation on-board of the vessels. With the yearly
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production schedule of 6.91 million tons of raw cand with an average magnetite fraction of 19.79% and 95%

material recovery, the operations can vicld an iron concentrate of 1.30 million metric tons per annum production,
using 3 units of production lines of platform.

[NOTE 17 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

As of December 31, 2021, the account consists of the following:

Beginning Ending
Particulars Balance Additions Disposal Balance
Cost:
Muchineries and eguipment r - P 40,000,000 P - P 40,000,000
Leasehold improvements 1,358,600 125,500 - 1,484,106
Office furniture and eguipment K67,539 221,120 - 1,088,659
Mator vehicle 1,347,280 - - 1,347,280
Computer sofiware 237,628 - 257,628
Sub-tatal 3573425 P 40604298 P - 44,177,673
Aveamulated depreciation:
Leasshold improvements 47,710 P 295148 - T606,918
Office furniture and equipment 747 52,878 - 33,625
Mator vehicle 673,640 505,230 * 1,178,870
Computer soflvware - 7299 - 7,299
Sub-total 1,145,157 P R60,533 P - 2,006,712
Met biook valus
Muachineries and equipment - 40,000,000
Leaschold improvements BREE3G 717,188
Office furniture and equipmeat H66, 790 1,035,034
Maotar vehicle 673,640 168,410
Computer soflwure - 250,329
Sub-tatal P 2427268 42,170,901

As of December 31, 2020, the account consists of the following:

Beginning Ending
Particulars Balunce Adiditions Disposal Balance
Cost:
Leasehold improvements P ¥ 1,358,606 P - P 1358605
(iTiee (arniure-and equipment 448.997 418,542 - 867,539
hotor vehicle 1.347.280 - - 1,347,280
Sub-total 1,796,277 ¢ LIT7148 T - 3575425
Accumulated depreciation:
Leasehold improvements 397693 P 74.077 471,770
OMice furniture and equipment - 747 747
Motor vehicle 168,410 505.230 673,644
Sub-total 560,103 P 580,054 P - 1.146,137
Met book valos
(}fice fumiture and eguipment 51,304 586,836
Lensehald improvements - K66,790
Muotar vehiele 1,178.870 673,640
Sub-total » lil?pﬂ,l 74 P 2427268

The Group elected to use the cost model in accounting for property and equipment.
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As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, there are no indication of any impairment loss on the carrying antouat of
property & equipment since its recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

[he amount of depreciation charged to general and administrative expenses for the vears ended December 31,
2021, 2020 and 2019 amounted to P860,555, P580,054 and P418,573 (Note 25), respectively.

Mone of the properties were pledged or mortgaged a3 collateral to secure any of the Group’s loans.

[ NOTE 18 - WEBSITE COST

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the account amounted to P360,776 and nil, respectively, The account was
fally amoertized in 2021. (Note 25)

The Group’s website is determined to have an indefinite useful life because considering all of the relevant factors,
there is no foreseeable limit to the pericd over which the asset is expected to generate cash inflows forthe Group.
Wehsite cost is not amartized but is tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating
unit level.

As of Decaraber 31, 2021 and 2020, there is no indication of any impairment loss on the carrying amount of
intangble assets since its recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

[ NOTE 19— ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES

As of December 31, this account consists of the following:

_ December 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Accrued expenses P 507,753 P 2,097,698
Delarred avtput VAT B18.036 R18,036
Avcounts pavable 574,102 745,143
Statutory payables 571,816 413,099
Fayahle to a contracior - 37.500.000
Tatal PO7.0385.707 P 41576570

Payahleto a contractor pertains to the outstanding liability to Agbiag for the patent for the siphon vessel used in
ils exploration activities (see Note 16). It is payable on demand of Agbiag.

Statulory payables consist of withholding taxes and other payables to government agencies. Accrued expenses
include professional fees and various unpaid expenses. Accounts payable consist of liabilities arising from
transactions with contractars and supplicrs related 1o the normal course of business.

These liabilities are unsecured and noninterest-bearing and are normally settled within the next 12 months.

[ NOTE 20 - LOANS AND BORROWINGS

As of December 31, 2021, outstanding balance of the convertible Ioans are all payable to Cagayan Bilue Ocean
Offshere Acquamarine Services Corporation (CBO) and Agbiag Mining Development Corporation. To wil:

luterest
Rate Terms. Condilions/Securitics Anmount
October 1, 2019 - Converible, at the option of CBO, at uny time
%% P Oetober 1, 2021 during the Inan period into shares atP100 a share.  # 4,730,000
December 19, 2019 — Convisrtible, at the option of CBO, at any time

6% p.a. [december 19, 2021 during the loan period into shares at 100 & share, 1,060,000



6% pt.
6% p.o,
b pon
Gla p.
6% pa.
B% pon.
6% n.a
6% poa
6% pon
6% a
G pa
6% pn
G% paa
6% p.a
6% p.u
i pa
0% p.a
6% pa
ik pa
b% p.a
(Y% p.a
(% pa
% pa
6% pa
6% pa
6% pa
6% pon
625 pon
6% pa
6% paa
6% p.a.
6% pa

6% p.iL

January 15, 2020 —
January 15, 2022
February 10, 2020 -
February 10, 2022
February 28, 2020 —
Fehruary 28, 2022
March 12, 2020 — March
12, 2022

April 6, 2020 — April 6,
2022

April 6, 2020 — April &,
2012

June 15, 2020 — June 135,
2022

June 24, 2020 — June 24,
2022

June 24, 2020 — June 24,
2022

July 7, 2020 — Julv 7,
2022

July 20, 2020 — July 20,
2022

July 28,2020 = July 24,
2022

Angust 5, 2020 - August
3, 2022

September 3, 2020 —
September 3, 2022
Oletnber 5, 20020 =
Qctober 5, 2022
Oetober 13, 2020
October 13,2022
Oetober 15, 2020
October 15, 2022
Oetober 22, 2020 —
Ocwober 22, 2022
Cetober 29, 2020 —
Cetober 29, 2022
Movember 9, 2020 =
Novemhber 9, 2022
Movember 11, 2020 -
November 11, 2022
November 19, 2020 -
Kovember 19, 2022
November 27, 2020 -
Nowvember 27, 2022
December 4, 2020 —
December 4, 2022
December 11, 2020 -
December 11, 2022
December 15, 2020 -
December 15, 2022
December 18, 2020 —
December 18, 2022
December 23, 2020 —
December 23, 2022
December 28, 2020 —
Decamber 28, 2022
January 3, 2021 —
January 5, 2023
January 11,2021 —
Janwary 11, 2023
January 12, 2021 —
January 12, 2023
January 19, 2021 -
Junuary 19, 2023
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Convertible, at the option of CBO, af any tims
during the loan period mto shares at P100 2 share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the logn perind into shares at PLOD 2 share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, af uny time
during the loan perind into shares at P100 a share.
Convertible, at the optien of CBO, at nny time
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share,
Convertible, ut the option of CBO, at any time
during the loun period into shares at 100 2 share.
Convertible, at the optien of CBO, at any lime
during the loan pericd into shares at P100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the Joan period into shares at P100 a chare,
Converlible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at £100 a share,
Converlible; at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan perind into shares at #100 a share,
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares a2 P100 a share.
Convertiile, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the lonn period into shares at P100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time

during the loan period into shares at P100 a share.

Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at 100 a share.
Coovertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the lvan period into shares at P100 a share.
Convertible, at the oprion of CBO, at any tine
during the lisn period into shares at P100 n share.
Convenible, at the pplion of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at P10D a share.
Converlible, ot the option of CBO, at any tme
during the luan period into shares ar #100 a share.
Convertible, at the oplion ol CBO, al any time
during the loan period into shares at #100 a share.
Convertiblz, at the oplion of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares ot #100 4 share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the foan periad into shares at 100 a share.
Convertiblz, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan pericd into shares al PLOU o share.
Convertible, af the option of CBO, al any time
during the loan peried into shares ot #1004 share.
Converlible, gt the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares al P100 o share.
Canverlible, at the option of CBO, at any lime
during the loan perivd into shares ol #1040 a share.
Convertible, ot the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share
Convertible, at the option of CBO, a1 any lime
during the loan period into shares at PI00 a share.
Convertihle, at the option of CBC, at any time
during the loan period into shares at F104 a share.
Canvertible, at the option of CBO, at any time-
during the lann period into shares at P100 a share.
Converible, at the option of CBO, nt any tims
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during {he lown period inlo shares at P100 a share.
Converlible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into sharss at P100 a share,
Convertible, at the option of CBO, sl any time
during the loan period into shares a1 P100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan perisd into shares a1 100 a share.

2,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
500,000
1,000,000
500,000
S041,0100
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,400,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
300,800
1,000,000
1,500,000
2,000,000
500,000
500,000
S00,000
200,000
350,000
350,000
300,000
650,000
150,000
500,000
309,000
S010,000
1,500,000
350,000

3,000,000



January 29, 2021 -
January 29, 2023
February 21, 2021 -
February 21, 2023
Febroary 8, 2021 —
Febroary 8, 2023
February 18, 2021 -
Febroary 18, 2022
February 22, 2021 -
February 23, 2023
February 26, 2021 -
February 26, 2023
March 1, 2021 — March
1, 2023

March 5, 2021 — March
5, 2023

March 12, 2021 — March
12 2023

March 18, 2021 — March
14, 2023

March 24, 2021 — March
24,2023

March 25. 2021 — March
25, 2023

March 29, 2021 — March
19,2023

April 7,2021 — April 7,
2023

April 12, 2021 — April
12.2023

April 14, 2021 = Aprl
14, 2023

April 22, 2021 — Apil
22, 2023

April 27,2021 — April
27,2023

May 4, 2021 —May 4,
2023

May 7, 2021 —May 7,
2023

Muay 12, 2021 — May 12,
2023

May 19, 2021 — May 19,
2023

Muay 25, 2021 — May 25,
2023

May 31, 2021 = May 31,
2023

June 2, 2021 —June 2,
2023

June 8, 2021 = June 8,
2023

June 9, 2021 =June &,
2073

June 14, 2021 = June 2,
2023

Jure 18, 2021 = June 18,
2023

June 29, 2021 - June 29,
2023

July 8, 2021 = July 8,
023

July 14,2021 —July 14,
023

July 23, 202] — July 23,
2023
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Convertible, at the option of CBO, al any lime
during the Inan period into shares at T100 o share,
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period no shares at #1100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, avany time
during the loan period into shares at P100 & share,
Convertible, ut the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan perlod into shares at P100 a share.
Converiible, al the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares al P100 a share,
Convertible, al the oplion of CBO, at any time
during the loan period mto shares at P1040 a share,
Converlible, at the eption of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period inlo shares at 100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the lonn period into ghares at P100 a share,
Convertible, a1 the option of CBO, at any lime
during the loan period into shares al P100 & share,
Canverilale, at the option of CBO), at any time
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share.
Convertiblie, at the option of CBOD, ar any tima
during the loan perind into shares at P100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, atany time
during the loan period into shares al P100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBD, ot any time
during the loan period into shares at P1OD a share,
Converdible, al the oprion of CBO. at any time
during the lonn period into shares at 100 a share,
Converlible, at the option of CBO. at any lme
during the loan period info shiares at P100 a share,
Convertible, at the option of CBO, uf any time
duringz the loun period into shares at P100 a share,
Convertible, nt the option of CBO, st any lime
during the loan period into shares at 100 a share.
Convertible, at the opron of CBO, 4l any time
curing the loun period into shares at PLOD a share.
Convertible, at the option ol CBOY, ol any time
during the lean period into shares at P100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBOL #t any time
during the foan period into shares at 100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the lean period into shares ot P100 4 share.
Convertbiz, at the option of CBO, ul siny time
during the loan period into shares at B100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the Joan period into shares al 100 a share.
Convertible, a1 the option of CBO, af any tme
during the Jozn period into shares at P100 a share.
Convertible, of the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan peried into shares at P100 4 share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at #100 o share,
Convartible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share,
Converlible, ul the option o FCBO, at any time
during the loan peried into shares at #1100 o share.
Convertible, at the option of CBL, at any time
during the loan period into shares at 100 o share.
Converiible, at the oplion of CBO, at any time
during 1he loan period into shares st B100 a share,
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at P10 a share,
Canverlible, at the aption of C130, af any time
during the loan peried into shares et P100 a share,

400,000
350,000
3,000,000
200,000
350,000
350,000
100,000
1,500,000
200,000
350,000
300,000
200,000
300,000
100,000
550,000
750,000
G000
450,000
450,000
250,080
650,000
500,000
650,000
S00,000
340,000
200,000
150,000
450,000
1,000,000
450,000
200,000
300,000

70,0080



6% Pk

6% pa,

0% paa,

6% pa

6% p.a,

6% p.a.

10% p.an.
6% pa

10% p.a.
0% p.a.
0% pa
[ p .4
[0%% pua.
0% pa
% p.a
10% p.o,
1% p.a
10%0 p .
Lg% pun,
TP pa.
[P .
1% e
10845 p.a.
1086 poa.
10%
(B N
L% p.i.
1% pa.
1% pa.
e p.i

10% p.a

July 26, 2021 —July 26.
2023

Aungust 2, 2021 — August
2, 2023

Aungustd, 2021 — August
4, 2023

August 13, 2021 =
August 13, 2023
August 18, 2021 =
August 18, 2023
August 23, 2021 -
August 23, 2023
August 26, 2021 —
August 26, 2023
Auvgust 27, 2021 —
August 27, 2023
September 1, 2021 -
September 1, 2023
September 3, 2021 -
Scptember 3, 20235
Septamber 9, 2021 —
Septentber 9, 2023
September 14, 2021 —
Scplember 14, 2023
September 21, 2021 -
Septamber 21_ 2023
Oetnber 1, 2021 —
Oetober 1, 2023
Oetober 8, 2021 -
Oetober &, 2023
Oclober 15, 2021 =
October 15, 2023
October 26, 2021 =
Ocinber 26, 2023
October 28, 2021 -
October 28, 2023
November 5, 2021 -
Movember 5, 2023
November 9, 2021 -
November 9, 2023
Movember 12,2021 —
Wovember 12, 2023
MNovember 17, 2021 -
Mavember 17, 2023
Movember 17, 2021 —
Movember 17, 2023
MNovember 25, 2021 —
Movember 235, 2023
November 29, 2021 —
Movember 29, 2023
December 3,2021 —
December 3, 2023
Decomber 92,2021 ~
December 9, 2023
December 13, 2021 —
December 13, 2023
December 15, 2021 —
December 15, 2023
Diecember 20, 2021 =
December 20, 2023
December 29, 2021 -
December 29, 2023
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Converlible, af the option of CBO, at any lime

during the loan period into shares at P100 a share,

Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time

during the loan period into shares at P104) a share.

Cunverlible, at the option of CBO, at any time

during the loan period inlo shares at F100 a share.

Convertible, at the option of CBO, atany time

during the |oan period into shares at F100 a share.

Convertible, 4t the option of CBO, at any time

during the loan period into shares at P100 a share,

Convertible, at the option of CBO, atany time

during the loan period into shares al P00 a shire,

Canvertible, at the aption of CBO, at any lime

during the loan period into shares at PEO0 a share.

Converlible, at the option of CBO, at any time

during the loan period into shares at 100 a share.

Cenvertible, at the option of CBO, at any time

during the loan period into shares al P100 a share.

Convertible, at the option of CBO, ut any time

during the loan period into shares at P10 & share,

Cenvertible, af the option of CBO, at any time

during the loun period into shares at PI00 a share,

Canvertible, ar the option of CBO, at any time

during the loan period into shares at P100 a share,

Convertible, al the option of CBO, at any time

during the loan perod into shares at P100 a share.

Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time

dluring the loan period into shares at P100 a share.

Convertible, ar the eprion of CBO, at any time

duting the loan period into shares at 100 a share,

Convertibic, at the option of CBO, at any time

during the loan period into shares at P100 o share.

Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time

during the loan period into shares at P100 a share.

Canwverilble, at the option of Agbiag, al any time

duting the lean period inte shares at P100 a share.

Convertible, at the option of Agbiag, at any thne

during the loan pericd into shares at P100 a share.

Convertible, at the option of Apbiag, at any time

during the loan period into shares ar #100 a share,

Convertible, at the option of Agbiag, at any time

during the loan period into sharcs at 100 a share.

Convertible, at the option of Agbiag, at any tine

during the lean period into shares at P100 a share.

Cunverdible, al the option of Aghiag, at any time

during the loan period into shares at P100 a share.

Converdible, al the option of Agbiag, at any time

during the logn petiod into shares at P100 a share,

Canvertible, al the option ef Agbiag, at any tine

during the loan period i shares at P100 a share.

Convertible, at the option of Agbiag, at any time

during the lean period into shares at P100 a share.

Convertible, at the uption of Agbiag, at any time

during the loan period into shures at 100 a shore,

Convertible, at the option of Agbiag, at any time

during the loan perind into shares at 100 a share,

Converlible, at the option of Agbiag, at any time

during the loan period into shares at 100 a share.

Converlible, at the option of Aghiag, at any time

during the losn period into shares at P100 a share,

Converdible, al the option of Agblag, at any time

during the loan period into shares al P 10U a share,

1,100,000
S00,000
150,000
200,000
150,000
100,000

600,000
430,000
00,004
100,000
500,000
100,000
100,08
600,000

3,300,000
350,00}

1,680, (1)
400,000
150,000
250,000
250,000

2,550,000
450,000

10,549,901

1,200,000
500,000
750,000
150,000
550,000
350,000

T4, 000

P 90,999,201
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As of December 31, 2020, outstanding balance of the convertible loans ure all payable to Cagayan Blue Ocean
Olfshore Acquamarine Services Corporation (CBO). To wit:

Intersst

Rate

Terins

Conditions/Securities

Amount

% p.a,
6% pa
G p.a
& paa
% pua.
e pa
% p.a.
% pa
0t pa
(% .
(%0
0% p.a
GHopa
Mapa
0% poa
(% pa
0% paa
6% pa
6% p.a
%o pa
Y% p.a
0% paa
f%pa
e pa
0% pua

0% pia

Oclober 1, 2019 - Octaber 1. 2021

Qewgpher 1, 2019 - October 1, 2021
November 27, 2019 = November
27,2021

December 10, 2019 — December
19,2021

Junuary 15, 2020 - fanuary 15,
2022

February 10, 2020 - February 10,
2022

February 28, 2020 - February 28,
2022

March 12, 2020 = March 12, 2022
April f, 2020 - April 6, 2022
April 6, 2020 — April 6, 2022
June-13, 2020 — June 15, 2022
June 24, 2020 = June 24, 2022
June 24, 2020 — June 24, 2022
July 7, 2020 — July 7, 2022

Tuly 20, 2020 — July 20, 2022
July 28, 2020 - July 28, 2022

August 5, 2020 — August §, 20212
Seplember 3, 2020 — September 3,
2002

October 5, 2020 = October 5, 2022
Oetober 13, 2020 - Oclober 13,
i

(ctober 15, 2020 — Ociober 15,
2022

Oetober 22, 2020 — October 22,
012

Utinbier 29, 2020 — Qutober 29,
2022

November 9, 2020 — Movember 9,
a0x2

MNavember 11, 20200 — November
11,2022

Movember 19, 2020 — November
19, 2022

Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the losn period inlo shares at P100 a share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share,
Convertible, al the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at PI00 o shate.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, atany time
during the loan period into shares ot P100 a share,
Converdible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at P10U a share,
Converible, al the option of CRO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share,
Convertible, at the option of CDO, at any time
during the loan peried into shares a1 P100 o sharc.
Converlible, wl the option of CBO, atéany tima
during the loan pericd into shares at P100 a share,
Convertible, at the optien of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at P00 & share,
Convertible, at the option of CBO, atany time
during tha loan petiod into shares a1 P100 a share.
Convertible, ai the option of CBO), ot any time
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share
Convertible, ot the option of CBO, t any tima
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share,
Convertihle, at the option of CBO, atany tims
during the loan period into shares at P100 o share.
Convertible, at the option of CI30, atany time
duting the loan period into shares ol F100 u share.
Convertible; at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shares at P100 a share,
Convertible, af the option of CBO, atany time
during the loan period into shares at #1000 a share.
Convertible, arthe option of CBO, at any lime
during the loan period into shures at P100 a share.
Convertible, m the oprion of CBO, at any time

during the loan period into shares at P100 a share.

Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan peviod inio shares at #100 a share.
Clonvenrtilile, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan peviod intp shares at P1O0 a share,
Convertible, at the option of CBO, al any time
during the loan period into shares at 100 a share,
Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the loan period into shates at PLOG o share,
Converible, at the option of CBO, at any time
during the joan period into shares at 100 e share.
Convertible, at the option of CBO, al any time
during the lean period into shares at P10 a share,
Convertible, at the option of CBO. at any time
during the loan period into shares at P100 o shure,
Convertible, o1 the option of CBO, al any time
during the loan period inlo shares ol 100 o shire.

ig

6,200,000
4,750,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

300,000
1,000,000

500,000

500,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

300,000
1,000,000
1,500,000
2,000,000

500,000

500,000

500,000

200,000



November 27, 2020 = Movember

6% p.a 27,2022 during the loan perind into shares at P100 a share, 350000
December 4, 2020 — December 4, Convertible, #1 the option of CBEO, at any time

0% poa 2022 during the loan period into shares at #10U a share. 350,000
December 11, 2020 —December Convertible, ol (he option of CBO, atany time

6% pa k1, 2022 during the loan period into shares at P1O0 a shuze. 00,000
December 15, 2020 — December Converlible, at the option of CRO, at any time

%% paa 15,2022 during the loan period into shares at P100 o shure, a50, 000
December 18, 2020 — December Convertible, at the option of CBO, at any time

0% p.a 18, 2022 during the loan peried into shares at P100 a share. 150,000
Deeermber 23, 2020 — December Convertible, ul the option of CBO, arany time

& pu 23,2022 during the loan period into shares at P100 a share, S00, 0040
Decemper 28, 2020 — December Convertible, at the option of CBO, ot any Gme

% poa 28,2022 during the loan period [nto shares at P100 a share 300,604
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Convertible. at the option of CBO, at any time

P 37,550,000

“Total borrowing costs attributable to these loans amounted to P4,147,185, P1,276.450 and P2,177,028 for the
years ended December 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 27).

Loan Facility from CRO

In October 2019, JDVC obtained credit from CBO to finance the Group’s werking capital requirements. The
lvans were drawn from a series of promissory noles in various dates, and as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
¥37.550,000 and P13,950.000, respectively, have been availed from CBO.

The loans bear an interest of 6% per annum with & lerm of two years. These are convertible, at the option of CBO,
at any tine during the loan period into shares at P100 a share, Aside fram the conversion right gramed to the
tender of loan, there are no other guarantees and securitics to the loan. Also, the parties agreed to non-assignability
of the loan, Unless the lender exercises his conversion right, the Subsidiary shall repay the lean including the
accrued interest in full at the maturity date, The Subsidiary is not required to maintain certain financial ratios or
capital requirements with regards to this loan.

The Group classifies currently maturing loans within the next 12 months as current liabilities armounting to
P13.950,000 in the consolidated statements of financial position. The remaining losn balance are classifisd as
non-current liabilities.

Convertible Loan Asreement
On February 20, 2019, the BOD authorized the Parent Company to enter into a convertible loan agreement with

4 third party amounting to P50 million. The loan bears an interest of 5% per annum and will mature on February
20, 2021. 'The principal and interest are convertible to shares at P0.01 per share any time until the 10th day before
(e maturity date at the option of the third party.

On September 11, 2019, the third party exercised the right to convert the loan a1 F0.01 per share. On the same
date, the BOD approved the conversion of the principal amount, including the interest acerued up to date of the
conversion amounting to £1,402,778. The Parent Company issued additional 5,140,277,777 shares as a result of
the conversion. Conscquently, such valuation was duly approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission
[SEC) en the 7% day of December 2020,



Approved by:
Date:

[ NOTE 21 - ADVANCES FROM CONTRACTORS

As of December 31, this account consists of sdyvances from the following contractors:

December 31,
Particulors 2021 2020
Aghiag Mining Development Corporation (Mols 30 P 51,500,000 ¥ 51,500,000
Cozayun Blue Ocean (CBO) 39,570,200 3,651,000
T'otal 91,070,200 55,151,000

NOTE 22 - SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, the share capital of the Group is as follows:

20121 2020
Particulurs Mo, of shares Amount Mo, of shares Ampunt

Acithorized PO par .

Balance ar beginning and end of year 600,000,000,000 P 6,000,000,000 BO0.000.000,000  *  6,000,000.000
Subscribee, issued, paid-up & outstanding:

Bolance at beginning of yeur 280,336,349.297 2,303,363,493 275.196,071,520 # 2751460715

Conversion of laan - - 5,140,277,777 51,402,778

Issunnce of share 12,350.000,000 123,500,000
Bulance at end of year 292,686.349297 P  2926463,493 280336349297 P 2803363493
Ordinary share capilal 242,686,349,297 P 2,926,863,493 280.336,349,297 P 2,803,363,493

Below is the track record of issuance of the Parent Company’s sceurities:

Mumber of shures
Issucd? Issue/

_ Dute of Approval Nutunz Mote Authorized Subseribed (fer Price
Octpber 18, 20012 Listing of shares 100,000.000.000 27, 800,000,000 1.00
October 9, 2017 Share swap 5 600, 000,000,000 247,396,071,520 .01
Qeptember 11, 2019 Loan conversion 600, 000,000,000 5,140,277, 777 .01
August b, 2021 Follow-on offering (00,000,000, 000 12,350, 000,000 0.08

The total number of stockholders of the Parent Company is 803 as of December 31, 2021.

lssusnce of Capital Stock
On August 6, 2021, the SEC approved the follow-on offering of the Company of 12,350,000,000 common shares

at an Offer Price of P0.08, with a par value of P0.01 per share. Offer shares were approved for listing on August
31, 2021,

Inerease in Authorized Capital Stock of APL
On October 9, 2017, the SEC approved the increase in the capital stock of the Parent Company from

£1,000,000,000 dividgd into 100,000,000,000 shares to P6.000.000,000 divided into 600,000,000,000 shares both
with a par value of POLOL

Cunvertible Loan Aereerment

On February 20, 2019, the BOD authorized the Parent Company to enter into & convertible loan agreament with
a third party amounting to ¥50 million. The loan bears an interest of 5% per annum and will mature on February
20, 2021. The principal and interest are convertible to shares at P0.01 per share any time until the 10th day before

the maturity date at the option of the third party.

On September 11, 2019, the third party exercised the right to convert the loan at F0.01 per share. On the same
date, the BOD approved the conversion of the principal amount, including the interest accrued up to date of the
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conversion amounting to P1,402,778. The Parent Company issued additional 5,140,277,777 shares as a result of
Whe conversion. Consequently, such valuation was duly approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission
{SEC) on the T day of December 2020,

| NOTE 23 - SHARE PREMIUM

The movements of share premium are as follows:

December 31,
2021 2020
At January 1 17,586,961 P 17,586,961
Share premium on common shares issued
during the year
Giross procceds 088,000,000 -
Direct attributable issuance costs 14,014,981 -
Par value of issued shares 123,500,000
End P E6K,071,980 P 17,586,961

Share premium arises when the amount subscribed is in excess of nominal vaiue.

Ivsuance of Capltal Stock
On August 6, 2021, the SEC approved the follow-on offering of the Company of 12,350,000,000 common
shares at an Offer Price of P0.08, with a par value of P0.01 per share, Offer shares were upproved for listing on

August 31, 2021,

[ NOTE 24— RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS |

The Group, in the normal course of business, has significant transactions with related parties pertaining o granting
and availing of advances for operational expenses.

The details of the Group's related parties are summarizad as follows:

Mame of related party Relationzhip Country of mcorporation
Cagayan Ore Metal Mining Explaration Corporation With common shareholders Fhilippines

Cutagayan lron Sand Resources Corporation With comimon sharcholders Philippines

Catagayan Mining Resources (Phils.) Ing, With common sharehulders Fhilippines

Individaals Key management personnel/shareholders '

The Group, in the normal course of business, has entered into transactions with related parties principally
consisting oft



As of December 31, 2021,
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Ountstanding
Related Parly Transactions Balanes Mature Tenms and Conditions
Advances from related parties
Long-term, unsecured, no
Advances for [mpairment, na guireniee,
working capital noninterost-bemring, repayable
Key mmnngement personnel F - B 39,139,870 PUPOE2S in cush
Long-term, unsecured, no
Advances for nnpairment, no guirantes,
vorking capital noninterest-bearing, repayable
Stockholders 58,638 208,543 353 purposes in cash
| 38638 P 247,983,223
Az of December 31, 2020,
Chutstanding
Reluted Barty Transactions Balance Mature Terms and Conditions
Addvarces from reiated parlies
Long-term, ungecured, no
Advances for imp&irmcm, D puREmnIve,
working capital noninterest-heanng, repuyable
Keey management persohnel r EL R LR o 39,139,870 purposes in cash
Lomg-term, unseeured, no
Advanees for impainment, Ho guarantae,
workimg capilal nannterestsbearing, repayable
Stoekholders 207,101,733 08 TRA 713 purposes n zash
P 246241603 P 247 934,385
[eposits for future share
submcoplion
Long-tenn, unsecured, ng
Impament, e gUaranisc.
heninterest-benring, fior furre
Deposits for future issuance of common shares of’
Koy mnnuginent personne| P (33,139.870). P - stock subscription 1DVC
Lo -t unsecured, no
Impaiment, o gusiaiies,
noainterest-beanng, for future
Drepasits for fiture issuance of common shares of
Stockholdor {207.009,692) - stock subscription IDVC
f (246149562) P -

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Partics

Addvances fram Relaied Parties

The Group often borrows funds to finance its operating expenses and working capital, Advances from related
parties are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, collectible and/or payable beyond 12 months. The Group did not
reeognize expected credit loss from advances to related parties. The Group has the discretion to refinance these
advances an a long-term basis and expects to repay the advances when the Group has sustained sufficient financial
capacily.

Lo Payable

In 2017, the Group obtuined a secured loan from a related party amounting to P10.0 million for warking capital
purposes. The loan bears & monthly interest rate of 0.5%. The loan was paid in full in 2019. Interest expense from
loan payable amounted to $0.6 million in 2019 (see Note 27).

Lieposits ffar Future Shave Subscription

This account refers to amounts collected from existing shareholders of JDVC to issuc & specified number of
common shares of JDVC at par value.
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Deposit for future share subscription shall be classified under equity if a1l of the following elements are present
a5 at reporting date:

a.  The unissued authorized capital of the entity is insufficient to cover the amount of shares indicated in the
contract;

b. There is Board of Directors’ approval on the proposed increase in authorized capital stock (for which a

deposit was received by the corporation);

There is siockholders” approval of said proposed increase; and

d. The application for the approval of the proposed increase has been presented for filing or has been filed
with the Commission.

i

Asof December 31, 2021 and 2020, any of the foregoing elements are not present, hence the depaosit for future
share subscription shall be recopnized as a noncurrent liability in the consolidated statements of financial position.
The BOD of IDVEC also expects to apply for an increase in capital stock beyond 12 months from reperting dete.
The depesits ure refundable upon the request of the sharcholder if they wish to withdraw.

On July 8, 2020, the Board approved the reclassification of the total cash advances received by the Subsidiary
from its stockholders/officers amounting to Two Hundred Forty Six Million One Hundred Forty Nine Thousand
Five | lundred Sixty Two Pesos Philippine Currency (Php245,149,562.00) from “Deposit for Future Subseription”
to “Advances from Stockhalders/Officars™ because the intention of the parties for the cash advances is to provide
temporary financing ta JOVC that is intended o be repaid in some future date and the parties do not intend to use
the Subsidiary’s shares of stock as pavment for said loan/advances. The advances are intended for temporary
financing to IDVC and shall be noninterest-bearing, unsecured and repayable in cash within 2 years, with option
to exlend terms. These advances are classitied as non-current liabilities sinee the Subsidiary expects to repay these
advances when the Subsidiary can generate positive cash flows from operations, As of December 31, 2020,
depasits for future stock subseription amounted © nil.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

Since the Group is in its pre-operating stages, there are no key management personnel compensation recognized
2021, 2020 and 2019, since the officers offer their services pro-bono to save on operating costs. Likewise, the
Group does not provide post-employment benefit plans or equity-based compensation benefits to any of its
directors or exceutive officers.

| NOTE 25 - GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

As of December 31, this account consists of the following:

FParticulars 2021 2020 2019
Profzssional Tees P 18450237 # 3511160 P 2,192,004
Repairs wnd maintenunee 5829 857 82,156 185.64%
Frovision for credit losses (Note 12 and 14) 4,375,583 - -
Salaries und wages (Nole 26) 4,237,207 3.058.192 2,500,096
Organization cost 2,513,065 - -
Commission expense 1,764,286 - -
Fepresentation 1,280,830 RG3,707 1,357,235
Taxes and licenses 1,246,458 1,376,625 4,931,801
Travel and transportation 877,384 494,974 1,959,469
Depraeiation (Mote 17) 860,555 580,053 418.573
Rent {Note 30) 737,851 BO4,928 698,020
Amortization (MNote 18) 360,777 B 3
Fines and penalties 198,000 - -
Meetings and conference 196,018 - -
Qffice supplies 188,450 410460 225907
Advertising 161,519 170,048 -
Mabilization cost = 2,298,021 3,308,891
Associabion dues - - 135,469
Miscellaneous 2836843 2.084.1H1 950,759

Total P 46,114,945 P 15734516 P 18,982,963
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Miscellaneous expenses mainly include various marginal expenses covering office utilitics, bank charge,
meetings and conferences, ete.

[ NOTE 26 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As of Decamber 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019, expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits amounted to
4,237,207, P2,058,192 and P2,500,096, respectively. The amount of salari¢s and employee benefits is charged
to peneral and administrative costs (see Mote 25).

Past-emplovment Defined Benefits

The Group has not established a formal retirement plan. As at the end of each reperting dates, the Group employs
less than ten (10) employees, most who do not qualify or meet the minimun requirements of Retirement Pay Law.
Therefore, as of reporting dates, no accrued retirement benefit obligation has been recognized. However, it is
required to pay qualified employess retirement benefits under Republic Act No. 7641 once it meets the
requirements of said law.

NOTE 27 = FINANCE AND OTHER INCOME (LOSSES), NET

As of December 31, this aceount consists of the following:

Farticulers 2021 2020 2019

Finuice dncome

[nterest income from bank deposits f 36,247 P 4797 P 19,753

[mierast income trom loan receivables - - 2272321

Subtatal 36,247 4,797 2,292,074

Fingice cosis

[mterest expense (4,147,185} (1,276.430) (2,177,028)
Oy tncome (lossesy

Faorelgn exchange gain (loss) (868,326) {3.960) {963
Finance and other income (lo3s¢s), nel r(4979264) P (1.275.613) P 114,077

The loan was due from a former stockholder at 1294 interest rate per year which were collected in full in 2019
including its related interest.

| NOTE 28 - INCOME TAXES

Tax expense (benefit) consists of the following:

Particulars 2021 2020 2019
Current 1oy expense P - P - F 45,446
Delzrred tax income, net (10,003,034) (723,109) (1,226.937)

Ineome tax benefit BO(I0,003,034) (723,109) P (1,1B1481)
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The schedule of deferrad lax assets is as follows:
Statements of Financiil Position Statements of Comprehensive Income
2021 2020 2021 20240
Deterred tax assets:
NOLCO P 14855279 P 6,154,303 P §,701966 P 723,100
Provision for credit losses 1,301,608 - 1,301,068 -
Deferred tax assels — net P 16,157,877 F 6,154,303
Deferred tax benefit— nat P 10,003,034 P 723.109

The NOLCO of the business for any taxable year shall be carried over as a deduction from gross income for the
next three (3) consecutive years. In effect, therefore, a tax benefit arises on the year the losses were incurred. Such
tax henefits are reported in the statement of financial position as deferred tax assets and are reported at current

statutory 1ax rates.

The Group believes that it is not reasonably probable that future taxable profit against which the bensfit of the
Group's deferred tax assets can be utilized. Details of recognized and wnrecognized deferred tax assets of the

Group are as follows:

2021 2020 2019

Unrecognized:

NOLCO g 1,992,588 ¢ 4,732,786 ¥ 8,848 248

Excess MCIT 45446 9n.892 136,338
Total P 2,038,054 P 4823678 F 8,984 586
Hecognired:

NOLCO P 14855279 F 6154303 ¢ 5.431,194

ECL 1,301,608 ; 4

Total P 16,156,887 P 1

Details of the Company's NOLCO are as follows:

s -
in:::?:ud :'_r:jrlﬁ m::! Used/Expired Balance Tax Iiﬁ'ei
2021 r i P il
2020 2025* 13,850,107 - 13,850,107 4,155,032
2019 2022 11,250,350 : 11,250,350 3,375,105
2018 2021 11,189,840 - 11,189,840 3,356,952
2017 2024 25,157,951 (25,137.951) - -

# 41448248 P (25,157.951) P 36200297 ¥  10.B87.089

*On September 30, 2020, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations No. 25-2020 implementing Section 4{bbbk) of
“Bayanihan to Recover as One Act” which states that the NOLCO incurred for taxable years 2020 and 2021 can
be curried over and claimed as a deduction from gross income for the next five (5) consecutive taxable years

immediately following the year of such loss.
The Company is subject to Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT) which is computed at 2% of pross income,

as defined under tax regulations, or RCIT, whichever is higher. In 2020, the Company does not have gross income
hence not liable to MCIT nor RCIT. In 2019, the Company is Tiable of MCIT as the MCIT was higher than the

RCIT.

Detalls of the Group’s MCIT are as follows:

Year Valid Beginning g ; Ending
fncurred il balance Applied/Explred Balance
2019 2022 P 45,446 P - P 45 446

058 2021 45.446 “ 45446
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2017 2020 43,446 45440 -

P 136338 P 45440 P 90,892

The reconciliation of income tax at the statutory tax rate to the income tax as shown in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

2021 2020 019

Income 1x or statutory wx rate r 11669471 P (5,103,039) P  (5.660,666)
Change in unrecognized deferred tax assets 106,122 (4.160.928) 1,160,937
Fix cffects of

Non-deductible expenses 747,155 949,446 2291487

Share in not earnings of associate -14,443,023

Lncoms subject to final tax -9.062 {1,439) {5,926}

Unrealized forex pain -9,003

Expired NOLCO 1,9353% 7546405 OR6,231

Expired exeess MCIT - 46,446 46,446
Income tax benelit P (10003,034) P (723,109) # (1,181,491)

NOTE 29 = EARNINGS(LOSS) PER SHARE

As of December 31, the financial information pertinent to the derivation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share are as follows:

2021 2020 2019
Net lnss attributable o the equity holders of the Company P S8RI134 P (15,149.443) P {16,001, 786)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
Balance at beginning of year 280,336,349,297 280,336,349,297 273,196,071 ,520
Effect of share issuances 4,116,666,667 - 1,563,207,762
Balance at end of year 284,453 015,904 280,336,3459,207 176,750,279 282
Basie/Diloted earnings{loss) per share T o.o0021 # (0.00005) P (60, 000060

Diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share since the Company does not have potential
dilutive shares.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the financial
reporting date and the date of authorization of these consolidated financial statements.

[ NOTE 30 — SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS |

Leuse Agreemenls
In 2016, the Subsidiary entered into a cancellable lvase agreement with a third party for its office space. The lense

term is for a period of 2 years commencing on December 15, 2016 until Janvary 14, 2018. The contract was
renewed therealler but was terminated by the Subsidiary on Febroary 15, 2018. Upon termination of the |sase
agreement, the Parent Company allows its Subsidiary to use its office space at no cost to the Subsidiary.

In 2019, the Parent Compuny entered into a lease agreement with a third party for ils office space with a term of
one year and is renewable upon mutual agreement of hoth parties. The lease agreement has an escalation clause
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of 5% per annum upen renewal. Security deposit amounted t P71,772 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, (see
Note 13).

Tutal expense from these leases amounted to P860,555, P504,928, and 698,020 for the years ended December
31,2021, 2020 and 2019, respectively, which was charged to general & administrative costs, (See Note 25)

Rovalty Aerecment

On Sepiember 1, 2014, the Subsidiary entered in a royalty agreement with Agbiag, operating contractor of the
Subsidiary, by granting the latter irrecoverable and unrestricted rights and privileges 1o occupy, explors, develop,
utilize, mine and underiake other activities to the mining arca owned by the Subsidiary in various areas in Cagayan
Provinee, for twenty-five (25) years or the life of the Subsidiary's MPSA No. 338-2010-11-OMR with the Republic
uf'tle Philippines, whichever is shorter.

All costs and expenses related to the MPSA, commercial extraction permits, and such other fees required by the
Government and for non-goverament related expenses which inelude community expenses and social compliances
among others shall be for the account of Agbiag. Cash advances extended by the Company to Agbiag for this
purpose ameunting to nil and P43,851,191 as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively (Note 16).

As consideration, the Subsidiary shell earn royalty income of US$4.00 up to US59.33 per ton ar specifically in
accordance with the proposed slide-up-slide-down net share remittance, or size percent (6%) of cast, whichever
is shorter. In 2017, the Subsidiary received advance royalty payment from Agbiag amounting to #51,500,000.

In a special meeting held by the BOD on October 10, 2018, it was resolved that due to the failure of both parties
1o conduct full extraction operation during the year, the advance royalty payment will be returned by the
Subsidiacy to Agbiag. This was presented under “*Advances from a contractor” account in the consolidated

stutement of financial position.

sincial and Environmental It
In 2019, the Subsidiary securad the regulatory approvals of the followiog programs:

Social Development Managenent Program (SDMP)

STIMP are five (5) year programs of the projects identified and approved for implementation, in consultation with
the host communities. The Group provides an annual budget for SDMP projects that focus on health, edueation,
livelihood, public utilities and socio-cultural preservation. The implementation of the program is monitored by
the MG,

Ermcironmental Protfection and Enhancement Program (EPEF)

EPEP refers to comprehensive and strategic environmental management plan to achieve the environmental
management objectives, criteria and commitments including protection and rchabilitation of the aflected
¢nvironment, This program is monitored by the Multipartite Monitoring Team, a group headed by a representative
from the Regional MGB and representatives of Local Government Units (LGU), other government ageneics, non-
government organizations, the church sector and the representatives of the Group.

The Subsidiary will start implementing these programs upon commencemeant of operations.

COVID-19 Impact

Tn early 2020, the world was adversely affected by the COVID-19, which was declared 2 pandemic by the Warld
Health Qrganization. In a move to contain the COVID-19 outbreak, the Philippine government initiated directives
to impase stringent social distancing measures and guidelines under different levels of community quarantine
depending on the nssessment of the situation in the numerous parts of the country, These measures have cause
disrupticns to businesses and economic activities, and its impael on businesses continue to evolve,

The Group’s limeline for the commencement of the operations were delayed due to limited movement within the
region and the start of oonsoon season,
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The overall impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is still uncertain and dependent on the progression of the virus
and on actions twken by the government, businesses and individuals, which could result in different outcomes.
Considering the evolving nature of the outbreak, the Group will continue to monitor the situation in subsequent
periods.

NOTE 31 —- OTHER MATTERS ]

3.1 Retiremont benefits

The Group does not yet provide post-employment benefits to its employees. Management believes that the
retirement expense is not significant based on the current number of employees which is less than 10 and
insignificant payroll costs as of December 31, 2021,

11.2 Supplemenial disclosu sh flow information

‘I'he table below details changes in the liabilities of the Group arising from financing activities, including bath
cash and non-cash changes.

January 1, Cash Interest December
- Particulars 2021 flows Teclassification EXpENSE 31, 2021

Loans & borrowings r 3I7TES0000 P 53440001 F - P - " 0,999, 91 ]
Advances from related parties 247,424 585 58,638 - - 247,983,223
Interest payable 1,276,430 - - 4 147,185 5,423,635
Tirtal liabilitics {rom financing
netivitios : 52 286,751,035 P 53508539 P T 4,147,185 T 344 406,759

January 1, Interest Digcember

Purticulars 2020 Cash flows Reclassification expense 31, 2420

Liwans & horrowings . 13,950,000 P 23,600,000 P - P - P 37,550,000
Advances [rom related parties 1,682,983 92 040 246,149,652 - 247,924,585
Dzposits for future stock subseription 244,149 502 - (246,149.362) - -
Tulerest payakis - - = 1,276,450 1.276:450
Towl labilites from fingpcing activities P 261,782,545 P 23692040 P - P 1276450 P 286,951,035

Mon-cash Activities

The Group had no material non-cash investing ar financing activiry-related transactions for the year ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020 except for the reclassification of deposits for future subseriptian o advances from
related parties in 2020 (see Note 24).

The Group had no material non-cash investing or financing activity-related transactions for the year ended
Decentber 31, 2019, except for the conversion of interest bearing loans and borrowing amounting to P50.0 million
and acerued interes! amounting to P1,402,778 into share capital with @ par value of P.01 per share with on
equivalent of 5,140,277,777 shares,

NOTE 32 - CONTINGENCIES

The Group is a not party to any legal proceedings. There are no taxes, assessment and charges of whatsoever
nuture levied upon or against the Group, or against its properties, revenues, and assets.
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| NOTE 33 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Continuing COVID-19 Pandemic

The scale and duration of these developments remain uncertain as at reporting date. The COVID-19 pandemic
could have a material impact on the Group's financial results for the rest of 2021 and even periods thereafter.
Considering the evolving nature of the pandemic, the Group will continue to monitor the situation.
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1 ND]".:.PEN DENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO ACCOMPANYING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR FILING WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Sharcholders and the Board of Directors

APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUEBSIDIARIES
(Formerly Yehey! Corparation und Its Subsidiuries)

Unit 504, Galleria Corperate Centler, EDSA comer Ortigas Ave,,
Broy. Ugong Norte, Quezon City

We have examined the consolidated Ainancial staiements of APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND
IS SUBSIDIARIES (Farmerly Yeiey! Corporation anid Its Subsidiaries) for the year ended Decennber
31, 2021, on which we have rendered the attached report dated Mav 16, 2022

In compliance with Revised SRC Rule 68, we are stating that the Group has eight hundred four (804)
stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares ¢ach as of December 31, 2021,

VALDES ABADN & COMFPANY, CPAs
BOATEC Reg. Mo, 0314

Issued on July 29, 2021, Velid until July 14, 2024
BI Accreditation Mo, 08-002125-000-2021

Tssued on March 19, 2021, Valid unt] March 18, 2024
SEC Accreditation No.0314-8EC, Group A

Issued on February 23, 2022

For the firm:

eliiadnd Cl (el
FELICIDAD A, ABAD
Partoer
CP'A Registration No. 25184, Valid voul April 5, 2024
TIN No. 123-(48-248-000
PTIR No. 8852940, Issus Date: January 6, 2022, Makati City
BOAFPRC Reg. No. 0314

Issued on July 29, 2021, Valid until July 14, 2024
BIR Accreditation Wo. 08-002126-001-2021

Issued on March 19, 2021, Valid unti] March 18, 2024
SEC Accreditation No. 25184-8EC, Group A

Isgued ou February 23, 2022

Mzkati City, Fhilippines
May 16,2022
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INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
COMPONENTS OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

The Sharehoiders and the Board of Directors

APOLLO CLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly Yehey! Corporation and Ny Subsidiaries)

Unit 504, Galleria Corporate Center, EDSA corner Ortigas Ave.,
Brgy. Ugong Norte, Quezen Cily

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Stundards on Auditing, the consolidated financial statements
of APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (Formerly Yeliep! Corporation and
Iis Subsidiaries) as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 and have issued our report thereon dated May 16, 2022,
Qur andits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as 4
whole. The Supplementary Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators, including their definitions, formulas,
calzulation, and their appropriatenass or usefulness to the intended users, are the responsibility of the Group's
manzgement. These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating performance defined by
Philippine Finanzial Reporting Standerds (PFRS) and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures
presented by other companies, This schedule is presented for the purpose of complying with the Fevised
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission and is not a required
part of the basic consolidated financial slatements prepared in accordance with PTRS. The eomponants of
these finzneial soundness indieators have been wraced to the Group's consolidated financial stalements as at
December 31, 2021 and 2020 2nd no material exceplions were noted.

VALDES ABAD & COMPANY, CPAs
BOAFRC Rep. No. 0314

Issued on July 29, 2021, Valid until July 14, 2024
BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-002126-000-2021

Issued on Mareh 19, 2021, Valid unul March 18, 2024
SLC Accrediration No.0314-5CC, Group A

1ssued on February 23, 2022

For the firm:
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Partoer
CPA Registration Mo, 25184, Valid untit April 5, 2024
TIN No. 123-048-248-000
PTR No. 8852940, Issue Date: Janvary 6, 2022, Malkati City
BOAPRC Reg. Mo. 0314
Issued on July 29, 2021, Valid until July 14, 2024
BIR Acereditation No. 08-002126-001-2021
Issued on March 19, 2021, Valid until March 18, 2024
SEC Accreditabion No, 25184-SEC, Group A
Issued on February 23, 2022

Makati City, Mhilippines
May 16,2022
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REFORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AUDITORS

TO ACCOMPANY SEC SCHEDULES FILED SEPARATELY FROM THE

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tlie Board of Directors

APOLLO GLOBAL CAFPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly Yohey! Corporation and fts Subsidiavies)
Unir 304, Galleria Corporate Center, EDSA comer Ortigas Ave,,

Brgy. Ugong Norte, Quezon City

We have examined the consolidated finanecial statements of ATPOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, TNC. AND
ITS SUBSIDIARIES (Formerly Yehey! Corporation and fts Subsidiaries) as of December 31, 2021 on
which we have rendered the attached report dated May 16, 2022, Our andit was conducted for the purpose of
forming an cpinion on the basic financial statements takien a5 a whole, The applicable supplementary
schedules of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and for the year then ended, required by (he Securities
and Gxchangs Commission, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the bagic finencial stlements. The infonuation in such supplementary schedules has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated
in gll material respects in relation (o the basic linancial stalements taken as a whole,

VALDES ABAD & COMPANY, CPAs

BOA/PRC Reg. Moo 0314

Issued on July 29, 2021, Valid until July 14, 2024
B Accraditazion No, 08-002126-000-2021

Issued on Margh 19, 2021, Valid until March 18, 2024
SEC Aceraditation No.0314-5EC, Group A

1ssued on February 23, 2022

For the firm;
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f FELICIDAD A. ABAD

Partner

CPA Registration No. 25184, Valid until April 5, 2024
T Mo, 123-048-248-000
PTR MNo. 8832940, Tssue Date: January 6, 2022, Makari City
BOA/FRC Reg. No. 0314

[ssved on July 29, 2021, Valid until July 14, 2024
BIF Acereditation No. 08-002126-001-2021

[ssued on March 19, 2021, Valid until March 18, 2024
SEC Accreditation No. 25184-SEC, Group &

Issued on February 23, 2022

Makaii City, Philippines
May 16,2022
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Approved by:
Date:

APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC, AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

(Fermerly Yeliey! Corporation and its Subsidiary)
For the year ended December 31, 2021

INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES

I Supplemental schedules required by Revised SRC Rule 68 Annex 68-J

A Financial Assets
Amaounts receivables from directors officers, employees, related

B parties and principal stockholders (other than related parties)
Amounts receivables and pavable from/to related parties which are

C  eliminated during consolidation process of financial statements

D Intangible assets - other assst

E Long-term debt

Indebtedness to related parties (Long-term loans from related parties)
Guarantees of securities of other issuers

H Capital Stock

Q™

I Reconciliation of retained earnings available for dividend declaration

Il Map of group of companies
Financial Soundness Indicators as required by Revised SRC Rule 638
% Amnex 63-E

Attached

Not Applicahle

Attached

Attached

Attached

Not applicable

Not applicable

Attached

Not applicable

Attached

Adtached




Approved by:
Date:

APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
{(Formerly Yehep! Corporation and ity Subsidiary)
For the vear ended December 31, 2021

SCHEDULE B. Amounts of Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and
Principal Stockholders (Other Than Related Parties)

Halance at Amounts
Mame ond designation beginning of (collocted) Amounts Mone Balance at
of debtor period ftransferred written-off Current currant end of pericd
NOT APPLICABLE

SCHEDULE C. Amounts of Receivable from and Payable to Related Partics which are Eliminated
during the Consolidation ef Financial Statements

Dalance at
Mame and designation of heginning of Amounts Amounts Balance al
debtor peried Additions collected written-off Current Non-current end of period

Advances W
JOWVCResourcesCorporalion
{Subsidiary) 0,198,954 30,000,000 8,767,756 49,602,511 44,602,511
Advanees from Apollo Global
Capiial, Ine. (Parent Company) 0108 454 S0, 000,000 8,767,758 40602 511 44 612,511
Advances
tfromJ VO ResourcesCorporati
on {Subsidiary) . 2,045,157 5 - : 2.045,157 2944157
Advances 1o JOVE Indonesia
(Subsidiary) . 2,945,157 : - . 2,045,157 2,945,157

SCHEDULE D. Intangible Assets — Other Assets

Other
Balanee at Charged 1o Charged to charges
beginning of Additions at cost and other additions Balance ol
Discription perioid Cost EXpLnses accounts {deductions) end of period
Website cost F 360,777 B b 360,777 - - P -
SCHEDULE E. Long-term Debt
Amount Amount shown under caption  Amount shown under caption
authorized by “Current pertion of long term “Long term debt” in related
Title of issue indeniure debt balmnee sheet
Borrowings 3 - P 23,600,000 P 67,399,901

SCIEDULE F. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long Term Loans from Related Parties)

Amount shown under eaption
Mame of related pary Ralance at beginning of period “Current portion of long term debt

Not Applicable



Approved by:

Date:
APOLLO GLOBAL CAFPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly Yeley! Corporation and s Subsidiary)
_For the year ended December 31, 2021
SCHEDULE G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
Name of issuing entity of
securities guaranteed by the Title ol issus of each Total amount Amount owned by
Company for which this class of securitizs guaranteed and persan for which Nature of
stetement is filed puaranteed outstanding statement is filed puardntes
Not Applicable
SCHEDULE H. Capital Stock
MNumber of MNumber of shares held by
shares
Mumber of reserved for
shares issued options,
and outstanding warrants,
MNumber of as shown under  conversion Directors,
shares related balance und other Related officers and
Title of issue authorized sheet rights parties employees Others

Common shares  600,000,000,000 292686349297 none none




Approved by:

Date:

APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(Formerly Yeley! Corporation and its Subsidiary)
As at period ended December 31, 2021

1I. RECONCILIATIONCF RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND
DECLARATION AS REQUIRED BY REVISED SRC RULE 68 ANNEX 68-D

Not applicable®

*The Parent Company’s Retained Earnings as of December 31, 2021 did not exceed its 100% of
paid-in capital stock since it is in deficit position.



Approved by:
Date:

APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(Farmerly Yehey! Corporation and its Subsidiary)
For the year ended December 31, 2021

I11. MAP OF GROUP OF COMPANIES

APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC.

(Parent Company)
JDVC RESOURCES JDVC RESOURCES
CORPORATION INDONESIA
(90.47% owned Subsidiary) (90.47% owned Subsidiary)




APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC, AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

(Fermerly Yehey! Corporation and its Subsidiary)
For the vear ended December 31, 2021

Approved by:

Date:

1¥. SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS AS REQUIRED BY REVISED
SRC RULE 68 ANNEX 68-E

As of peried ended

As of yeur ended

Ratio Formula December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Current Ratio Total current assets 211,335,182 4,918,947
Divided by: Total current liabilities 121,705,907 109,358,120
Current ratio 1.74:1 0.04:1
Acid test ratio Total current assets 211,335,182 4,918,947
Less: Other current assets 5,049,858 3,634,557
(Juick assels 206,285,324 1284380
Divide by: Total current liabilities 121,705.807 109,338,120
Acid test ratio 1.69:1 0.01:1
Solvency Ratio Net income(loss) 56,680,919 (17,687,395)
Add: Depreciation 860,555 418,573
(57.541,474) (17,268,822
Divide by: Total liabilities 437,088,031 357,170,665
Solvency ratio 0.13:1 (0.05)%1
Debt-to-Equity Ratio Total liabilities 437,089,031 357,170,665
Divided by: Total Equity 3,999,229 948 2,981,515,330
Debt-to-equity ratio 0.11:1 0.12:1
Aggel-to-equity ratio Taotal assets 4,436,318,979 3,338,686,195
Divided by: Total equity 3,999.229.948 2,981,515,530
Asset-to-equity ratio 1.11:1 L12:
Interest rate coverage ratio Loss before income tax (46,677,885) (18,368 880)
Add: Interest expense 4,147,185 2,177,028
(15,733,67%) {16,691 858)
Divided by: Interest expense 4,147,185 2,177,028
Interest rate coverage ratio (12.26):1 (7.67):1
Return on equily Net loss (16,287.020) {17,687,395)
Divided by; Total equity 2,965,228, 510 2.981,515.530
Return on equity (0.005):1 . (0.006):1
Return on assets et loss (16,287,020) {17,687,393)
Divided by: Total assals 3,347,430,671 3,338,685,195
Return on assets {0.0049):1 (0.0053):1
Net profit margin Nei loss (16,287.,020) (17,687,395
Net sales N/A NiA
et profit margin N/A MNA




Approved by

Date:

APOLLO GLOBAL CAPITAL, INC. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
(Farmerly Yeley! Corporation and its Subsidiary)
For the year ended December 31, 2021

IY. SCAEDULE OF FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS AS REQUIRED BY REVISED

SRC RULE 68 ANNEX 68-E

As of period ended

As of year ended

Ratlo Formula December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Other ratios

Basic eamings (loss)per Met loss attributable to the equity

shareratio holders of the Parent Company F 58,831,314 P 58,831,314
Divided by: Weighted average
number of shares outstanding 280,336,349,297 276,759,27%,282
Basic earnings (loss) per share ratio (0.00005):1 (0.00006):1

Diluted carnings (loss) per Wet loss attributable to the equity

share ratio holders of the Parent Company P 58,831,314 ¥ (16,001, 786)

Divided by; Weighted average
number of diluted shares
outstanding 280.336,349,297

276,759,279,282

Diluted earnings (loss) per share
ratio (0.00005):1

(0.00006):1




